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Tender Offer for Securities of 

Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 

(Final Tender Offer Price and Final Offer Period) 

 
To: All securities holders 

 We, Surya Kiran investments Pte. Ltd. (the “Offeror”), hereby offer to purchase the entire securities 
(“Securities”) of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited (the “Company”) with details as follows: 

 
Part 1 

Essence of the Tender Offer 

 

1. Submission Date of the Tender Offer 

February 18, 2022 
 
2. Name of the Offeror 

Name: Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. 
Address: 65 Chulia Street, Unit No.48-05/08 OCBC Centre, Singapore 049513 
Telephone: +65 63248257  
Facsimile: +65 62224984 / +65 63231106 
 
3. Name of the Financial Advisor, Tender Offer Preparer and Tender Agent 

Name: DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd.  
Address: 989 Siam Piwat Tower Building, 9th, 14th - 15th Floor Rama I Rd, Pathum Wan District, Bangkok 10330, 
Thailand 
Telephone: + 66 2 857 7900  
Facsimile: + 66 2 857 7908 
 
4. Objectives for Making the Tender Offer 

The Offeror has acquired shares in the Company from Thevaraya Co.,Ltd., A.T.E. Maskati Co.,Ltd., and Kores 
(Thailand) Ltd. on 10 February 2022 for a total number of 5,334,630 shares or 2.65% of the total voting rights of 
the Company at the price of THB 50 per share amounting to a total acquisition cost of THB 266,731,500 resulting 
in the Offeror together with its associate companies holding a total of 55,487,490 ordinary shares in the Company 
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representing 27.52% of total issued and paid-up shares of the Company and 27.52% of total voting rights of the 
Company. Therefore, the Offeror is obligated to make a mandatory tender offer for all securities of the Company 
under the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board No. TorChor. 12/2554 Re: Rules, Conditions, and 
Procedures for the Acquisition of Securities for Business Takeovers dated May 13, 2011 (as amended) (“Takeover 
Notification”). The Offeror has no intention to change the objectives of the business, business operations or 
business plans of the Company. 
 

5. Type and Amount of the Offered Securities 

At the date of submission of the Tender Offer, the Company has one type of securities which is ordinary shares. 
The Company has a total of 201,600,000 issued and paid-up ordinary shares at the par value of THB 1 per share. 
The Offeror holds 41,677,710 shares representing 20.67% and related companies hold 13,809,780 representing 
6.85%. The offeror and related companies together hold a total of 55,487,490 shares or representing 27.52% of 
total issued and paid-up ordinary shares and total voting rights of the Company.  

Therefore, the Offeror is obligated to make a mandatory tender offer for balance securities of the Company or 
159,922,290 shares representing 79.33% of total issued and paid-up ordinary shares and total voting rights of the 
Company which are not held by the Offeror. 
 
6. Offer Price 

The offer price of the Company’s Ordinary Share is THB 50 (Fifty Baht) per share (the “Offer Price for Ordinary 
Shares”), In addition, shareholders who accept the Tender Offer (each an “Ordinary Shares Offeree”), are subject 
to payment of a brokerage fee of 0.25 percent of the Offer Price plus value added tax (“VAT”) of 7 percent of the 
brokerage fee. Therefore, the net price to be received by the Ordinary Share Offeree will be THB 49.86 (Forty Nine 
Baht Eighty Six Satang) per share. Such Offer Price is: 

(✓) the final offer which will not be changed (subject to the conditions specified in Clause 8) 

(   ) not the final offer and the Offerors may change the Offer Price  
 
Pursuant to the Revenue Code of Thailand, unless specifically exempted under the terms of an applicable double 
tax treaty, if Ordinary Share Offeree and Preferred Share Offeree (Collectively called the “Offeree”) is a foreign 
juristic person not operating any business in Thailand and residing in a country which does not have a double tax 
treaty with Thailand or residing in a country that has a double tax treaty with Thailand but such treaty does not 
exempt withholding tax on capital gains from the sale of shares in Thailand, such Offeree is subject to a 15 percent 
withholding tax on capital gains on sale of securities which is the difference between the Offer Price and the price 
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at which the Offeree originally paid to acquire the tendered shares. The price at which such Offeree originally paid 
to acquire the tendered shares must be declared to the Tender Offer Agents by completing the Attachment 4. 
 Note: An Offeree which is a Thai juristic person will be responsible to withhold 3.00 percent tax on the brokerage 
fee and must issue a Withholding Tax Certificate to the Tender Offer Agents. 
 
7. Offer Period 

The Offeror will purchase the Company’ share in a total of 25 business days from 21 February 2022 to 25 March 
2022 inclusive (the “Offer Period”), during the office hours of the Tender Offer Agents from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. 
The Offeree who would like to accept the tender offer shall submit the tender offer acceptance form and supporting 
documents (please see attachment 1 and 2 for further details). Such Offer Period is: 

(✓) the final period which will not be extended (subject to the conditions specified in Clause 8) 

(  ) not the final period and the Offerors may extend the period. 
 
8. Conditions of Change to the Tender Offer 

(  ) No condition 

(✓) Conditions of change in the Tender Offer are as follows: 

(✓) The Offerors may reduce the Offer Price or extend the Offer Period in the case of any event or action 
that occurs during the Offer Period which causes severe damage to the status or assets of the Company 

(✓) The Offerors may change the offer or extend the Offer Period to compete with another offeror who 
has submitted a tender offer for shares of the Company during the Offer Period. 
 

9. Conditions for Cancellation of the Tender Offer 

The Offeror may cancel the Tender Offer upon the occurrence of one or more of the following events: 

9.1. any event or action occurring after the submission of the Tender Offer to the Office of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) but within the Offer Period which causes or may cause severe damage to the 
financial status or the assets of the Company, where such event or action has not result solely from the actions of 
the Offerors or actions for which the Offerors are responsible; or 

9.2. any action conducted by the Company after the submission of the Tender Offer to the SEC but within the Offer 
Period which causes or may cause a significant decrease in the value of the Company’s shares; or 
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9.3. any action conducted by the Company as defined in the Notification of the Capital markets Supervisory Board 
No. TorChor. 14/2554 Re: Actions or exempt of actions that may affect the result of Tender Offer of the Company, 
dated 25 July 2011 (as amended). 
 
10. Tender Offer Revocation Period 

The Offeree is able to revoke its acceptance of the Tender Offer at the office of the Tender Offer Agents on any 
business day between 21 February 2022 to 18 March 2022 inclusive (totaling 20 business days) (the “Tender Offer 
Revocation Period”) during the hours of 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. If the Offeree wishes to revoke its acceptance of 
the Tender Offer, it must follow the Tender Offer Cancellation Procedures as specified in Attachment 3 Tender 
offer revocation procedure. 
 
11. Allocation of Shares if the Tendered Shares are more or less than the Offered Shares (Applicable Only to 
the Case of Partial Tender Offer Pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Notification of Capital Markets Supervisory Board 
No. TorChor. 12/2554) 

Not applicable to this case as the Offeror intends to purchase all ordinary shares in the Company which the 
Offeror does not hold. 
 
12. Source of Funds for the Tender Offer 

The Offeror intends to purchase 159,922,290 ordinary shares representing 79.33% of total voting rights of the 
Company at the Tender Offer price of THB 50 per share. The funds required for the Mandatory Tender Offer of the 
Company is THB 7,996,114,500 in case all remaining shareholders accept the tender offer in which the shares 
held by the Offeror on the date of the Tender Offer are excluded. As of 11 February 2022, Standard Chartered 
Bank (Singapore) issued a confirmation letter stating that Standard Chartered Bank (Singapore) Ltd. is pleased to 
support credit facility to the Offeror for the Mandatory Tender Offer in the amount of USD 250,000,000 (Two 
Hundred Fifty Million Dollars) or equivalent to THB 8,255,000,000  based on the exchange rate as of 4 February 
2022 of 33.02 THB/USD to be used as payment for this Mandatory Tender Offer. (Attachment 9) 

When considering the movement in exchange rate of THB to USD in the past 1 year, the exchange rate during 4 
February 2021 – 4 February 2022 has been moving in the 29.864-33.897 range. Movement in exchange rate of 
THB to USD in the past 6 months, the exchange rate during 4 August 2021 – 4 February 2022 has been moving 
in the 32.131-33.897 range. Movement in exchange rate of THB to USD in the past 3 months, the exchange rate 
during 4 November 2021 – 4 February 2022 has been moving in the 32.614-33.889 range. Movement in exchange 
rate of THB to USD in the past 1 month, the exchange rate during 4 January 2022 – 4 February 2022 has been 
moving in the 32.939-33.693 range. The short-term trend of exchange rate movement has been in a more narrow 
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band and when referring to the 1 month exchange rate band, the credit facility will be THB 8,234,750,000 to THB 
8,423,250,000 which is sufficient for this Tender Offer. 

The credit facility provided cannot be cancelled or revoked by the bank. The Offeror has not pledged any shares 
in the Company held be the Offeror or shares which may be acquired through the Mandatory Tender Offer.  

DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited, as the Tender Offer Preparer, has verified that the source of 
funds of the Offeror is sufficient and the Offeror has the ability to fulfil the condition precedents of the credit facility 
in order to conduct this Tender Offer. 
 
13. Tender Offer Agents Information 

Name:     DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd.  
Contact Person:     Patraporn Taeprajit, Wirunyupa Sriha, Supapun Piboonlaksanalerd,  
    Pathom Thitapura and Srithong Laykhean   
Address:               989 Siam Piwat Tower Building, 14th  Floor Rama I Rd, Pathum Wan District, 

Bangkok 10330, Thailand  
Telephone:          + 66 2 857 7000 ext. 7567 ; 7548 ; 7559 ; 7557 ; 7808  
Facsimile:              +66 2 658 1366 
Payment Date:  The Offeror will make payment (As the offer price in no.6) to the Offeree after 

the 2nd business day from the last day of the Offering Period, which is 29 
March 2022. The Acceptance Form submitted by the Offeree must be correct 
and completed and the transfer of the tendered shares must be completed. 
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Part 2 

Details of the Offeror 
 
1. The Offeror Information  

1.1 General Information 

Name: Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. 
Address: 65 Chulia Street,Unit No.48-05/08 OCBC Centre, Singapore 049513 
Telephone Number: +6563248257 
Facsimile: +6562224984 / +6563231106 
Company Registration Number: 200704427H 

 
1.2 Business Information and Other Details of the Offeror 

(1) Nature of Business Operation in Brief  

The Offeror’s company (an Aditya Birla Group Company) was incorporated in Singapore on 16 March 2007. 
The Offeror is an investment holding company which invests in companies in various industries. According 
to the audited consolidated financial statements, key investments made by the Offeror apart from business 
held through subsidiaries as of 31 March 2021 are as follow: 

Company Name Country of Incorporation Type of Business 

Essel Mining and Industries Limited India Mining 

Vodafone Idea Limited India Telecommunications 

Applause Entertainment Private Limited India Entertainment 

Aditya Birla Capital Limited India Financial Services 

PT. Indo Liberty Indonesia Textiles 

Abha Investments Pte. Ltd. Singapore Investment Holding 

Big Bayan Investments Pte. Ltd. Singapore Investment Holding 

Blue Bucks Investments Pte. Ltd. Singapore Investment Holding 

Calyx Investments Pte. Ltd. Singapore Investment Holding 

Indogenious Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore Investment Holding 

Thai Rayon Plc. Thailand Viscose rayon staple fibre 

Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Limited. Thailand Chemicals 

Source: Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. 
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Additional information regarding the ultimate beneficiary of the Offeror  

A global conglomerate, the Aditya Birla Group is in the League of Fortune 500. Anchored by an 
extraordinary force of over 140,000 employees belonging to 100 nationalities, the Group is built on a strong 
foundation of stakeholder value creation. With over seven decades of responsible business practices, the 
businesses have grown into global powerhouses in a wide range of sectors – metals, pulp and fibre, 
chemicals, textiles, carbon black, telecom, cement, financial services, fashion retail and renewable energy. 
Today, over 50% of Group revenues flow from overseas operations that span 36 countries in North and 
South America, Africa, Asia and Europe. Information regarding the Aditya Birla group can be found at 
www.adityabirla.com.  

The Offeror is a part of the Aditya Birla group and where Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla along with his family 
(Spouse, Mother and Children) is the ultimate beneficiary owner of the Offeror. The management and 
business operations of the Offeror are carried out by the Board of Directors of the Offeror and professionals 
in their respective fields who are appointed by the Board of Directors of the Offeror.  

Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla is a Non-Executive Chairman in several companies of the Aditya Birla Group. 
The Aditya Birla Group is not a juristic person but a global conglomerate with a large number of associated 
companies. 

Each of the company is managed and operated by the Board of the Directors and professionals in their 
respective fields who are appointed by the Board of Directors of the Offeror. 

 
Sources: Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. and www.adityabirla.com 
Remarks: SKI is Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd 
 RT is Rama Trading Company Limited (Person under Section 258 of offeror) 

TIMT is Thai Industrial Management & Trading Co. Ltd (Person under Section 258 of offeror) 
 

  

SKI RT TIMT Asseau
Oneida 
Services

Wholton
Grasim 

Industries
Others

2.02%20.67% 4.83% 16.66% 10.99% 10.71% 6.94% 27.18%

Offeror

Thai Rayon PLC
“TR”

Other Shareholders

27.52% 72.48%

Surya 
Viniyog

Kiran 
Investment

Elaine 
Investment

SKI Subsidiaries

100% 100% 100%

34% 99%
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Conflict of Interest with the Aditya Birla Group 
From due diligence by the Financial Advisor through publically available information, there is no conflict of 
Interest within the textile businesses of the Aditya Birla group and the Offeror.  

There is one company within the Aditya Birla Group that may be considered to operate in a similar business 
with the Company which is located in Indonesia and primarily serves the domestic market. Such company 
has a different target customer group and focuses on domestic customers. Approximately 60% of such 
company’s revenue is derived from the domestic market in Indonesia. The Company has a well-diversified 
contribution from exports and recorded only 3% of revenue from Indonesia in 2021. 

If, in the future, there is any conflict of interest arising from the Company and the Offeror, such transaction 
will comply with applicable laws, rules, and regulations pertaining the SEC and SET. 

 

(2) Authorised and paid-up capital of the Offeror 

As of 18 January 2022, the Offeror’s paid-up and registered capital is USD 100,500,001 (approximately 
THB 3,318,510,033 at the exchange rate of USD:THB 33.02 as of 4 February 2022. The shares consist of 
100,500,001 ordinary shares at the par value of USD 1.00 per share (approximately THB 33.02 per share).  
 

(3) List of shareholders of the Offeror 

The latest shareholder list of the Offeror as of 18 January 2022 is presented in the table below. All six entities 
are under the Aditya Birla Group which the ultimate beneficiary owner is Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla.  

No. Name Number of Ordinary 
Shares 

Percentage of Total 
Shares of the 

Company 
 

Percentage of Total 
Voting Rights of the 

Company 
 

1 PT. Indo Bharat Rayon 25,500,001 25.37% 25.37% 

2 Abha Investments Pte. Ltd. 15,000,000 14.93% 14.93% 

3 Big Bayan Investments Pte. Ltd. 15,000,000 14.93% 14.93% 

4 Blue Bucks Investments Pte. Ltd. 15,000,000 14.93% 14.93% 

5 Calyx Investments Pte. Ltd. 15,000,000 14.93% 14.93% 

6 Indogenious Holdings Pte. Ltd. 15,000,000 14.93% 14.93% 

Total 100,500,001 100.00% 100.00% 

Source: Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. 
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Abha Investments Pte. Ltd., Big Bayan Investments Pte. Ltd., Blue Bucks Investments Pte. Ltd., Calyx 
Investments Pte. Ltd., Indogenious Holdings Pte. Ltd. are investment arms under the Aditya Birla group with 
investments in chemical and other businesses as well. Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla along with his family 
(Spouse, Mother and Children) is the ultimate beneficiary owner of each company.  

 

Additional information regarding PT. Indo Bharat Rayon 

General Information:   PT. Indo Bharat Rayon is a company registered in Indonesia on 5 September 1980 
with the main business of producing Viscose Staple Fibre.  

Address: Menara Batavia 16 Floor, JL. K.H. Mas Mansur Kav. 126 Jakarta 10220, Indonesia 
Authorised and paid-up capital of the Offeror: As of 31 March 2021, PT. Info Bharat Rayon’s paid-up and 
registered capital is USD 10,150,000. The shares consist of 101,500 ordinary shares at the par value of 
USD 100 per share.  

 
Additional information regarding Abha Investments Pte. Ltd. 

General Information: Abha Investments Pte. Ltd. is a company registered in Singapore on 05 February 2008 
with the main business of Investment holding.  

Address: 65 Chulia Street, 48 -5/08 OCBC Centre 049513, Singapore 

Authorised and paid-up capital of the Offeror: As of 13 April 2021, Abha Investments Pte. Ltd.’s paid-up 
and registered capital is USD 10,001. The shares consist of 10,001 ordinary shares at the par value of USD 
1 per share.  

 
Additional information regarding Big Bayan Investments Pte. Ltd. 

General Information: Big Bayan Investments Pte. Ltd. is a company registered in Singapore on 04 March 
2008 with the main business of investment holding.  

Address: 65 Chulia Street, 48 -05/08 OCBC Centre 049513, Singapore 

Authorised and paid-up capital of the Offeror: As of 17 March 2021, Big Bayan Investments Pte. Ltd.’s paid-
up and registered capital is USD 10,001. The shares consist of 10,001 ordinary shares at the par value of 
USD 1 per share.  
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Additional information regarding Blue Bucks Investments Pte. Ltd. 

General Information: Blue Bucks Investments Pte. Ltd. is a company registered in Singapore on 04 March 
2008 with the main business of investment holding.  

Address: 65 Chulia Street, 48 -5/08 OCBC Centre 049513, Singapore 

Authorised and paid-up capital of the Offeror: As of 17 March 2021, Blue Bucks Investments Pte. Ltd.’s 
paid-up and registered capital is USD 10,001. The shares consist of 10,001 ordinary shares at the par value 
of USD 1 per share.  

 
Additional information regarding Calyx Investments Pte. Ltd. 

General Information: Calyx Investments Pte. Ltd. is a company registered in Singapore on 05 February 
2008  with the main business of Investment holding. 

Address: 65 Chulia Street, 48 -05/08 OCBC Centre 049513, Singapore 

Authorised and paid-up capital of the Offeror: As of 17 March 2021, Calyx Investments Pte. Ltd.’s paid-up 
and registered capital is 10,001. The shares consist of 10,001 ordinary shares at the par value of USD 1 
per share.  

 

Additional information regarding Indogenious Holdings Pte. Ltd. 

General Information: Indogenious Holdings Pte. Ltd. is a company registered in Singapore on 05 February 
2008 with the main business of Investment holding.  

Address: 65 Chulia Street, 48 -05/08 OCBC Centre 049513, Singapore 

Authorised and paid-up capital of the Offeror: As of 13 April 2021, Indogenious Holdings Pte. Ltd.’s paid-
up and registered capital is USD 10,001. The shares consist of 10,001 ordinary shares at the par value of 
USD 1 per share. 
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(4) List of the Offeror’s Directors 
As of 18 January 2022, the Offeror has a total of 4 directors as shown in the table below. 

Name Position 

1) Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla Director 

2) Mr. Deepak Kumar Khandelwal Director 

3) Mr. Manish Kumar Tibrewal Director 

4) Mrs. Namrata Goyal Director 

 
(5) Summary of consolidated operating and financial highlights of the Offeror 

 
(unit: USD million unless stated otherwise) Fiscal Year ending 31 March 

2019 2020 2021 
Total Assets 2,979.08 3,847.19 5,280.37 
Total Liabilities 2,550.29 4,494.15 4,517.50 
Shareholders’ Equity 428.79 (646.96) 762.87 
Authorized Capital 100.50 100.50 100.50 
Total Revenue - 6,886.69 6,069.33 
Total Cost of Goods Sold - 6,482.74 5,700.96 
Total Expenses 0.21 208.63 211.73 
Net Income (11.90) (28.77) 200.27 
Other comprehensive income (432.93) (921.77) 1,251.22 
Total comprehensive income (444.83) (950.54) 1,451.49 
Earnings Per Share 
(USD per Share) 

(0.12) (0.29) 1.99 

Dividend Per Share 
(USD per Share) 

- - - 

Book Value Per Share 
(USD per Share) 

4.22 (6.44) 7.59 

Source : Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. 

 
(6) Material encumbrance 

Summary of material encumbrance as of 31st March 2021 according to the audit financial statements 
include claims against the group acknowledged at debts of USD 35.01 million and the Offeror acting as 
guarantors to credit facilities. 
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The offeror and its stepdown subsidiary has provided guarantees amounting to USD 460 million for the 
borrowings done by its stepdown subsidiaries and associate companies.  
 
Commitments to purchase/procure equipment and maintenance 

To comply with The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)  pursuant to a section 114 of the Clean Air 
Act in the United States of America, a stepdown subsidiary of the Offeror has a commitment to complete 
installation of certain additional pollution abatement equipment at an estimated total expenditure of USD 
156.50 million. 

 
(7) Information related to criminal records 
- None –  

 
(8) Litigations not yet final 
- None -  

 
2. Details of the Financial Advisor, Tender Offer Preparer, and the Tender Offer Agent 

2.1 Information of the Financial Advisor and Tender Offer Preparer 

Name:  DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd.  
Address:  9th Floor Siam Piwat Tower Building, Rama I Rd, Pathum Wan District, Bangkok 

10330, Thailand  
Telephone:  +66 2 857 7900 
Facsimile:  +66 2 857 7908 

2.2 Information of the Tender Offer Agent 

Name:  DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd.  
Address:  14th Floor Siam Piwat Tower Building, Rama I Rd, Pathum Wan District, Bangkok 

10330, Thailand  
Telephone:  +66 2 857 7000 ext. 7567 ; 7548 ; 7559 ; 7557 ; 7808  
Facsimile:  +66 2 658 1366 
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3. Information of Other Advisors 

3.1 Legal Advisor 
Name:  Linklaters (Thailand) Limited 
Address:  20th Floor Capital Tower All Seasons Place, 87/1 Wireless Road, Bangkok 10330 
Telephone:  +66 2 305 8000 
Facsimile:     +66 2 305 8010 

 
4. Relationship between the Offeror and the Company, Major Shareholders or Directors of the Company 

4.1 Summary of material information of any contract/agreement/memorandum of understanding, entered into 
by the Offeror or the related parties prior to making the Tender Offer for the purpose of acquiring securities of 
the Company, regardless of whether or not such contract/agreement/memorandum of understanding is entered 
into for the tender of securities in the Tender Offer.  

-None-  
 

4.2 Shareholding, whether direct or indirect, by the Offeror or its authorised persons in the Company or major 
shareholders of the Company. 

The Offeror is a major shareholder of the Company where the Offeror and parties in relation to article 258 
hold a total of 55,487,490 shares in the Company or 27.52% of the total issued and paid-up shares and 
the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the Tender Offer. 

 
4.3 Shareholding, whether direct or indirect, by the Company, major shareholders or directors of the 
Company in the Offeror (in case the Offeror is a juristic person) 

-None-  
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4.4 Other forms of relationship 

1) Common directors between the Offeror and parties in relation to article 258 and Company. 

Name TR SKI RT TIMT 

Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla / /   

Mr. Prasan Kumar Sipani /  / / 

Mr. Deepak Kumar Khandelwal  / / / 

Remarks : TR is Thai Rayon Public Company 
 SKI is Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. (the Offeror) 
 RT is Rama Trading Company Limited (party in relation to article 258 of the Offeror) 

TIMIT is Thai Industrial Management and Trading Company Limited (party in relation to article 258 of the Offeror) 
 

2) Related Party Transaction 
-None-  

 
5. Other Relevant Information for The Securities Holders’ Decision Making 

5.1 Securities held by the Offeror prior to making the Tender Offer  
5.1.1 Ordinary Shares 

Name 
Type of 
Shares 

Number of 
Shares 

Percentage in 
comparison with 
total issued and 
paid-upshares 

Percentage in 
comparison with 
total voting rights 

 1. The Offeror 
Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. 

 
Ordinary 
Shares 

 
41,677,710 

 
20.67% 

 
20.67% 

2. Persons in the same group as the Offeror - - - - 
3. Persons under Section 258 of 1 and 2 above     
     3.1 Thai Industrial Management & Trading 

Co. Ltd. 
Ordinary 
Shares 

9,738,500 4.83% 4.83% 

     2. Rama Trading Co. Ltd.  Ordinary 
Shares 

4,071,280 2.02% 2.02% 

4. ขอ้ตกลงอ่ืนที่จะท ำใหบ้คุคลตำม 1. ถึง 3. ไดหุ้น้
เพ่ิมขึน้ 

- - - - 

 รวม 55,487,490 27.52% 27.52% 

 

5.1.2 Convertible Securities 

- None – 
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5.2 Source of funds used by the Offeror for the Tender Offer 

The Offeror intends to purchase 159,922,290 ordinary shares representing 79.33% of total voting rights of the 
Company at the Tender Offer price of THB 50 per share. The funds required for the Mandatory Tender Offer of 
the Company is THB 7,996,114,500 in case all remaining shareholders accept the tender offer in which the 
shares held by the Offeror on the date of the Tender Offer are excluded. As of 11 February 2022, Standard 
Chartered Bank (Singapore) issued a confirmation letter stating that Standard Chartered Bank (Singapore) Ltd. 
is pleased to support credit facility to the Offeror for the Mandatory Tender Offer in the amount of USD 
250,000,000 (Two Hundred Fifty Million Dollars) or equivalent to THB 8,255,000,000 based on the exchange 
rate as of 4 February 2022 of 33.02 THB/USD to be used as payment for this Mandatory Tender Offer. 
(Attachment 9) 

When considering the movement in exchange rate of THB to USD in the past 1 year, the exchange rate during 
4 February 2021 – 4 February 2022 has been moving in the 29.864-33.897 range. Movement in exchange rate 
of THB to USD in the past 6 months, the exchange rate during 4 August 2021 – 4 February 2022 has been 
moving in the 32.131-33.897 range. Movement in exchange rate of THB to USD in the past 3 months, the 
exchange rate during 4 November 2021 – 4 February 2022 has been moving in the 32.614-33.889 range. 
Movement in exchange rate of THB to USD in the past 1 month, the exchange rate during 4 January 2022 – 4 
February 2022 has been moving in the 32.939-33.693 range. The short-term trend of exchange rate movement 
has been in a more narrow band and when referring to the 1 month exchange rate band, the credit facility will 
be THB 8,234,750,000 to THB 8,423,250,000 which is sufficient for this Tender Offer. 

The credit facility provided cannot be cancelled or revoked by the bank. The Offeror has not pledged any shares 
in the Company held be the Offeror or shares which may be acquired through the Mandatory Tender Offer.  

DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited, as the Tender Offer Preparer, has verified that the source 
of funds of the Offeror is sufficient and the Offeror has the ability to fulfil the condition precedents of the credit 
facility in order to conduct this Tender Offer. 

 
5.3 Plan to sell shares of the Company    

The Offeror has no intention, within the period of 12 months after completion of the Tender Offer to sell or transfer 
a significant number of shares in the Company to any other person, unless 

• In case of sales or transfer to a related person under Section 258 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 2535 
(as amended) 

• In case the Offeror is responsible to comply with any legal, contractual or regulatory requirements imposed 
at that time (including without limitation to credit facility agreements).  
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• In case of providing liquidity of the Offeror or the Company or a subsidiary of the Offeror. 
 
5.4 Other necessary information 

- None -
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Part 3 

Information on the Company 

1. Detail of the Company1 

1.1 Brief Summary of Business Operations  

On 13 February 1974 to produce Viscose Staple Fibre (VSF). The commercial operation began on 14 September 
1976 with an annual capacity of 9,000 TPA of VSF. With regular expansions, the Company’s present capacity 
stands at 151,000 TPA which is 17 times its original capacity. The Company also has capacity to produce 
126,000 TPA of Anhydrous Sodium Sulphate, a by-product. The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange of 
Thailand since 1984 with market capitalization of Baht 6,401 Million (approx. USD 204 Million) as of 31 March 
2021. 

The Company’s VSF factory is located on the banks of Chao Praya River in Angthong province, and its gas 
based CS2 Plant is located at SIL Industrial Estate in Saraburi province. The Company is accredited with ISO 
9002 and ISO14001. The Company has also been awarded the prestigious TPM Excellence Award by JIPM, 
Japan. Our products under umbrella brand of ‘Birla Cellulose’ offer a wide range of viscose staple fibres having 
multiple functional benefits such as soft feel, high moisture absorbency, bio degradability, comfort and fashion. 
These fibers have various applications in apparel, home textiles, dress material, knitwear, wipes, personal 
hygiene, and medical usages. 

The Company has already successfully diversified into new generation fibres “Birla Modal” and “Birla Purocel”. 
Modal is well accepted for high end textile fashion products and Purocel non-woven fibres enjoy growing 
demand in hygiene products. The Company also produces Anhydrous Sodium Sulphate, a by-product, which 
is widely used by detergent, pulp, glass, leather and textile industries. More than 95% of Thai Rayon’s VSF 
throughput is directly exported to more than 40 countries worldwide. VSF from Thai Rayon is marketed under 
the “Birla Cellulose” brand, and meets the stringent quality expectations of customers in the USA, Europe, 
Turkey, South Korea, Japan, Philippines, Indonesia, Pakistan, Vietnam, China, India and Sri Lanka. 

The Company’s Products 

The Company together with its joint ventures and associates has 6 core business lines as follow: 1) Viscose 
Staple Fibre, 2) Dissolving and Paper Grade Wood Pulp, 3) Carbon Black, 4) Textile, 5) Chemicals, and 6) 
Investment arms. 

 

 

 
1
 Data from 56-1, 2021 of the Company 
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Thai Rayon Public Company Limited Corporate Structure 

as of 19 July 2021 

(based on form 56-1 of the Company) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Thai Rayon Plc. 

Dissolving Grade Wood Pulp Viscose Stable Fibre 

AV Terrace Bay Inc.  
(Paper grade pulp) 

Aditya Group AB 

AV Group NB Inc. 

Birla Jingwei Fibres Co.,Ltd. 

Aditya Birla Elyaf Sanayi Ve             
Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 

Yarn Acrylic Fiber Chemical&Carbon Black 

PT Indo Liberty Textise 

Indo-Thai Synthetics Co.,Ltd 

Thai Acrylic Fibre Co.,Ltd 

Alexandria Fiber Co.,S.A.E  
(Under Liquidation) 

Thaipolyphosphate&Chemicals Co.,Ltd 

Aditya Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Co.,Ltd 

Birla Carbon (Thailand) Plc. 

60.0% 

33.3% 

49.0% 

42.53% 

33.33% 

40.0% 

7.56% 

30.0% 

14.4% 

49.0% 

29.98% 

24.98% 
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As of 31 March 2021, the Company has total of 10 joint ventures and associates as follows:  

Company Name Country Type of Business 
% of 

Shareholding 
Investment 

Value at Cost 

Investment 
Value at Equity 

Method 

AV Terrace Bay Inc. 
("AVTC") 

Canada Manufacturer of 
paper grade pulp 

60.00% 1,289 - 

Total Investment in Joint Venture 1,289 - 
Aditya Birla Chemicals 
(Thailand) Ltd. ("ABCT") 

Thailand Manufacturer of 
chemical products 

29.98% 510 4,424 

Aditya Birla Elyaf Sanayi ve 
Ticaret Anonim Sirketi 
("ABES") 

Turkey Manufacturer of 
viscose staple fibre 

33.33% 3 4 

Aditya Group AB ("AGAB") Sweden Investment holding 
company and Bio-
refinery & Specialty 
cellulose 

33.33% 1,824 960 

Birla Jingwei Fibres 
Co.,Ltd. ("BJFC")  

China Manufacturer of 
viscose staple fibre 

42.53% 1,388 169 

PT Indo Liberty Textiles 
("ILT")  

Indonesia Manufacturer of yarn 40.00% 198 236 

Thai Acrylic Fibre Co.,Ltd. 
("TAF")  

Thailand Manufacturer of 
acrylic fibre 

30.00% 407 204 

Birla Carbon (Thailand) 
Public Co.,Ltd. ("BCT")  

Thailand Manufacturer of 
carbon black 

24.98% 236 5,198 

Thai Polyphosphate & 
Chemicals Co.,Ltd. ("TPC")  

Thailand Investment holding 
company 

49.00% 64 3,501 

AV Group NB Inc. 
("AVGNBI") 

Canada Manufacturer of 
dissolving grade 
wood pulp 

49.00% 3,155 3,216 

Total Investment in Associated Companies     

7,785 17,912 

Source: Shareholders may access 56-1 of the Company at the SEC’s website (www.sec.or.th) or at the SET’s website (www.set.or.th) 
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1.2 Financial Highlight and Performance of the Company 

(based on audited financial statement as of 31 March 2021, 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 of the 
Company) 

(Unit: THB million 
unless stated 

otherwise) 

Ending 31 March 
2019 2020 2021 

Separate 
Financial 

Statements 

Financial 
Statements in which 

Equity Method is 
applied 

Separate 
Financial 

Statements 

Financial 
Statements in which 

Equity Method is 
applied 

Separate 
Financial 

Statements 

Financial 
Statements in which 

Equity Method is 
applied 

Total Assets 17,789 26,118.68 16,767.42 25,370.43 19,072.91 27,910.73 

Total Liabilities 2,046.36 2,046.36 1,789.63 1,789.63 1,870.07 1,870.07 

Shareholders’ 
Equity 

17,788.89 24,072.33 14,977.79 23,580.79 17,202.84 26,040.66 

Paid-Up Capital 201.60 201.60 201.60 201.60 201.60 201.60 

Total Revenue 9,632.59 9,551.28 7,641.12 7,530.86 6,272.47 6,157.06 

Total Cost of 
Goods Sold 

8,585.76 8,585.76 7,289.85 7,289.85 5,516.59 5,516.59 

Total Expenses 609.23 609.23 619.74 619.74 757.83 757.83 

Net Income 409.83 1,576.67 (214.11) 188.84 6.59 89.49 

Profit (Loss) (258.60) (461.03) (421.21) (584.64) - 29.73 

Net Profit (Loss) 151.23 1.114.11 (623.66) (399.13) 1,633.18 1,894.88 

Earnings Per 
Share (THB) 

2.03 7.82 (1.06) 0.94 0.03 0.44 

Dividend Per 
Share (THB) 

- 0.05 - 0.05 - 0.05 

Book Value Per 
Share (THB) 

- 119.41 - 116.97 - 129.17 

Source: Shareholders may access the historical financial statements of the Company at the SEC’s website (www.sec.or.th) or at the SET’s 
website (www.set.or.th) 
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1.3 The Company’s shareholders’ list 

1.3.1 List of top 10 shareholders on the latest shareholders register book of the Company as of 14 June 
2021, which is the book closing date. 

No. Name No. of Shares % Voting Rights 
1 Asseau Company Limited 33,582,850 16.66 

2 Surya Kiran Investments Pte Ltd1 23,002,820 11.41 

3 Wholton Company Limited 22,165,700 10.99 

4 Oneida Services Limited 21,600,000 10.71 

5 Grasim Industries Limited 13,988,570 6.94 

6 Thai Industrial Management & Trading Co. Ltd.2 9,738,500 4.83 

7 Mrs. Zilika Maskati 4,901,385 2.43 

8 Ms. Zanita Kajiji 4,901,385 2.43 

9 Ms. Vanita Thakral 4,730,840 2.35 

10 Rama Trading Co., Ltd.2 4,071,280 2.02 

11 Other shareholders 58,916,670 29.23 

Total  201,600,000 100.00 

Remark: 1 On 2 November 2021 the Offeror acquired 10,840,260 ordinary shares from Zanita Kajiji, Zilika Maskati and Banglaine Farming 
Enterprises Co.,Ltd. and on 4 November 2021 the Offeror acquired 2,500,000 ordinary shares from Kores (Thailand) Ltd. and on 10 February 
2022 the Offeror has acquired 5,334,630 ordinary shares from Thevaraya Co.,Ltd., A.T.E. Maskati Co.,Ltd., and Kores (Thailand) Ltd. which 
has caused the shareholding structure of the Company to change from the shareholding structure based on the record date. After the 
additional share acquisition, the Offeror currently holds 41,677,710 shares or 20.67% of the total issued and paid-up capital and the total 
voting rights in the Company. 
2 Such shareholders are related persons under Section 258 to the second largest shareholder, Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Limited. 
Shareholders number 1, 3-5, 7-9, and 11 are not related persons under Section 258 to the second largest shareholder, Surya Kiran 
Investments Pte. Limited. 
Shareholders may access the shareholding structure of the Company at the SET’s website (www.set.or.th) 

 

1.3.2 Expected shareholding structure of the Company after Tender Offer  

In the event that all shareholders submit the intention to sell their shares in relation to the Tender Offer, the 
Tender Offeror (and the Person under Section 258 of the Tender Offeror) will hold a total of 100% issued 
and paid-up shares in the company and voting rights. However, the shareholding structure of the Company 
may change subject after the Tender Offer as stated in section 5.3 of Part 2. 
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No. Name of major shareholders 
Amount of shares 

(shares) 
Percent of paid up 

capital 
1 Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. 187,790,220 93.15% 

2 Thai Industrial Management & Trading Co. Ltd. 9,738,500 4.83% 

3 Rama Trading Co. Ltd. 4,071,280 2.02% 

 

1.4 List of the Board of Directors  

1.4.1 List of the Board of Directors of the Company according to the latest list of Director as of 14 June 
2021 and following the resignations and appointments of directors dated 24 August 2021 and 31 January 
2022 are as follow; 

No. Name Position 
1  Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla  Chairman of the Board 
2  Mrs. Rajashree Birla  Director 
3  Mr. Prasan Kumar Sipani Director 
4  Mr. Shyam Sundar Mahansaria Independent Director/ Chairman of the Audit Committee 
5  Mr. Vinai Sachdev  Independent Director/ Audit Committee 
6  Mr. Purshottam Dass Sharma Independent Director/ Audit Committee 

Remark: Shareholders may access the list of the Board of Directors of the Company at the SET’s website (www.set.or.th) 

  
1.4.2 List of the Board of Directors of the Company after Tender Offer 

The Offeror has no intention to change the Board of Directors of the Company.  However, the Board of 
Directors may change as appropriate such as resignation due to health conditions or personal problems 
of the Director(s). Should there be any changes the Offeror will take the appropriate actions in compliance 
with the Company’s Articles of Association and the shareholders’ resolutions, as well as the applicable 
laws, rules and regulations. 
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1.5 The highest and lowest prices of Securities of the Company for each quarter over the past 3 years 

Year Quarter 
Baht per Shares 

Highest Price  Lowest Price 

2019 

Jan - Mar 43.00 39.00 
Apr – Jun 39.75 37.50 
Jul – Sep 38.50 31.50 
Oct – Dec  33.00 27.00 

2020 

Jan - Mar 30.50 20.00 
Apr – Jun 28.75 20.50 
Jul – Sep 27.50 21.00 
Oct – Dec  31.50 20.70 

2021 

Jan - Mar 33.00 25.50 
Apr – Jun 35.00 28.00 
Jul – Sep 58.00 30.00 
Oct – Dec  62.00 46.50 

2022 4 Jan- 31 Jan* 57.50 49.75 
Source: www.setsmart.com 
Remark: * Up until the end of the previous month prior to the submission of this Tender Offer 

 
2. Business Plan after the Tender Offer 

2.1 Company Status 

Within the period of 12 months after completion of the Tender Offer, there is no intention to delist the securities 
of the Company from the Stock Exchange of Thailand unless there is an obligation for the Offeror to comply with 
applicable laws, rules and regulations. 
 
2.2 Policy and Plans of Business Operations 

The Offeror has no plan to significantly change the Company’s business objectives and business operations 
within 12 months after this Tender Offer. The Offeror has the intention to maintain the Company’s original course 
of business as the Offeror has emphasized the importance of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited’s business. 

However, the Offeror may, together with the Company, consider improvements in the Company’s operations, 
corporate structure, human resources, financial structure, dividend policy, and operational asset management 
of Company as deemed appropriate to create competitiveness of the Company continuously.  

In the event that such actions are executed, the Offeror shall disclose the information in accordance to 
applicable laws, rules, and regulations pertaining the SEC and SET. 
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2.3 Connected Transactions 

2.3.1 Prior to the Tender Offer 

Currently the Company and the Offeror do not have any related party transaction. If, in the future, there 
are such connected transactions, the Offeror shall disclose the information in accordance to applicable 
laws, rules, and regulations pertaining the SEC and SET. 

 

2.3.1 After the Tender Offer 

Currently, the Company has specified policies and procedures regarding related party transactions to 
comply with the rules and regulations of the SET and the SEC to prevent any conflict of interests between 
the Company, its subsidiaries, associate companies and/or any potential conflict persons.  

Nevertheless, after the Tender Offer, the Offeror does not intend to significantly change any connected 
transactions policy between the Company and the Offeror. The Offeror will prioritize the Company’s benefit 
where all connecting transactions will be done in accordance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations 
pertaining the SEC and SET. 
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Part 4 

Additional Information on the Tender Offer 

1. Tender Offer Acceptance Procedures 

To accept the Tender Offer, shareholders who intend to offer their securities of the Company for the 
Tender Offer (“the Offeree”) must comply with the following procedures: 

1.1. Read “Tender Offer Acceptance Procedure” enclosure in Attachment 1 for ordinary shares and 
Attachment 2 for NVDR and completely fill in and clearly sign the "Tender Offer Acceptance 

Form for Holders of Ordinary Shares" enclosed in Attachment 1 or “Tender Offer Acceptance 

Form for Holders of NVDR” enclosed in Attachment 2 (“Tender Offer Acceptance Form”), as 
the case may be. 

1.2. Enclosed the following supporting documents with the Tender Offer Acceptance Form: 

1.2.1. In the case of share certificates  

 All of share certificates must be endorsed by the signature of the Offeree in the column 
headed "Signature of the Transferor" at the back of each share certificates. Submit the endorsed 
share certificates along with two copies of the duly signed documents mentioned in Clause 
1.2.4, whichever the case may be. The Offeree’s signatures endorsed at the back of the share 
certificates and in all supporting documents must be identical. 

The Tender Offer Agent requests for the Offeree’s cooperation to submit the Tender 
Offer Acceptance Form as in Clause 1.1 at least two business days prior to the final day of the 
Tender Offer Period, unless the Tender Offer Period is extended which the Offeror shall notify 
accordingly. The Tender Offer Agent must verify and deposit the share certificates with Thailand 
Securities Depository Co., Ltd ( “TSD”), a Securities Registrar. In the event that the share 
certificates are refused to be deposited by TSD, the Tender Offer Agent will notify the Offeree 
to collect such share certificates back. 

- In the event that the name prefix or name or last name of the shareholder stated on the 
share certificate(s) is not the same as stated in the Identification Card, Civil Servant 
Identification Card or State Enterprise Employee Card or the Passport. The Offeree has 
to fill in the “Request Form for Amending securities holder records” of TSD (set out in 
Appendix 5) to be submitted with a copy of evidence of such correction issued by the 
government authority, certified as true copy. The new information must be the same as 



 

Part 4 Page 2 
 

Form 247-4 
(Translation) Tender Offer for Securities of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 

stated in the Identification Card, Civil Servant Identification Card or State Enterprise 
Employee Card or the Passport. 

- In the event that an Offeree is an executor of a will. An Offeree must submit a copy of a 
court order entitled an Offeree as the executor not more than 12 months prior to the 
submission date of the Tender Offer Acceptance Form, a copy of death certificate, a 
certified copy of the identity card and house registration of the executor and share 
certificates endorsed by signature of the executor on the back. 

- In the event that an Offeree is a minor child. The parents must submit shares certificates 
endorsed by signature of the parents on the back and a certified copy of identity card 
of the parents and the certified copies of house registration of the parents and the minor 
child. 

- In the event that the Offeree lost his/her share certificates. The Offeree must contact 
TSD and request for an issuance of new share certificates, in order to tender the 
Offeree’s shares to the Tender Offer Agent. As the process of issuing new shares may 
take up to 2 weeks, the Offeree should contact TSD at least 2 weeks before the end of 
the Tender Offer Period. 

Remark: In the case that the tendered securities are held as share certificates, the Tender Offer 
Acceptance for share certificates will be completed once the share certificates are verified and 
deposited by with TSD. In the event that the share certificates are refused to be deposited by 
TSD, the Tender Offer Agent will contact an Offeree for collecting the share certificates back. 

1.2.2. In the case of scripless shares deposited with TSD,  

The Offeree will contact and notify a brokerage company, which the tendered scripless shares 
have been deposited with, regarding the acceptance of the Tender Offer. An Offeree will have the 
brokerage company transferred the tendered scripless shares enclosing with the duly signed documents 
mentioned in Clause 1.2.4 into the following accounts of the Tender Offer Agent: 

− For Thai securities holders (Local Securities) 

Account Name : “บรษิัทหลกัทรพัย ์ดีบีเอส วิคเคอรส์ (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกดั เพื่อกำร
ท ำค ำเสนอซือ้หลกัทรพัย”์ 

Account Number : 004-000000014-6  

 

 



 

Part 4 Page 3 
 

Form 247-4 
(Translation) Tender Offer for Securities of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 

− For Foreign securities holders (Foreign Securities) 
 Account Name : “DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited For 

Tender Offer” 

Account Number : 004-000000014-6  

In case of share deposited with TSD, under the issuer account no. 600, the Offeree 
must complete and sign, accurately and clearly, and submit the form “Securities transfer to/from 

issuer account with participant” (“TSD-403”) enclosed in Attachment 6, together with 1 set of 
identification documents of securities holder, according to the type of person indicating in page 
2 of TSD-403, in addition to the Tender Offer Acceptance Form with 1 set of relevant documents 
as stated under in Clause 1.2.4 in order to transfer tendered scripless shares into the following 
account of the Tender Offer Agent: 

− For Thai securities holders (Local Securities) 

Account Name : “บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์ดีบีเอส วิคเคอรส์ (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด เพื่อกำร
ท ำค ำเสนอซือ้หลกัทรพัย”์ 

Account Number : 004-000000014-6  

− For Foreign securities holders (Foreign Securities) 

Account Name : “DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited For 
Tender Offer” 

Account Number : 004-000000014-6  

The Offeree shall send the Tender Offer Acceptance Form with 1 set of relevant documents for 
Tender and TSD-403 with 1 set of related documents to be submitted for securities transfer to/from the 
issuer account with participant, indicating in page 2 of TSD-403, to the Tender Offer Agent. 

 The Tender Offer Agent shall send TSD-403 with its supporting documents to TSD for 
verification and transfer Offeree’s securities from the issuer account to the account of Tender Offer Agent. 
In order for the Offeree to sell the shares within the Tender Offer Period, the Offeree, whose shares are 
deposited in the issuer account no.600, shall submit the Tender Offer Acceptance Form along with TSD-
403 and their enclosed documents within 23 March 2022 or at least 2 business days prior to the last day 
of the Tender Offer Period to provide sufficient time for the Tender Offer Agent to verify and process the 
securities transfer with TSD who is the security registrar. If TSD-403 is rejected from TSD, the Tender 
Offeror and/or the Tender Offer Agent reserve the right to refuse the Tender Offer Acceptance Form of 
such Offeree.  
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1.2.3. In the case of NVDR  

The Offeree will contact and notify a brokerage company, which the tendered NVDR have been 
deposited with, regarding the acceptance of the Tender Offer. An Offeree will have the brokerage 
company transferred of the tendered NVDR enclosing with the duly signed documents mentioned in 
Clause 1.2.4 into the following accounts of the Tender Offer Agent: 

− For NVDR holders 

Account Name : “DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited For 
Tender Offer” 

Account Number : 004-000000014-6  

The Tender Offer Agent requests for the Offeree’s cooperation to submit the Tender Offer 
Acceptance Form and evidence of transferring NVDR, as specified in Clause 1.1, at least two business 
days prior to the end of the Tender Offer Period, unless the Tender Offer Period is extended which the 
Offeror will notify accordingly, since the Tender Offer Agent has to transfer the ordinary shares and NVDR 
with Thai NVDR Co., Ltd. in order to proceed with the Tender Offer Acceptance procedure.  

1.2.4. Supporting documents for the acceptance of the Tender Offer,  

In case that the Offeree is: 

(a) A Thai Individual 

A certified copy of the valid Identification Card or Civil Servant Identification Card or 
State Enterprise Employee Card is required (in case of Life time Identification Card or 
Civil Servant Identification Card or State Enterprise Employee Card, a certified copy of 
the house registration with the page showing the Offeree’s name and the 13-digit 
national identification number is also required). The certified signatory must be the 
same for every documents relating to the Tender Offer Acceptance Form. (In case of 
minor child, the parents’ consent is required along with the certified copy of the valid 
Identification Card of the parents and a certified copy of the house registration with the 
page showing the names of the parents and the minor child). 

(b) A Foreign Individual 

A certified copy of the valid Alien Certificate or the passport is required. The certified 
signatory must be the same for every documents relating to the Tender Offer 
Acceptance Form. 
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(c) A Thai Juristic Person 

A copy of the affidavit issued by the Ministry of Commerce not more than six months 
prior to the final day of the Tender Offer Period, certified by authorized signatory(ies) 
of the juristic person and affixed with a company seal (if any), and a certified copy of 
the valid Identification Card or Civil Servant Identification Card or State Enterprise 
Employee Card of the authorized signatory(ies) (in case of Life time Identification Card 
or Civil Servant Identification Card or State Enterprise Employee Card, a certified copy 
of the house registration with the page showing the Offeree’s name and the 13-digit 
national identification number is also required). In case the authorized signatory(ies) is 
a foreigner, a certified copy of his/her valid Alien Certificate or passport is required as 
stated in Clause 1.2.4 (a) or (b), as the case may be. 

Remark: The Offeree, who is a Thai juristic person, shall withhold tax of 3 percent of the 
fee with respect to the offering for sale of the shares and must issue a withholding tax 
deduction certificate to the Tender Offer Agent. 

(d) A Foreign Juristic Person 

A copy of the certificate of incorporation, memorandum of association, and an affidavit 
issued by the officer of the juristic person or the government authority of the country 
where the juristic person is domiciled, certifying the name of the juristic person, the 
authorized directors, the location of the head office and power or conditions of signing 
authorization and issued not more than 12 months prior to the last day of the Tender 
Offer Period, all of which must be certified by the authorized signatory(ies) of the juristic 
person and affixed with a company seal (if any). 

A certified copy of the valid Identification Card or Civil Servant Identification Card or 
State Enterprise Employee Card of the authorized signatory(ies) (in case of Life time 
Identification Card or Civil Servant Identification Card or State Enterprise Employee 
Card, a certified copy of the house registration with the page showing the Offeree’s 
name and the 13-digit national identification number is also required). In case the 
authorized signatory(ies) is a foreigner, a certified copy of his/her valid Alien Certificate 
or passport is required.  

All documents must be certified by the Notary Public or any other authorized agency 
in the country where the documents were prepared and authenticated by an official of 
the Thai Embassy or the Thai Consulate in the country where the documents were 
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prepared or certified. The certification by a notary public is not more than 12 months 
prior to the last day of the Tender Offer Period. 

(e) For a foreign juristic person not carrying on business in Thailand and its country of 
domicile has no double tax treaty with Thailand or has double tax treaty with the 
exception of the withholding tax on capital gain from selling or transferring shares in 
Thailand. 

The Offeree must declare the cost base of tendered shares for withholding tax 
purposes by completing the “Confirmation of Securities Cost Form” set out in 
Attachment 4 together with evidence that demonstrates the cost basis. If the Offeree 
failed to declare the cost basis or failed to submit the evidence that demonstrates the 
cost basis, the amount of withholding tax will be calculated based on the tender offered 
price multiplied by the number of tendered securities of the Company or tendered 
NVDR in its entirely.  

1.2.5. In case the Offeree cannot submit the Tender Offer Acceptance Form in person: 

Please attach a “Power of Attorney form for Tender Offer Acceptance” as stated in Attachment 

1 for ordinary shares or Attachment 2 for NVDR as the case, affixed with stamp duty Baht 10 or Baht 30 
(Baht 10 for authorizing one transaction or Baht 30 for authorizing multiple transactions), together with 
the certified copy of documents of Tender Offeree and its authorized representative as set out in Clause 
1.2.4 as the case may be.  

1.2.6. Other documents subject to the request of the Offeror and/or the Tender Offer Agent 

For any questions regarding the Tender Offer Acceptance Procedure, please contact the 
Tender Offer Agent at the following address: 

Company Name : DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited 

Name : Patraporn Taeprajit, Wirunyupa Sriha, Supapun Piboonlaksanalerd 

   Pathom Thitapura and Srithong Laykhean  

Department : Operation 

Address : 14th Floor, Siam Piwat Tower, Rama I, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330 

Phone : + 66 2 857 7000 ext.  7567 ; 7548 ; 7559 ; 7557 ; 7808  

Fax : +66 2 658 1366  

E-mail address : dbsvthops@th.dbs.com  

  



 

Part 4 Page 7 
 

Form 247-4 
(Translation) Tender Offer for Securities of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 

1.3. Submission of the Tender Offer Acceptance Form with the following documents 

1.3.1. In case of Share Certificate 

An Offeree shall submit the completed Tender Offer Acceptance Form along with the supporting 
documents stated in Clause 1.2 at the Tender Offer Agent’s Head Office on every business day of the 
Tender Offer Period from 21 February 2022to 25 March 2022 from 09.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m. The Offeree 
must submit the documents by the final day of the Tender Offer Period, but it is recommended that the 
Offeree submit the documents at least 2 business days prior to the final day of the Tender Offer Period 
unless the Tender Offer Period is extended which the Offeror will notify accordingly. Since the Tender 
Offer Agent needs to verify and deposit the share certificate with TSD, the securities registrar. If such 
share certificate is rejected by TSD, the Tender Offer Agent shall inform the Offeree to collect the rejected 
share certificate back. The Offeree can submit the documents to the Tender Offer Agent at the following 
address: 

Company Name : DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited 

Name : Patraporn Taeprajit, Wirunyupa Sriha, Supapun Piboonlaksanalerd 

   Pathom Thitapura and Srithong Laykhean  

Department : Operation 

Address : 14th Floor, Siam Piwat Tower, Rama I, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330 

Phone : + 66 2 857 7000 ext. 7567 ; 7548 ; 7559 ; 7557 ; 7808  

Fax : +66 2 658 1366  

E-mail address : dbsvthops@th.dbs.com  

Under no circumstances, The Tender Agent shall not receive the Tender Offer Acceptance 
Form together with the required supporting documents via mail. 

In the case that the Offeree holds shares in Scrip Form, the Tender Offer Acceptance Form shall 
be completed if any share certificate is verified by TSD. If the share certificate is rejected by TSD, the 
Offeror and the Tender Offer Agent reserve the right to refuse the Offeree’s Tender Offer Acceptance 
Form. The Tender Offer Agent will notify the Offeree to collect the rejected share certificate back.  

1.3.2. In the case of Securities in Scripless Form 

In the case that the Offeree holds securities in scripless form and deposited with TSD, the 
Offeree’ brokerage company with which the Offeree deposited the shares shall collect and submit the 
Offeree’s the Tender Offer Acceptance Form and its supporting documents to the Tender Offer Agent at 
the address as prescribed in Clause 1.3.1 during the period specified by each brokerage company so 

callto:032-0000000888
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that such brokerage company can submit all documents to the Tender Offer Agent within the Tender 
Offer Period.  

1.3.3. In case of NVDR 

An Offeree must comply with the Tender Offer Acceptance Procedures for NVDR set out in 
Attachment 2. For NVDR, there is a process of converting an NVDR to a scripless ordinary share and 
The Tender Offer Agent cannot accept the tendered NVDR if the tendered NVDR is not converted to a 
scripless ordinary share within the Tender Offer Period. In order that the Offeree can sell the shares within 
the Tender Offer Period, the Offeree should submit the Tender Offer Acceptance Form and its supporting 
documents for NVDR at least two business days prior to the end of the Tender Offer Period or within 23 
March 2022 

1.4 In the event that tendered shares are pledged, mortgaged or subject to any other encumbrance, 
the Offeree must take all necessary actions to release the pledge, mortgage or other 
encumbrance prior to submission of the Tender Offer Acceptance Form as stated in section 1.1 
to 1.3. 

1.5 In the event that the Offeree failed to comply with the Tender Offer Acceptance Procedure or 
failed to submit the complete documents that lead to problems, obstacles or limitations to the 
procedure, the Tender Offer Agent hereby reserves the right to discretionally change details of 
the procedure of the tender offer acceptance described in this Tender Offer for the ease of the 
tender offer acceptance process and fairness of the Offeree. 

2. Procedure for the Purchase of Securities 

The Offeror expresses an interest to purchase all securities that are tendered by the Offeree as 
procedures prescribed in Part 4 except in case of the Tender Offer cancellation as specified in Clause 9 of Part 1. 

3. Settlement and Payment Procedures 

After the Tender Offer Agent completely receives the Tender Offer Acceptance Form and all required 
supporting documents set out in Clause 1.1 and 1.2, the Tender Offer Agent shall make a payment to the Offeree 
by one of the following methods: 

3.1. Automatically transfer to an account with the Bank Account at (1) Bangkok Bank PCL (BBL) (2) 
Bank of Ayudhya PCL (KRUNGSRI) (3) Siam Commercial Bank PCL (SCB) (4) Krung Thai Bank 
PCL (KTB) (5) Kasikorn Bank PCL (KBANK) (6) TMBThanachart Bank PCL (TTB) and (7) United 
Overseas Bank (Thai) PCL (UOB).  

The Offeree shall inform the bank account information to be used to receive the payment of 
sales of shares. The account must be a saving or current account, which is able to execute 
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transaction via auto transfer system. The name of the account holder must be the same as that 
of the Offeree stated in the Tender Offer Acceptance Form. The Offeree must enclose a certified 
copy of a saving account bank book or a statement of current account, as the case may be. 

The Offeree’s brokerage company confirms the details of the ATS bank account with the Tender 
Offer Agent in a written form. 

The Offeree shall receive payment via bank transfer by 4.00 p.m. on 29 March 2022, which is 
the second business day after the last day of the Tender Offer Period or within 2 business days 
after the last day of the Tender Offer Period which may be extended under the conditions as 
specified in Clause 8 of Part 1 of this Tender Offer. In case the Tender Offer Agent cannot 
transfer the payment to the Offeree’s account due to any reasons, the Tender Offer Agent 
reserves the right to make payment by cheque, in which the Tender Offer Agent will inform the 
Offeree and deliver by registered mail as detailed in Clause 3.2. For convenience, it is 
recommended that the Offeree should select the payment method via bank transfer. No transfer 
fee or any other service will be charged.  

3.2. Payment by cheque 

The Tender Offer Agent shall pay for the tendered securities to the Offeree by account payee 
cheque of Siam Commercial Bank. In the event that an Offeree resides outside Bangkok and 
the surrounding, it would take approximately 15 business days for the clearing period of cheque.  

The Tender Offer Agent will send the cheque by registered mail to the address specified in the 
Tender Offer Acceptance Form. There is a probability that the Offeree shall receive cheque after 
the second business day counting from the end of the Tender Offer Period which is 29 March 
2022. 

In the event that an Offeree offers a share certificate for tender, the Tender Offer Agent shall 
pay for the tendered share certificate under the condition that the tendered share certificate is 
already verified by and deposited with TSD. If such share certificate is rejected, the Tender Offer 
Agent shall not pay for the tendered share certificate and shall contact the Offeree for collecting 
all submitted documents from the Tender Offer Agent at the above-mentioned address.  

4. Right of Securities Holders who have accepted the Tender Offer 

If the Offeror does not cancel the Tender Offer based on the conditions stipulated herein, the Offeree 
who have correctly submitted the Tender Offer Acceptance Form and who has not revoked his/her intention to 
sell the securities shall receive the payment according to the payment method as stated in Clause 3 on the second 
business day after the final day of the Tender Offer Period, which will be on 29 March 2022. 
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If there is any event resulting in the price adjustment of the Tender Offer as stated in Clause 8 of Part 1; 
the Offeror shall perform as following; 

4.1. In case that the Tender Offer Price is decreased due to the occurrence of any event as outlined 
in Clause 8 of Part 1, the Offeror will pay the decreased price to all Offerees except for the 
securities that the Offeree has expressed his/her intention to tender prior to the announcement 
of the price amendment by the Offeror that are irrevocable. The Offeror shall pay for such 
securities at the Tender Offer Price before the price adjustment. 

4.2. In case that the Tender Offer Price is increased, the Offeror will make payment at the increased 
Tender Offer Price to every Offeree who has tendered his/her securities. 

5. Conditions for Cancellation of the Intention to Tender Securities 

The Offeree, who wishes to revoke the tendered securities, shall comply with the following procedures: 

5.1. The last day for cancellation of the tendered securities   

The Offeree can revoke his/her intention to tender securities at any time between the hours of 
9.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m. on business days during the period from 21 February 2022, to 18 March 
2022, totaling 20 business days.  

5.2. Cancellation procedure 

The Offeree, who intends to revoke their tendered securities, shall comply with the Tender Offer 

Cancellation Procedure as set out in Attachment 3 as follows: 

5.2.1. Completely fill in and clearly sign the Tender Offer Cancellation Form in Attachment 3. 

5.2.2. Enclose the following documents with the Tender Offer Cancellation Form. 

5.2.2.1. Evidence of receipt of share certificates, transfer instruction in respect of the transfer 
of scripless shares of TSD or NVDRs and the Tender Offer Acceptance Form.  

5.2.2.2. In the event that the Offeree is  

(a)   Thai individual 

A certified copy of the valid Identification Card, Civil Servant Identification Card or State 
Enterprise Employee Card (in case of Life time Identification Card or Civil Servant 
Identification Card or State Enterprise Employee Card, a certified copy of the house 
registration with the page showing the Offeree’s name and the 13-digit national 
identification number is also required). 
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(b)   Foreign individual 

A certified copy of the valid Alien Certificate or passport is required. All certified 
signatories must be the same as the other signatories appear in the Tender Offer 
Acceptance Form and its supporting documents.  

(c)   Thai Juristic person 

A copy of the affidavit issued by the Ministry of Commerce not more than 6 months 
prior to the final day of the Tender Offer Period, certified as true copy by authorized 
signatory(ies) of the juristic person and affixed with a company seal (if any) together 
with  a certified copy of the valid Identification Card, Civil Servant Identification Card or 
State Enterprise Employee Card (in case of Life time Identification Card or Civil Servant 
Identification Card or State Enterprise Employee Card, a certified copy of the house 
registration with the page showing the Offeree’s name and the 13-digit national 
identification number is also required). In the event that the authorized person(s) is 
foreigner, a certified copy of the Alien Certificate or passport is also required as stated 
in Clause 5.2.2.2 (b). 

(d)   Foreign juristic person 

A copy of the certificate of incorporation, memorandum of association, and an affidavit 
issued by the officer of the juristic person or the government authority of the country 
where the juristic person is domiciled, certifying the name of the juristic person, the 
authorized directors, head quarter location and power or conditions of signing 
authorization and issued not more than 12 months prior to the submission date of the 
Tender Offer Cancellation Form. All such documents must be certified by the 
authorized signatory(ies) of the juristic person together with a certified copy of 
identification of the authorized person as set out in clause 5.2.2.2 (a) or (b), as the case 
may be. 

All documents must be certified by a notary public or any other authorized agency in 
the country where the documents were prepared or certified and also authenticated by 
an official of the Thai Embassy or the Thai Consulate in the country where the 
documents were prepared or certified. All of such documents must be within 12 months 
prior to the last day of the Tender Offer Period.  All copies must be clear and legible, 
and the signature must be the same as the signature signed on all documents related. 

In the event that the Offeree is represented by an authorized representative, the Offeree 
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shall submit “the Power of Attorney Form for Cancellation of Tendered Securities” as 
set out in Attachment 3 together with the stamp duty (Baht 30) and a certified copy of 
identification of the authorized person and the authorized representative as set out in 
clause 5.2.2.2.  

5.3. Submit the completed Tender Offer Cancellation Form together with the required 
supporting documents to the Tender Offer Agent at the address appeared in Clause 
1.3.1 within the specified period. 

Under no circumstances, The Offeror or the Tender Offer Agent shall not receive the 
Tender Offer Cancellation Form together with the required supporting documents via 
mail. 

5.4. After receipt and verification of the completed Tender Offer Cancellation Form and the 
required supporting documents set out in Clause 5.2 within the specified period, the 
Tender Offer Agent will proceed as follows: 

5.4.1. In the case of return in the form of share certificates: The Tender Offer Agent 
will return the share certificates to the Offeree making the cancellation, or 
his/her authorized representative on the next business day following the date 
of submission of the Tender Offer Cancellation Form.  The Offeree or his/her 
authorized representative may collect share certificates at the head office of 
the Tender Offer Agent as set out in Clause 1.3.1. 

5.4.2. In the case of return in the form of scripless shares (to be transferred to the 
Offeree's account at a brokerage company): A transfer fee of Baht 100 will be 
charged to the Offeree. The Tender Offer Agent will transfer the shares 
through TSD to the account as specified in the Tender Offer Cancellation Form 
on the next business day following the date of the submission of the Tender 
Offer Cancellation Form.  

Remark: In the case of an Offeree making a cancellation, the shares will be returned 
only in the form in which such shares were tendered (share certificates or scripless). 
The Offeree may not request a change in the form of the tendered shares. 

5.4.3. The Offeree who tenders the NVDR shall receive the tendered NVDR via TSD 
by Thai NVDR Co., Ltd. 
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6. Procedure of returning the Ordinary Share to the Offerees for the case that Tender Offer process has 
been canceled. 

If the Tender Offer is canceled due to conditions specified in Clause 9 of Part 1, the Offeror will inform 
the SEC and send the letter notifying the cancellation of the Tender Offer and the reason for cancellation to the 
SET, the Company and the Company’s shareholders whose names appear on the most recent shareholder list. 
The Offeror will send such document within the next business day after the last business day the SEC could inform 
disagreement on the cancellation of the Tender Offer (within 3 business days after the SEC has been notified). 
The Tender Offer Agent will proceed as follows: 

6.1. In case of share certificate: 

In case of cancellation of the Tender Offer, the Offeror shall provide the Tender Offer Agent to 
return the share certificates to the Offeree and the Offeree can collect the share certificates at 
the Tender Offer Agent’s head office as specified below from 9.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m. on the 
business day following the date of the submission of the Tender Offer Cancellation Form. The 
Offeree must follow the procedures specified by the Tender Offer Agent. The Offeree must be 
responsible for all the expenses incurred in relation to the return of securities in certificate form. 
The period of returning share certificates takes at least 14 days. 

Company Name : DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited 

Name : Patraporn Taeprajit, Wirunyupa Sriha, Supapun Piboonlaksanalerd 

   Pathom Thitapura and Srithong Laykhean  

Department : Operation 

Address : 14th Floor, Siam Piwat Tower, Rama I, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330 

Phone : +66 2 857 7000 ext. 7567 ; 7548 ; 7559 ; 7557 ; 7808  

Fax : +66 2 658 1366  

E-mail address : dbsvthops@th.dbs.com  

6.2. In case of scripless shares and NVDR: 

The Tender Offer Agent will transfer the shares through TSD system to the Offeree’s broker 
account as specified in the Tender Acceptance Form within the next business day after the 
Offeror has announced the cancellation of the Tender Offer. 

Remark: The shares will be returned only in the form in which such shares were tendered (share 
certificates or scripless). The Offeree may not request a change in the form of the tendered shares. For 
the Offeree who intended to tender NVDR, the Offeree will receive the tendered NVDR via TSD by Thai 
NVDR Co., Ltd. 
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7. Determination of the Offer Price 

The Offer Price of the ordinary shares has been determined by the Offeror to be equal to THB 50 per 
share, for the Offer Period from 21 February 2022 to 25 March 2022 (a total of 25 banking business days). 

7.1. Method of the Offer Price determination 

On 10 February 2022, the Offeror acquired 5,334,630 shares of the Company’s ordinary shares 
from Thevaraya Co., Ltd., A.T.E. Maskati Co., Ltd. and Kores (Thailand) Ltd. at the price of THB 
50 per share which is the highest price that the Offeror and/or any related parties, under Section 
258 of the Securities and Exchange Act, of the Offeror acquired shares during the period of 90 
days prior to the date on which the Tender Offer document is submitted to the Office of SEC. 
The price of the acquired shares is the agreed price between the Offeror and Thevaraya Co.,Ltd., 
A.T.E. Maskati Co.,Ltd. and Kores (Thailand) Ltd. which is based on the historical trading price 
of the Company. 

7.2. The highest price paid for shares of such class which have been acquired by the Offerors, or 
any related party specified in Section 258, during the period of 90 days prior to the date on which 
the Tender Offer for Securities document is submitted to the SEC 

On 10 February 2022, the Offeror acquired 5,334,630 ordinary shares of the Company at the 
price of THB 50 per share. 

8. Acquisition of Securities Prior to the Tender Offer (applicable only to the case of partial Tender Offer 
pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Notification of Capital Market Supervisory Board No. TorChor. 12/2554)  

 Not applicable to this case as the Offeror intends to purchase all remaining ordinary shares of the 
Company.
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Part 5 
Certificate of Information 

 
We, hereby certify that 

(1) We intend to conduct this Tender Offer, 
(2) The Tender Offer Price in this tender is in accordance with the provision of the Notification of the 
Capital Market Supervisory Board No. TorChor. 12/2554, 
(3) We intend to comply with the plan which we have specified in this Tender Offer, and 
(4) All information contained in this Tender Offer is correct and accurate and that there is no information 
contained herein that may lead other persons to misunderstanding in any material aspects and no 
concealment is made of any material information 
 

 Signature -Deepak Kumar Khandelwal- 
  (Mr. Deepak Kumar Khandelwal) 

Authorized Director 
Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. 

The Offeror 
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Certification of Information by the Tender Offer Preparer 
 

We as the preparer of this tender offer have complied with requirements set out in the Notification of the SEC re: 
approval for financial advisors and a scope of work and hereby certify that: 
1) We have reviewed and considered that the information about the Tender Offeror disclosed in the Tender 

Offer is accurate and complete and there is no information that may lead other person to misunderstanding 

in any material aspects and no concealment is made of any material information. 

2) We have reviewed the financial evidence and consider that the Tender Offeror can fulfill the obligations 

under the above Tender Offer; 

3) We have reviewed the business policy and plan of the Company as stated in Section 2 of Part 3 regarding 

details of the Company and consider that: 

a) The Tender Offeror can comply with the policies and plans of the business operation as mentioned; 

b) The assumptions of making the policies and plans of business operation have been prepared 

reasonably; and 

c) The effects on the Company or security holders are clearly and adequately explained; 

4) We have examined evidence on the acquisition of the Company securities by the Tender Offeror and/or 

persons prescribed under Section 258 during the 90 days before the date of submission of the Tender 

Offer. We have examined the Tender Offer Price and consider that it conforms to the regulation under the 

Capital Market Supervisory Board No. TorChor. 12/2554; and 

5) We have carefully and prudently studied and reviewed the completeness and accuracy of the information 

contained in this Tender Offer and view that the information is complete and correct and that there is no 

information contained herein that may lead other persons to misunderstanding in material aspects and no 

concealment is made on any material information 

 
 Signature -Nalyne Viriyasathien- / -Tiprada Pavaluksanawat- 
  (Miss Nalyne Viriyasathien) / (Miss Tiprada Pavaluksanawat) 

Authorized Person/ SEC Approved Supervisor 
DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited 

Tender Offer Preparer 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Attachment 1 

Tender Offer Acceptance Procedures and Forms for Holders of Ordinary Shares 
 

Attachment 1.1 Tender Offer Acceptance Procedures 

Attachment 1.2 Tender Offer Acceptance Form 

Attachment 1.3 Power of Attorney for Tender Offer Acceptance 
 
 



Attachment 1.1 
For Holders of Ordinary Share 

Tender Offer Acceptance Procedures – Ordinary Share 
Shareholders of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited (“the Business”) 

 
 

Delivery of Shares Certificate  Delivery of Shares through TSD (Scripless System) 
   

1. Fill in the Tender Offer Acceptance (Attachment 1.2)  1.  Fill in the Tender Offer Acceptance  (Attachment 1.2) 
 
 

2. Endorse the share certificate to transfer securities  2. Inform the securities company which the Offeree keeps securities trading 
account to transfer the offered shares to following account: 

 Account Name: “DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (THAILAND) COMPANY 
LIMITED FOR TENDER OFFER”  

    Account Number: 004-000000014-6  
For both Thai shareholders (Local Securities) and foreign shareholders 
(Foreign Securities), including NVDR 

  

3. The holder of share certificate should submit the Tender Offer 
Acceptance Form, together with the supporting documents at least 2 
business days prior to the last business day of the Offer Period. 

 

 

4. Enclose the following supporting documents with certified as true copy, as the case may be: (In case of shares held in certif icate form, an additional set of 
identify documents is required.) 
1) Thai Individual 

-  A certified true copy of a valid Identification Card, or 
-  A certified true copy of a valid Civil Servant Identification Card or State Enterprise Employee Card. In case of the card does not state the 

Identification Card no., a certified true copy of house registration is also required. 
In case of title, name, or surname discrepancy between that appears on the security certificate and that appears on the identification card, the 
Offeree has to fill in the “Request Form for Rectifying Items in the Security Holder Record” of the TSD, to be submitted with a copy of evidence of 
such change issued by the government authority. 

2) Foreign Individual 
-  A certified true copy of a valid Passport or Alien Certificate. 

3) Thai Juristic Person 
3.1 A copy of the Company Affidavit, issued by the Ministry of Commerce not more than 6 months prior to the final day of the Tender Offer Period, 

together with company seal (if any) and certified true copy by authorized signatory(ies). 
3.2 A copy of documents as specified in 1) or 2), as the case may be, of the authorized director who certified true copy of document in 3.1) above. 

4) Foreign Juristic Person 
4.1 A copy of Certificate of Incorporation and an Affidavit issued by the officer of the juristic person or the government authority of the country in which 

the juristic person is established, certifying the name of the juristic person, the name of the authorized signatory, the location of the head office 
and conditions of signing authorization (issued not more than 12 months prior to the last day of the Tender Offer Period), certified true copy by the 
authorized directors of the juristic person together with company seal (if any). 

4.2 A copy of documents as specified in 1) or 2), as the case may be, of the authorized director who certified true copy of document in 4.1) above 
Document in 4.1) and 4.2) must be certified by the notary public officer and the Royal Thai Embassy or the Royal Thai consulate in the country where 
the documents are prepared and all documents which are issued not more than 12 months prior to the last day of the Tender Offer Period. 
In case of the Offeree is a foreign juristic person not conducting business in Thailand and is domiciled in a country that does not have a double taxation 
treaty with Thailand or is domiciled in a country that has a double taxation treaty with Thailand but such treaty does not exempt any withholding tax on 
capital gain on sales of securities in Thailand, the Offeree has to declare cost basis of securities by submitting the Form for Declaration of Cost of 
Tendered securities attached (Attachment 4) with the evidence of such cost together with check, cashier check, draft or transfer slip for withholding tax 
on capital gain on sales of shares. 
If the said form is not submitted or proper evidence of the cost basis is not attached with the said form, the tender offer agent will deduct withholding tax by 
multiplying on total value of shares tendered (the tender offer price of Baht 50 per share multiply by the number of TR shares tendered by the Offeree).  

In case of security holder’s authorized representative 
1. Power of Attorney affixed with Baht 10 or 30 stamp duty (as the case may be) (Attachment 1.3) 
2. Certified true copy of identification documents of security holder and the attorney-in-fact as specified above 

  

5. Kindly submit all documents to: Khun Patraporn Taeprajit, Wirunyupa Sriha, Supapun Piboonlaksanalerd, Pathom Thitapura and Srithong Laykhean, 
 Operation Department, DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited, 989 Siam Piwat Tower Building, 14th Floor Rama I Rd, Pathum Wan District, Bangkok 

10330 Tel: +66 2 857 7000 ต่อ 7567, 7548, 7559, 7557 ;  7808 Fax: +66 2 658 1366 E-mail: dbsvthops@th.dbs.com 
Or send to your broker that you have the trading account and deposited the security to compile the necessary documents before submitting them to 

DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited 
“All share certificate holders, please submit the Tender Offer Acceptance at least 2 business day before the last tender offer date”  

“Surya Kiran Investment Pte. Ltd. and the Tender Offer Agent will not accept documents sent by mail”



   Attachment 1.2 
Tender Offer Acceptance Form   For Holders of Ordinary Share 

Tender Offer Acceptance Form 

To :  Surya Kiran Investment Pte. Ltd. (the “Tender Offeror”) and                                               Date                                                    

       DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited (the “Tender Offer Agent”)  No                

I/We (Mr. /Mrs. /Miss /Company/Others)                                                                     Nationality                         Gender                          Date of Birth                             .                                    

Contact Address (that can be reach via mail) / In case you are not Thai nationality and do not have Thai address, please fill current foreign address                                                 .                                    
Road                                   District                                    Sub District                                      . Country                                       Postal Code                                  .                    

Contact Telephone                           Facsimile                        Email                                            Tax Payer ID No                                      Occupation                           .                                  
Address on Identification Card    same as above    different from above (Please specify)                                                                                                                      . 
                                                                                                                                                                                               Postal Code                                  .                                       
 

Please specify type of seller of ordinary shares of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 
 Natural Person of Thai Nationality ID Card / Civil Servant ID Card / State Enterprise Card No                                                                                                               . 

 Natural Person of Alien Nationality Alien Card / Passport ID No.                                                                                    
 Juristic Person of Thai Nationality Company Registration No                                                                                                                              Type of business                                         . 
      Name – Surname of the authorized person of Company                                                                                                                                                                                                           . 
 Juristic Person of Alien Nationality Incorporate Document No                                                                                                     Type of business                                  . 

      Name – Surname of the authorized person of Company                                                                                                                                                                                                          .    
 Foreign Juristic Person who does not engage in business in Thailand Certificate of Incorporation No                                                  Type of business                                 . 

      Name – Surname of the authorized person of Company                                                                                                                                                                                                          .                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
I, We hereby accept to sell                                                                          (                                                                                      ) ordinary shares of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited at 
the price of THB 50 per share. I/We acknowledge that the sale is subject to a commission fee of 0.25% of Tender Offer Price and VAT at the rate of 7% of commission fee. (The net price 
received by the Offeree will be THB 49.86 per share approximately.)  
A total value of THB                                                                                        (                                                                                  ) 

I/We acknowledge that the acceptance of the Tender Offer and the share sale is irrevocable and subject to the terms and conditions stated in the Tender Offer document, except for 
the cancellation according to the terms and conditions stated in the Tender Offer. The last day for the revocation is the 20 th business day of the Offer Period which falls on March 18, 
2022 during the hours of 9.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m. 

I/We hereby appoint DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited as my/our proxy to sell, transfer and deliver shares, arrange the payment procedures and process and do any 
other things necessary and relevant to my/our acceptance of the Tender Offer 

 In case of “Share Certificate”  In case of “Scripless Share” (Transfer through TSD) 
Number of Securities 

Securities Holder’s Name Share Certificate No. TSD Participant No. (Broker No.) Transfer Slip No. Transfer Date 

      
      

    Total  
Payment Method  
 Transfer payment to my/our account   1.BBL  2.BAY  3.SCB  4.KTB  5.KBANK  6.TMB  7.UOB        
Branch ……………………………………… Type of Account ………………………………………       Account No ……………………………………………………….. 
(The account name must be the same as the Offeree’s name shown on this form. Please attach a copy of the saving account book or current account statement with this form)  
  Please send payment cheque to the above address by registered mail. 

In case where the amount of payment is equal to THB 100,000 or more, please identify the Beneficial Owner* accordingly:  
In case where the subscriber is a natural person   for the Offeree  for another (please specify).......................................................................................... 
In case where the subscriber is a juristic person   for a subscriber  for another (please specify).......................................................................................... 
*Beneficial Owner means a natural person who ultimately owns or controls a customer or has control over relationship between a customer and the financial institution or a person on 
whose behalf a transaction is being conducted, including those persons who exercise ultimate effective control over a juristic person. 

I/We here by attach the share certificate(s), and/or share depository certificate(s) and/or transfer slip through TSD for account of “DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (THAILAND) COMPANY 
LIMITED FOR TENDER OFFER” account number 004-000000014-6 and proof of identity in respect of the Offeree / the authorized person of Company or proof registered company such 
as Certified Copy of the Certificate of Registration / Confirmation Letter (for juristic person) as set out in the Tender Offer Acceptance Procedures. 
I/We hereby certify, represent and warrant that I am/we are the legal and beneficial owner(s) of all shares offered for sale are free from any mortgage, charge, pledge, encumbrance, 
liability or third party right (“Encumbrance”) and I/we sell such shares offered as beneficial owner(s) thereof free from any and all Encumbrances. 

Signature …………………………………………. Proxy  Signature   ……………………………………… Offeree 
 (………………………………..………)    (………………………………..………)  

 

Receiver Initial Verify 

……………………………………………. ……………………………………………. …………………………………………….  



   Attachment 1.2 
Tender Offer Acceptance Form   For Holders of Ordinary Share 

Receipt of Share Certificate(s) / Transfer Slip and Tender Acceptance Form 

Date                                                                                                                                            Receipt no                                            .  
DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited, as the Tender Offer Agent, has received Tender Acceptance Form of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited together with  
  Share certificate(s) totaling                                                       shares        Transfer slip through TSD totaling                                                      shares 
from (Mr./Mrs./Miss/Company/Others)                                                                                                                                                                                     .                                                                                               
The Offeree has chosen the following payment       
  Transfer payment through  1.BBL  2.BAY  3.SCB  4.KTB  5.KBANK  6.TMB  7.UOB (Same as account above)   

  Receive cheque payment by registered mail 
                                                                                                                                                                      Signature                                                      Tender Offer Agent  
                                                                                                                                                                              Date                                              .                                                              

For more information please contact; Khun Patraporn Taeprajit, Wirunyupa Sriha, Supapun Piboonlaksanalerd, Pathom Thitapura and Srithong Laykhean  
Operation Department, DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited  

989 Siam Piwat Tower Building, 14th  Floor Rama I Rd, Pathum Wan District, Bangkok 10330 

Tel: +66 2 857 7000 ต่อ 7567, 7548, 7559, 7557 ;  7808 Fax: +66 2 658 1366 E-mail: dbsvthops@th.dbs.com 



 Attachment 1.3 
For Holders of Ordinary Shares 

 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

For Tender Offer Acceptance - Ordinary Shares 

 
  Made at                                                      . 
  Date                                                           . 

          
I / We                                                                                                                                                                         Age                                     .                                
Nationality                                      Date of Birth                                            ID Card No. / Passport No                                                                
Resides at (address that can be reached by mail / In case you are not Thai nationality and do not have Thai address, please fill current 
foreign address)                                                                                                                                                                                                   ..                                                                                  
                                                                                                    Zip/Postal Code                                   Country                                                  .                                                                    
hold(s)                                                                                        shares of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 
hereby authorize (Mr. / Miss / Mrs.)                                                                                                     Age                   Nationality                                              
Date of Birth                                                              ID Card No. / Passport No.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Resides at (address that can be reached by mail) / In case you are not Thai nationality and do not have Thai address, please fill current 
foreign address                                                                                                                            . 
                                                                                                   Zip/Postal Code                                    Country                                                  .                                                

.to act as my/our attorney to  

      Sell, transfer, and deliver such securities of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited through the Tender Offer Agent 

 Collect the proceeds from the sales of shares of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 

 

Any act taken by my/our attorney shall be deemed to be taken by myself/ourselves in every respect. 
 

Sign  Grantor 
 (                                                )  
   

Sign  Attorney-in-fact 
 (                                               )  
   

Sign  Witness 
 (                                                )  
   

Sign  Witness 

 (                                                )  
 

Notes:   
1) A power of attorney executed with 10-THB stamp duty affixed in case of authorizing to perform the submission of Tender Offer Acceptance 

Form for of the Ordinary Shares or receiving a cheque for the payment of ordinary shares only, or 30-THB stamp duty affixed in case of authorizing to 
perform both the submission of Tender Offer Acceptance Form of the Ordinary Shares and receiving a cheque for the payment of ordinary shares 

2) The grantor is required to attach the following documents with certified true copies of the authorized representatives(s): 
a. Certified true copies of ID card (Thai Individual) or 
b. Certified true copies of Company Registration and Company Certification (Thai Juristic Person) or 
c. Certified true copies of passport or alien certificate (Foreign Individual) 

3) The attorney-in-fact is required to attach the following documents with certified true copies of the authorized representatives(s): 
a. Certified true copies of ID card (Thai Individual) or 
b. Certified true copies of Company Registration and Company Certification (Thai Juristic Person) or 
c. Certified true copies of passport or alien certificate (Foreign Individual) 

4) In case that the grantor and/or attorney-in-fact is foreign juristic person the true copies of corporate affidavit, certificate of Incorporation, passport or alien 
certificate must be certified by the notary public officer and Thai embassy or Thai consulate in the country where the documents were prepared not more 
than 12 months prior to the last day of the Offer Period. 

Stamp Duty* 
10 Baht or 

30 Baht 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Attachment 2 

Tender Offer Acceptance Procedure and Forms for Holders of Non-Voting Depository Receipt 
(“NVDR”) 

 

Attachment 2.1 Tender Offer Acceptance Procedures for NVDR 

Attachment 2.2 Tender Offer Acceptance Form for NVDR 

Attachment 2.3 Power of Attorney for Tender Offer Acceptance for NVDR 

 
 
 
  



   Attachment 2.1 
         For Holders of NVDR 

Tender Offer Acceptance Procedures - NVDR 

Shareholders of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited (“the Business”) 
 

1. Fill in the Tender Offer Acceptance Form for NVDR (Attachment 2.2) 
 

2. Inform the securities company which the Offeree keeps securities trading account to transfer the Scripless NVDR units to 
following account “DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (THAILAND) COMPANY LIMITED FOR TENDER OFFER ”Account Number 004-000000014-6 

 
3. Enclose the evidence of transferring NVDR as specified in Attachment 2.2 

 
4. Enclose the following supporting documents with certified as true copy, as the case may be: 

1) Thai Individual 
- certified true copy of a valid Identification Card or 
- A certified true copy of a valid Civil Servant Identification Card or State Enterprise Employee Card. In case of the card does not state the 

Identification Card no., a certified true copy of house registration is also required. 
In case of title, name, or surname discrepancy between that appears on the security certificate and that appears on the identification card, 
the Offeree has to fill in the “Request Form for Rectifying Items in the Security Holder Record” of the TSD, to be submitted with a copy of 
evidence of such change issued by the government authority. 

2) Foreign Individual 
- A certificate true copy of a valid Passport or Alien Certificate. 

3) Thai Juristic Person 
3.1 A copy of the Company Affidavit, issued by the Ministry of Commerce not more than 6 months prior to the final day of the Tender Offer 

Period, together with company seal (if any) and certified true copy by authorized signatory(ies). 
3.2 A copy of documents as specified in 1) or 2), as the case may be, of the authorized director who certified true copy of document in 3.1) 

above 
4) Foreign Juristic Person 

4.1 A copy of Certificate of Incorporation and an Affidavit issued by the officer of the juristic person or the government authority of the country 
in which the juristic person is established, certifying the name of the juristic person, the name of the authorized signatory, the location of 
the head office and conditions of signing authorization (issued not more than 12 months prior to the submission date of Tender Offer 
Acceptance for NVDR), certified true copy by the authorized directors of the juristic person together with company seal (if any)   

4.2 copy of documents as specified in 1) or 2), as the case may be, of the authorized director who certified true copy of document in 4.1) 
above 

Document in 4.1) and 4.2) must be certified by the notary public officer and the Royal Thai Embassy or the Royal Thai consulate in the country 
where the documents are prepared and all documents which are issued not more than 12 months prior to the submission date of Tender Offer 
Acceptance for NVDR. 
In case of the Offeree is a foreign juristic person not conducting business in Thailand and is domiciled in a country that does not have a double 
taxation treaty with Thailand or is domiciled in a country that has a double taxation treaty with Thailand but such treaty does not exempt any 
withholding tax on capital gain on sales of shares in Thailand, the Offeree has to declare cost basis of shares by submitting the Form for Declaration 
of Cost of Tendered securities attached (Attachment 4) with the evidence of such cost together with check, cashier check, draft or transfer slip for 
withholding tax on capital gain on sales of shares.  
If the said form is not submitted or proper evidence of the cost basis is not attached with the said form, the tender offer agent will deduct 
withholding tax by multiplying on total value of shares tendered (the tender offer price of Baht 50 per share multiply by the number of TR shares 
tendered by the Offeree).  

In case of security holder’s authorized representative 
1. Power of Attorney affixed with Baht 10 or 30 stamp duty (as the case may be) (Attachment 2.3) 
2. Certified true copy of identification documents of security holder and the attorney-in-fact as specified above 

 
5. Kindly submit all documents to: Khun Khun Patraporn Taeprajit, Wirunyupa Sriha, Supapun Piboonlaksanalerd, Pathom Thitapura 

and Srithong Laykhean, Operation Department, DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited 
989 Siam Piwat Tower Building, 14th  Floor Rama I Rd, Pathum Wan District, Bangkok 10330 

Tel: +66 2 857 7000 ต่อ 7567, 7548, 7559, 7557 ;  7808 Fax: +66 2 658 1366 E-mail: dbsvthops@th.dbs.com  
Or send to your broker that you have the trading account and deposited the security to compile the necessary documents before submitting 

them to DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited 
“All NVDR holders, please submit the Tender Offer Acceptance Form at least 2 business day before the last tender offer date” 

“Surya Kiran Investment Pte. Ltd. and the Tender Offer Agent will not accept documents sent by mail” 

  



   Attachment 2.2 
Tender Offer Acceptance Form   For Holders of NVDR 

Tender Offer Acceptance Form for NVDR of ordinary shares of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 

To :  Surya Kiran Investment Pte. Ltd. (the “Tender Offeror”) and                                               Date                                                    
        DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited (the “Tender Offer Agent”)  No               
I/We (Mr./Mrs./Miss/Company/Others)                                                                     Nationality                         Gender                     Date of Birth                                    .                                    

Contact Address (that can be reach via mail) / In case you are not Thai nationality and do not have Thai address, please fill current foreign address                                                 .                                    
Road                                   District                                    Sub District                                      . Country                                       Postal Code                                  .                    

Contact Telephone                           Facsimile                        Email                                            Tax Payer ID No                                      Occupation                           .                                  
Address on Identification Card    same as above    different from above (Please specify)                                                                                                                      . 
                                                                                                                                                                        Postal Code                                                        .                                     
 

Please specify type of seller of ordinary shares of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 
 Natural Person of Thai Nationality ID Card / Civil Servant ID Card / State Enterprise Card No                                                                                                              . 

 Natural Person of Alien Nationality Alien Card / Passport ID No.                                                                                  
 Juristic Person of Thai Nationality Company Registration No                                                                                                   Type of business                                                                    . 
      Name – Surname of the authorized person of Company                                                                                                                                                                                                           . 
 Juristic Person of Alien Nationality Incorporate Document No                                                                               Type of business                                                        . 

      Name – Surname of the authorized person of Company                                                                                                                                                                                                          .    
 Foreign Juristic Person who does not engage in business in Thailand Certificate of Incorporation No                                                  Type of business                                 . 

      Name – Surname of the authorized person of Company                                                                                                                                                                                                          .                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
II, We hereby accept to sell                                                               (                                                                    ) NVDR of ordinary share of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited at the 
price of THB 50 per share (NVDR). I/We acknowledge that the sale is subject to a commission fee of 0.25% of Tender Offer Price and VAT at the rate of 7% of commission fee. (The net 
price received by the Offeree will be THB 49.86 per share (NVDR) approximately).  
A total value of THB                                                                                       (                                          ) 

I/We acknowledge that the acceptance of the Tender Offer and the share sale is irrevocable and subject to the terms and conditions stated in the Tender Offer document, except for 
the cancellation according to the terms and conditions stated in the Tender Offer. The last day for the revocation is the 20 th business day of the Offer Period which falls on March 18, 
2022 during the hours of 9.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m. 

I/We hereby appoint DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited as my/our proxy to sell, transfer and deliver shares, arrange the payment procedures and process and do any 
other things necessary and relevant to my/our acceptance of the Tender Offer. 

Transfer Scripless NVDR 

TSD Participant No. (Broker No.) TSD Slip No. Transfer Date Number of NVDR 
    

    

  Total NVDR  
Payment Method  
 Transfer payment to my/our account   1.BBL  2.BAY  3.SCB  4.KTB  5.KBANK  6.TMB  7.UOB        
      Branch ……………………………………… Type of Account ………………………………………       Account No ……………………………………………………….. 
(The account name must be the same as the Offeree’s name shown on this form. Please attach a copy of the saving account book or current account statement with this form)  
  Please send payment cheque to the above address by registered mail 

In case where the amount of payment is equal to THB 100,000 or more, please identify the Beneficial Owner* accordingly:  
In case where the subscriber is a natural person   for the Offeree   for another (please specify).......................................................................................... 
In case where the subscriber is a juristic person   for a subscriber  for another (please specify).......................................................................................... 
*Beneficial Owner means a natural person who ultimately owns or controls a customer or has control over relationship between a customer and the financial institution or a person on 
whose behalf a transaction is being conducted, including those persons who exercise ultimate effective control over a juristic person. 

I/We here by attach the share certificate(s), and/or share depository certificate(s) and/or transfer slip through TSD for account of “DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (THAILAND) COMPANY 
LIMITED FOR TENDER OFFER” account number 004-000000014-6 and proof of identity in respect of the Offeree / the authorized person of Company or proof registered company such 
as Certified Copy of the Certificate of Registration / Confirmation Letter (for juristic person) as set out in the Tender Offer Acceptance Procedures. 
I I/We hereby certify, represent and warrant that I am/we are the legal and beneficial owner(s) of all NVDR offered for sale are free from any mortgage, charge, pledge, encumbrance, 
liability or third party right (“Encumbrance”) and I/we sell such NVDR offered as beneficial owner(s) thereof free from any and all Encumbrances. 
 

Signature …………………………………………. Proxy  Signature   ……………………………………… Offeree 
 (………………………………..………)    (………………………………..………)  

 

Receiver Initial Verify 

……………………………………………. ……………………………………………. …………………………………………….  



   Attachment 2.2 
Tender Offer Acceptance Form   For Holders of NVDR 

Transfer of Scripless NVDR and Tender Offer Acceptance Form Receipt 

Date                                                                                                                                            Receipt no                                     .  
DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited, as the Tender Offer Agent, has received transfer scripless NVDR and Tender Offer Acceptance From for NVDR of Thai 
Rayon Public Company Limited together with  
   Share certificate(s) totaling                                                        shares        Transfer slip through TSD totaling                                                      shares 
from (Mr./Mrs./Miss./Company/Others)                                                                                                                                                                             .                                                                                                

The Offeree has chosen the following payment  
        Transfer payment through  1.BBL  2.BAY  3.SCB  4.KTB  5.KBANK  6.TMB  7.UOB (Same as account above)  

        Receive cheque payment by registered mail 
                                                                                                                                                                 Signature                                                      Tender Offer Agent    
                                                                                                                                                                 Date                                                . 

For more information please contact; Khun Patraporn Taeprajit, Wirunyupa Sriha, Supapun Piboonlaksanalerd, Pathom Thitapura and Srithong Laykhean  
Operation Department, DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited  

989 Siam Piwat Tower Building, 14th  Floor Rama I Rd, Pathum Wan District, Bangkok 10330 

Tel: +66 2 857 7000 ต่อ 7567, 7548, 7559, 7557 ;  7808 Fax: +66 2 658 1366 E-mail: dbsvthops@th.dbs.com 



 Attachment 2.3 
For Holders of NVDR 

 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

For Tender Offer Acceptance - NVDR 

 
  Made at                                                      . 
  Date                                                           . 

          
I / We                                                                                                                                                      Age                                                        .                
Nationality                                 Date of Birth                                              ID Card No. / Passport No                                                                  
Resides at (address that can be reached by mail / In case you are not Thai nationality and do not have Thai address, please fill current 
foreign address)                                                                                                                                                                                                   ..                                                                                  
                                                                                                    Zip/Postal Code                                   Country                                                  . 
hold(s)                                                                                         units of NVDR of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 
hereby authorize (Mr. / Miss / Mrs.)                                                                                                     Age                   Nationality                                              
Date of Birth                                                              ID Card No. / Passport No.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Resides at (address that can be reached by mail) / In case you are not Thai nationality and do not have Thai address, please fi ll current 
foreign address                                                                                                                            . 
                                                                                                   Zip/Postal Code                                    Country                                                  .                                                
.to act as my/our attorney to  
      Sell, transfer, and deliver such securities of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited through the Tender Offer Agent 

 Collect the proceeds from the sales of shares of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 

 

Any act taken by my/our attorney shall be deemed to be taken by myself/ourselves in every respect. 
 

Sign  Grantor 
 (                                                )  
   

Sign  Attorney-in-fact 
 (                                               )  
   

Sign  Witness 
 (                                                )  
   

Sign  Witness 

 (                                                )  
 

Notes:   
1) A power of attorney executed with 10-THB stamp duty affixed in case of authorizing to perform the submission of Tender Offer Acceptance 

Form for of the Ordinary Shares or receiving a cheque for the payment of ordinary shares only, or 30-THB stamp duty affixed in case of authorizing to 
perform both the submission of Tender Offer Acceptance Form of the Ordinary Shares and receiving a cheque for the payment of ordinary shares 

2) The grantor is required to attach the following documents with certified true copies of the authorized representatives(s): 
a. Certified true copies of ID card (Thai Individual) or 
b. Certified true copies of Company Registration and Company Certification (Thai Juristic Person) or 
c. Certified true copies of passport or alien certificate (Foreign Individual) 

3) The attorney-in-fact is required to attach the following documents with certified true copies of the authorized representatives(s): 
a. Certified true copies of ID card (Thai Individual) or 
b. Certified true copies of Company Registration and Company Certification (Thai Juristic Person) or 
c. Certified true copies of passport or alien certificate (Foreign Individual) 

4) In case that the grantor and/or attorney-in-fact is foreign juristic person the true copies of corporate affidavit, certificate of Incorporation, passport or alien 
certificate must be certified by the notary public officer and Thai embassy or Thai consulate in the country where the documents were prepared not more 
than 12 months prior to the last day of the Offer Period. 

Stamp Duty* 
10 Baht or 

30 Baht 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 3 

Tender Offer Revocation Procedures and Forms 
 

Attachment 3.1 Tender Offer Revocation Procedures 

Attachment 3.2 Tender Offer Revocation Form 

Attachment 3.3 Power of Attorney for Revocation of Tender Offer 
 

  



  
Attachment 3.1 

For Holders of Ordinary Shares and NVDR 
 

Tender Offer Revocation Procedures 
 

Shareholders of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited (“the Business”) 

 
 

1. Complete the Tender Offer Revocation Form for Securities (Attachment 3.2) and enclose receipt of Share Certificate(s) / 
Transfer Slip and Tender Offer Acceptance Form for Thai Rayon Public Company Limited. Enclose cash for securities transfer 
fee of Baht 100 per transfer. 

 
2. Enclose the following supporting documents with certified as true copy, as the case may be: 

1) Thai Individual 
- A certified true copy of a valid Identification Card or 
- A certified true copy of a valid Civil Servant Identification Card or State Enterprise Employee Card. In case of the 

card does not state the Identification Card no., a certified true copy of house registration is also required. 
2) Foreign Individual 

- A certified true copy of a valid Passport or Alien Certificate. 
3) Thai Juristic Person 

3.1 A copy of the Company Affidavit, issued by the Ministry of Commerce not more than 6 months prior to the final day 
        of the Tender Offer Period, together with company seal (if any) and certified true copy by authorized signatory(ies). 
3.2 A copy of documents as specified in 1) or 2), as the case may be, of the authorized director who certified true copy 

of document in 3.1) above 
4) Foreign Juristic Person 

4.1 A copy of Certificate of Incorporation and an Affidavit issued by the officer of the juristic person or the government 
authority of the country in which the juristic person is established, certifying the name of the juristic person, the 
name of the authorized signatory, the location of the head office and conditions of signing authorization (issued not 
more than 12 months prior to  the day to submit Tender Offer Revocation Form), certified true copy by the 
authorized directors of the juristic person together with company seal (if any)   

4.2 A copy of documents as specified in 1) or 2), as the case may be, of the authorized director who certified true copy 
of document in 4.1) above 

Document in 4.1) and 4.2) must be certified by the notary public officer and the Royal Thai Embassy or the Royal Thai 
consulate in the country where the documents are prepared and all documents which are issued not more than 12 
months prior to the last day of the Tender Offer Period. 

In case of security holder’s authorized representative 
1. Power of Attorney affixed with Baht 10 or 30 stamp duty (as the case may be) (Attachment 3.3) 
2. Certified true copy of identification documents of security holder and the attorney-in-fact as specified above 

  

3. Kindly submit all documents to: Khun Patraporn Taeprajit, Wirunyupa Sriha, Supapun Piboonlaksanalerd,  
Pathom Thitapura and Srithong Laykhean Operation Department,  

DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited 
989 Siam Piwat Tower Building, 14th  Floor Rama I Rd, Pathum Wan District, Bangkok 10330 

Tel: +66 2 857 7000 ต่อ 7567, 7548, 7559, 7557 ;  7808 Fax: +66 2 658 1366 E-mail: dbsvthops@th.dbs.com  
“Surya Kiran Investment Pte. Ltd. and The Tender Offer Agent will not accept documents sent by mail”



Attachment 3.3 
For holders of ordinary share and NVDR 

Tender Offer Revocation Form 

Tender Offer Revocation Form 

To :  Surya Kiran Investment Pte. Ltd. (the “Tender Offeror”) and   Date                                                           . 
        DBS Vickers (Thailand) Company Limited (the “Tender Offer Agent”)  No                                                             .                                
I/We (Mr./Mrs./Miss/Company/Others)                                                                                      Nationality                                       Date of Birth                             .                                                           

Tax Payer ID No                                                               Contact Address (that can be reach via mail) / In case you are not Thai nationality and do not have Thai address, 
please fill current foreign address                                                                                                                                       Road                                                .                                     

District                                                 Sub District                                                .Country                                               Postal Code                                       .       

Contact Telephone                                                          .Facsimile                                                          Email                                                                          .                                        
Address on Identification Card    same as above    different from above (Please specify)                                                                                                               .               

                                                                                                                                                                                   Postal Code                                         .    

Hereby revoke the intention to sell the securities of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited, subject to the terms and conditions stated in the Tender Offer documents. 

  Ordinary Shares                                                                                                                    Amount                                                                                                     Shares 

  Non-Voting Depository Receipt (“NVDR”)                                                                            Amount                                                                                                      Units 

I/We submitted the Tender Offer Acceptance Form for securities of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited of the Tender Offeror on (date)                                                             .                                                                                                             
Acceptance Form No                                                                                                                  .  

I/We agree to receive the returned ordinary shares or NVDR of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited by having either one of the following actions taken: 

  Scripless or NVDR by transferring of returned securities via Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited (“TSD”) to Participant Name (name of broker)                                                
                                                                                  Participant No.                                                                                                                     . to deposit those securities with 

         TSD for Trading Account No.                                                                                              Trading Account Name                                                               

  Share Certificate by returning securities in certificate form which will become available for collection on the next business day at DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company 
Limited after the day I/We submitted the Tender Offer Revocation. (For the case where the tendered shares are in certificate from) 

I/We have enclosed fees of Baht 100 per item for transfer of securities 

DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited will transfer the securities to trading account or available for collection certificate within the business day after the Offeree or its 
attorney submitted Tender Offer Revocation Form. 
 
I/We hereby agree to accept all terms and conditions stated in the Tender Offer  
 
 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

Receipt of Tender Offer Revocation Form 

Date                                                                                                                                                     Revocation Form No                                                               .                                                                                                                                         
DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited as the tender Offer Agent has received Tender Offer Revocation Form of securities of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited for: 
 Ordinary Shares                                                                                                            Amount                                                                              Shares 
 Non-Voting Depository Receipt (“NVDR”)                                                                    Amount                                                                              Units 
from (Mr./Mrs./Ms./Company/Others)                                                                                                                                                The securities will be returned to the Offeree by way of: 
 Share Certificate by returning securities in certificate form at DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited (For the case where the tendered shares are in certificate 

from) 
 Scripless or NVDR by transferring of returned securities via Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited (“TSD”) to Partic ipant Name (name of broker)                           .                                                                                                         

                                                                                      Participant No                                                                                                                            to deposit those securities 
with TSD for Trading Account No                                                                                                                  Trading Account Name                                                                          

 Sign                                                                           Agent Authorizer 

For more information please contact; Khun Patraporn Taeprajit, Wirunyupa Sriha, Supapun Piboonlaksanalerd, Pathom Thitapura and Srithong Laykhean  
Operation Department, DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited  989 Siam Piwat Tower Building, 14th  Floor Rama I Rd, Pathum Wan District, 

Bangkok 10330 Tel: +66 2 857 7000 ต่อ 7567, 7548, 7559, 7557 ;  7808 Fax: +66 2 658 1366 E-mail: dbsvthops@th.dbs.com 

      Sign                                                                            Offeree or Attorney-in-fact 
                (                                                                        )   
        Date                                                                              . 



Attachment 3.3 
For holders of ordinary share and NVDR 

 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 
For Revocation of Tender Offer 

 

 
  Made at                                                      . 
  Date                                                           . 

          
I / We                                                                                                                                                             Age                                                 .                            
Nationality                               .            Date of Birth                                          ID Card No. / Passport No                                                            
Resides at (address that can be reached by mail / In case you are not Thai nationality and do not have Thai address, please fill current 
foreign address)                                                                                                                                                                                                   ..                                                                                  
                                                                                                    Zip/Postal Code                                   Country                                                  . 
hold(s)                                                                                        shares/NVDRs of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited 
hereby authorize (Mr. / Miss / Mrs.)                                                                                                     Age                   Nationality                                              
ID Card No. / Passport No.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Resides at (address that can be reached by mail) / In case you are not Thai nationality and do not have Thai address, please fill current 
foreign address                                                                                                                            . 
                                                                                                   Zip/Postal Code                                    Country                                                  .                                                
 

to act as my/our attorney to revoke the tender offer for securities of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited and to be authorized to do and 
execute all such other matter in connection with the afore mentioned on my behalf until the completion. 

Any act taken by my/our attorney shall be deemed to be taken by myself/ourselves in every respect. 
 

Sign  Grantor 
 (                                                )  
   

Sign  Attorney-in-fact 

 (                                               )  
   

Sign  Witness 
 (                                                )  
   

Sign  Witness 
 (                                                )  

 

Notes:   
1) A power of attorney executed with 10-THB stamp duty affixed in case of authorizing to perform the submission of Tender Offer Acceptance 

Form for of the Ordinary Shares or receiving a cheque for the payment of ordinary shares only, or 30-THB stamp duty affixed in case of authorizing to perform 
both the submission of Tender Offer Acceptance Form of the Ordinary Shares and receiving a cheque for the payment of ordinary shares 

2) The grantor is required to attach the following documents with certified true copies of the authorized representatives(s): 
a. Certified true copies of ID card (Thai Individual) or 
b. Certified true copies of Company Registration and Company Certification (Thai Juristic Person) or 
c. Certified true copies of passport or alien certificate (Foreign Individual) 

3) The attorney-in-fact is required to attach the following documents with certified true copies of the authorized representatives(s): 
a. Certified true copies of ID card (Thai Individual) or 
b. Certified true copies of Company Registration and Company Certification (Thai Juristic Person) or 
c. Certified true copies of passport or alien certificate (Foreign Individual) 

4) In case that the grantor and/or attorney-in-fact is foreign juristic person the true copies of corporate affidavit, certificate of Incorporation, passport or alien 
certificate must be certified by the notary public officer and Thai embassy or Thai consulate in the country where the documents were prepared not more 
than 12 months prior to the last day of the Offer Period. 

  

Stamp Duty* 
10 Baht or 

30 Baht 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 4 

Form for Declaration of Cost of Tendered Securities 

(For Foreign Juristic Person who is not exempted from withholding tax) 



Attachment 4 

 
Form for Declaration of Cost of Tendered Securities  

(For Foreign Juristic Person who is not exempted from withholding tax) 
 

Date                                                    . 
 
To: DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited (the “Tender Offer Agent”) 
  
  I/We                                                                                                                       Nationality                                   
Tax Identification No. (if any)                                                                                                                                                              .                                                                                                      
would like to declare the cost of our shares/NVDR of Thai Rayon Public Company Limited, which are the securities being 
offered hereto as follow: 
 

Share certificate no. / 
Transfer slip no. 

Name of securities holders as 
appeared in the Registration 

No. of ordinary share 
or No. of NVDR units 

Cost of share (Baht) 

    

    

    

 Total   
  
  I/We hereby, attached                                                                                                 a total of                                          .          
as evidence(s) of cost for withholding tax calculation. 
 

I/We hereby certify that the above statements are true. 
 
 

Sign  Offeree 

 (                                            )  
 

Note: Foreign Juristic Person has to declare cost of shares by submitting the Form for Declaration of Cost of Tendered Securities 
with the evidence of such cost. If this form is submitted with proper evidence of the cost basis, only the Offeree’s gain on the 
sale (if any) will be subject to withholding tax. If the form is not submitted or proper evidence of the cost basis is not attached 
with the form, the withholding tax will be imposed on the entire proceeds of the sale instead of the capital gains. 

  



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Attachment 5 

Request Form for Amending securities holder records 

 

  

 

 



 

 

 
       

            I/We        national I.D. card/passport/company Registration no.     

hereby request the Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. (“TSD”) amend the following information pertaining to myself. 

Type of information Previous information Amended information 

  Honorific (Mr./Mrs./Miss)   
  First  name - last name   
  For general contacts 

 
  

  

  

   Address for sending  proxy form 
and the meeting invitation to 
shareholders (Principal address)                                               
In case of holding shares as  at the date 
of XM book closing 

  Use the amended address as above 

   Specify the address*               

                                                         

*To be effective for selecting Principal address, your specified address must be the same as the address 
which you previously registered with TSD or Broker/Custodian.  

  Postal code   
  Home/Office telephone No.   
  Mobile phone/Fax No.   
  email address   
  Other..........................................   

 

     To be effective in time for the book closing date, TSD must receive all documentation at least five working days prior to such date. If the securities    
holder has deposited the securities in question with his/her broker/custodian, the securities holder should contact that broker/custodian. 

     The given above mailing address must be able to receive documents and must not be a post office number.  
I/ We hereby certify that the aforementioned statements are complete and true. Should TSD incur any direct or indirect damage, obligation or  

expense due  to complying with my request as given above, I/we shall be fully responsible and shall unconditionally compensate TSD in full. 

 

 

  Signature     Securities holder 

               (      ) Phone no.                                  
 (If a proxy has been assigned, please sign as both the securities holder and the grantor.)       

         
 

    I/We here by authorize    as my/our representative, with full authority to file this application. 

Signature           Grantor           Signature            Grantee      

              (          )                                     (           ) Phone no.        

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

For official use only 

Date      Transaction no.  Checker                      
  I have already checked all original identification documents 

      Signature     Officer 

Revenue 
stamp 
THB 10  

 

TSD-301 

  Please turn page over for list of required documents 

 

 

Amending securities holder records     



 

 

 
1. Application for amending securities holder records signed by securities holder. 
2. If requesting a change name/ surname, please attach the original share certificate and a copy of the certificate showing a change of 

name or surname or marriage or divorce certificate as the case may be. 
3. Identification documents, according to the type of person. In case of other individuals, please contact SET Contact Center as shown 

at the bottom of the form. 
 

 
  

  Type of person Documents to support request to change name/ surname Documents for other types of requests 

Individual person 
- Thai Nationality 

1. By Self-contact 
    - The original of the person’s Thai national I.D. card.   
2. By Person authorized 
    - The original and a copy of the person’s Thai national I.D. card, certified true with an original  
      signature.  
     * If the original of the person’s Thai national I.D. card cannot be shown,  please attach the  
       original of the document issued by the sub-district or district office to use instead of the original Thai  
       Thai national I.D. card, certified within the past 90 days, as the case may be. 
3. By Registered mail 
    - A copy of the person’s Thai national I.D. card, certified true with an original signature. 
 

- A copy of the person’s Thai national  
  I.D. card, certified true with an original  
  signature. 
 

Individual person 
- Other Nationalities 

- The original  and a copy of the signatory’s alien identity card or passport, certified true with an  
  original signature.  
* If the original passport cannot be shown or the documents are being submitted by registered mail,  
  - The copy of the passport has to been certified by a notary public, and both the copy and notary 
    public stamp certified by the Thai embassy or consulate  within the past 12 months before being  
    submitted to TSD. 

- A copy of the signatory’s alien identity  
  card or passport, certified true with  
  an original signature.  
 

Juristic person 
- Thai Nationality 

1. A copy of the juristic person certificate issued by the Ministry of Commerce within the past 12 months, with the original signatures  
   of directors   authorized to represent the company or their representatives, following the company’s conditions. 
2. A copy of the national I.D. card/alien identity card/passport of directors who are authorized to represent the company, certified true 
    with original signatures. 

Juristic person 

- Other Nationalities 

1. A copy of the company’s registration certificate issued by the regulating government agency. 
2. A copy of the juristic person’s affidavit of incorporation showing directors authorized to bind the company and conditions relating thereto,  
   showing the company’s headquarters location and authority of the signatory. This affidavit must be issued by an authorized official of the  
   juristic person or the government agency having jurisdiction over the juristic person. 
3. A copy of the passport or other official identity document of each authorized director signing this document, certified true with an original  
   signature. 
All documents for “Other Nationalities” above, must have been : 
(1) The notary public or any competent authority in the country where such documents were prepared or certified correct, shall certify             
     the signature of the person who prepared such documents, or who certified the accuracy of such documents.                                              (2) 
(2) An official of the Thai Embassy or Thai Consulate in the country where such documents were prepared or certified correct,                    
     shall certify the signature and the seal of the notary public or any other authority which performed the act under (1).                                                                             
(3) Certified within the past 12 months before being submitted to TSD.  
(4) Translated into English if necessary. 
 

 Documents to be submitted for amending securities holder records 

 

 

 



 
 

Attachment 6 

Securities Transfer to/from Issuer Account with Participant 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Please turn page over for list of required documents                                                                                                                     
Required Documents  (Please turn over)  

 

 

 

For official use only 
Date     
Transaction no.   
Checker    
 

 

  
                                                                                

I/We      would like to transfer securities of mutual fund or company       

for a total of   shares/units amount in letters          shares/units. The securities are being transferred 

  From issuer account to broker/custodian account          From broker/custodian account to issuer account       
 
• Broker or custodian name 

            

• Customer account name 

                                                                                                              

• Customer account no.  

            

 
 
        Signature         Securities Holder 
                   (       ) 
                        Phone no.       

Information on securities holder: 
• National I.D. card/Passport/Company Registration No.        
  Nationality   Mobile Phone   E-mail     
 Mailing address        Postal code   
   Individual Person 

1. Born in the U.S./U.S.Citizen                                                           Yes  No 
2. U.S. dual nationality                                                                     Yes  No 
3. Permanent Resident in U.S.                                                           Yes  No 

   Juristic Person 
1. U.S. entity, registered or has been incorporated in the U.S.                  Yes  No 

(If “yes”, Please complete form W-9) 
2. Financial institution under the definition of FATCA                              Yes  No 

(Please specify      ⃝ PFFI,      ⃝ RDCFFI) 

Its GIIN Number is ... 
3. a Passive NFFE (If “yes”, Please complete form W8-BEN-E)                     Yes  No 

Passive NFFE is an entity who either, has earned passive income equal to or more than 50% of total gross income, or held asset that 
generate passive income equal to or more than 50% of total asset, in the preceding fiscal calendar year       
In addition, I/We acknowledge that TSD may appear in this document disclosure to the organization having agreement with TSD  

and/or Government agencies that have the legal power to request such information. 
    I/ We agree to notify and provide relevant documents to TSD within 30 days after any change in circumstances that causes 

the information provided in this form to be incorrect, or after the date that TSD has requested for additional document/ information/ 

consent. 

 
 

Signature       Securities holder 
                                 (                               ) 

From broker or custodian to TSD 
                   I/We     participant no.   have verified all documents and evidence submitted for the issuer’s securities transfer and certify that the aforementioned statements are 
complete and true. Should TSD incur any direct or indirect damage, obligation or expense due to complying with my request as given above. I/We shall be fully responsible and shall unconditionally compensate TSD in full.    
                                     

   Signature      Authorized person 
                                                                (       ) 

TSD-403 Securities transfer to/from issuer account with participant 



 

 

  

 

1. Application for securities transfer to/from the issuer account signed by securities holder. 
2. Identification documents of the securities holder, according to the type of person. In case of other individuals, please contact SET Contact Center as shown at the bottom of the form. 

 
Type of person Submitted documents for securities transfer to / from the issuer account 

Individual Person 
- Thai Nationality 

-  A copy of the person’s Thai national I.D. Card, certified true with an original signature. 
 

Individual Person 
- Other Nationalities 

-  A copy of the signatory’s alien identity card or passport, certified true with an original signature. 

Juristic Person 
- Thai Nationality 

1. A copy of the juristic person certificate issued by the Ministry of Commerce  within the past 12 months, with the original signatures of directors authorized to represent the company or their  
   representatives, following the company’s conditions. 

2. A copy of the national I.D. card/alien identity card/passport of directors who are authorized to represent the company, certified true with original signatures. 

Juristic Person 
- Other Nationalities 

1. A copy of the company’s registration certificate issued by the regulating government agency. 
2. A copy of the juristic person’s affidavit of incorporation showing directors authorized to bind the company and conditions relating thereto, showing the company’s headquarters location and authority  
   of the signatory. This affidavit must be issued by an authorized official of the juristic person or the government agency having jurisdiction over the juristic person. 
3. A copy of the passport or other official identity document of each authorized director signing this document, certified true with an original signature. 
All documents for “Other Nationalities” above, must have been : 
(1) The notary public or any competent authority in the country where such documents were prepared or certified correct, shall certify the signature of the person who prepared such documents, or who  
     certified the accuracy of such documents.                                           
(2) An official of the Thai Embassy or Thai Consulate in the country where such documents were prepared or certified correct, shall certify the signature and the seal of the notary public or any other 
     authority which performed the act under (1).   
(3) Certified within the past 12 months before being submitted to TSD.  
(4) Translated into English if necessary. 
 

 
  

Documents to be submitted for securities transfer to/from the issuer account 
 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 7 

List of Participants of Securities Depository Service 
 

 

 

 

 



Attachment 7 

   BROKER    
Participant No.  Company Name  Participant No. Company Name 

002 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยท์ิสโก ้จ ำกัด  032 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยเ์คทีบี (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด (มหำชน) 
 TISCO SECURITIES COMPANY LIMITED   KTB SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

003 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์คนัทร่ีกรุ๊ป (มหำชน) จ ำกัด  034 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยฟิ์ลลิป (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด (มหำชน) 
 COUNTRY GROUP SECURITIES PUBLIC CO., LTD.   PHILLIP SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

004 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์ดีบีเอสวิคเคอรส์ (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด  038 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยเ์ออีซี จ ำกัด (มหำชน) 
 DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (THAILAND) CO., LTD.   AEC SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

005 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยแ์ลนด ์แอนด ์เฮำ้ส ์จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  048 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยไ์อร่ำ จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  
 LAND AND HOUSES SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   AIRA SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

006 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์ภทัร (มหำชน) จ ำกัด  050 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์เอเอสแอล จ ำกัด  
 PHATRA  SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   ASL SECURITIES COMPANY LIMITED  

007 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยซ์ีจีเอส-ซีไอเอ็มบี (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด  051 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยเ์อสบีไอ ไทย ออนไลน ์จ ำกัด 
 CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (THAILAND) COMPANY LIMITED   SBI THAI ONLINE SECURITIES COMPANY LIMITED 

008 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์เอเซีย พลัส จ ำกัด  052 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยจ์ีเอ็มโอ-แซดคอม (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด 
 ASIA PLUS SECURITIES COMPANY LIMITED   GMO-Z  COM SECURITIES (THAILAND) LIMITED 

010 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยเ์มอรริ์ล ลินช ์(ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด  200 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์เมยแ์บงกกิ์มเอ็ง (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด (มหำชน) 
 MERRILLl LYNCH SECURITIES (THAILAND) LIMITED   MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

011 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์กสิกรไทย จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  211 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยยู์บีเอส (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด 
 KASIKORN SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   UBS SECURITIES (THAILAND) LTD.  

013 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์เคจีไอ (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  213 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยเ์อเชีย เวลท ์จ ำกัด  
 KGI SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   ASIA WEALTH SECURITIES COMPANY LIMITED 

014 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์โนมูระพฒันสิน จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  221 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์เมอรช์ั่นพำรท์เนอร ์จ ำกัด (มหำชน) 
 CAPITAL NOMURA SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   MERCHANT PARTNERS SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

015 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์คิงสฟ์อรด์ จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  224 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยบ์วัหลวง จ ำกัด (มหำชน) 
 KINGSFORD SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   BUALUANG SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

016 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยธ์นชำต จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  225 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยซ์ี แอล เอส เอ (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด 
 THANACHART SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   CLSA SECURITIES (THAILAND) LTD. 

019 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์หยวนตำ้ (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด  229 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยเ์จพีมอรแ์กน (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด 
 YUANTA SECURITIES (THAILAND) COMPANY LIMITED   JPMORGAN SECURITIES (THAILAND) LIMITED 

022 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์ทรีนิตี ้จ ำกัด  230 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์โกลเบล็ก จ ำกัด  
 TRINITY SECURITIES CO., LTD.    GLOBLEX SECURITIES COMPANY LIMITED 

023 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยไ์ทยพำณิชย ์จ ำกัด  244 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์แมคควอรี (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด 
 SCB SECURITIES COMPANY LIMITED   MACQUARIE SECURITIES (THAILAND) LIMITED 

026 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยยู์โอบีเคยเ์ฮียน (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  247 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์เครดิต สวิส(ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด 
 UOB KAY HIAN SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   CREDIT SUISSE  SECURITIES (THAILAND) LTD. 

027 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยอ์ำรเ์อชบี (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  248 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์เคทีซีมิโก ้จ ำกัด  
 RHB SECURITIES (THAILAND) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   KT ZMICO SECURITIES COMPANY LIMITED 

029 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยก์รุงศรี จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  924 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยฟิ์นนัเซีย ไซรัส จ ำกัด (มหำชน) 
 KRUNGSRI SECURITIES  PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   FINANSIA SYRUS SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

030 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์ไอ วีโกลบอล จ ำกัด (มหำชน)     
 I V GLOBAL SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED     

   SUB-BROKER   

Participant No.  Company Name  Participant No. Company Name 

236 ธนำคำร ทิสโก ้จ ำกัด (มหำชน)   243 บริษัทหลกัทรพัยเ์พื่อธุรกิจหลกัทรพัย ์จ ำกัด (มหำชน) 
 TISCO BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   TSFC SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

242 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์ซิตีค้อรป์ (ประเทศไทย) จ ำกัด  245 ธนำคำรธนชำต จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  
 CITICORP SECURITIES (THAILAND) LIMTED   THANACHART BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

   CUSTODIAN   

Participant No.  Company Name  Participant No. Company Name 

301 ธนำคำรซิตีแ้บงกเ์อ็น.เอ. (CUSTODY SERVICES)  329 ธนำคำรทหำรไทย จ ำกัด (มหำชน) 
 CITIBANK N.A. - CUSTODY SERVICES   TMB BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

302 ธนำคำรไทยพำณิชย ์จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  330 ธนำคำรฮ่องกงและเซี่ยงไฮแ้บงกิง้คอรป์อเรชั่น จ ำกัด (เพื่อตรำสำรหนี)้ 
 THE SIAM COMMERCIAL BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   THE HONGKONG AND SHANGHAI BANKING CORP.,LTD.BKK.-BOND 

303 ธนำคำรกรุงเทพ จ ำกัด (มหำชน) – ผู้รบัฝำกทรพัยสิ์น  334 บริษัทหลกัทรพัย ์เพื่อธุรกิจหลักทรพัย ์จ ำกัด (มหำชน) (คสัโตเดีย้น) 
 BANGKOK BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED-CUSTODY   TFSC SECURITIES PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED - CUSTODIAN 

304 ธนำคำรฮ่องกงและเซี่ยงไฮแ้บงกิง้ คอรป์อเรชั่น จ ำกัด  336 ธนำคำรเกียรตินำคิน จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  
 THE HONGKONG AND SHANGHAI BANKING CORPORATION, LTD. BKK.   KIATNAKIN BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

305 ธนำคำรกรุงไทย จ ำกัด (มหำชน)   337 ธนำคำรทหำรไทย จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  
 THE KRUNG THAI BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   TMB BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

308 ธนำคำรกสิกรไทย จ ำกัด (มหำชน)   339 ธนำคำร ทิสโก ้จ ำกัด (มหำชน) (เพื่อรบัฝำกทรพัยสิ์น) 
 KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   TISCO BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (CUSTODIAN) 

312 ธนำคำรสแตนดำรด์ชำรเ์ตอรด์ (ไทย) จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  340 ธนำคำร เจพีมอรแ์กน เชส (เพื่อคำ้ตรำสำรหนี)้ 
 STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (THAI) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   JPMORGAN CHASE BANK (BOND TRADING) 

316 ธนำคำรไอซีบีซี (ไทย) จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  343 ธนำคำรซีไอเอ็มบี ไทย จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  
 INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (THAI) PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   CIMB THAI BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMTED 

320 ธนำคำรดอยซแ์บงก ์เอจี สำขำกรุงเทพฯ - เพื่อรบัฝำกทรพัยสิ์น  345 ธนำคำรธนชำต จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  
 DEUTSCHE BANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT BANGKOK BRANCH - CUSTODY SERVICES   THANACHART BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 

328 ธนำคำรกรุงศรีอยุธยำ จ ำกัด (มหำชน)  425 ธนำคำรกรุงไทย จ ำกัด (มหำชน) (เพื่อลกูคำ้) 
 BANK OF AYUDHYA PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED   KRUNG THAI BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (FOR CUSTOMER) 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 8 
 

Map of DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited 
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Map of DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited 

Tender Offer Agent 
 
 

 
 

Address : DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Co.,Ltd. 989 Siam Piwat Tower Building, 14th Floor, 
Rama I Road, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330, THAILAND 

Telephone  : +66 2 857 7000 

Facsimile  : +66 2 857 7777 

E-mail address : dbsvthops@th.dbs.com 
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and its subsidiaries

Registration Number: 200704427H
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Directors ' statement

We are pleased to submit this annual report to the members of the Company together with the
audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

in our opinion:

(a) the financial statements set out on pages FSl to FS81 are drawn up so as to give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 March 2021
and the financial perfonnance* changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year
ended on that date in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act,
Chapter 50 and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards; and

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will
be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due,

TITe Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these financial statements
for issue.

Sury@ Kirin, Impertinents I've. Lid.
@"di, s s"foali@ries

Direc!ors' slate, "e"I

year e, ,ded 3Z Morel, 2021

Directors

The directors in office at tlie date of this statement are as follows:

Manish Kumar Tinrewal

Kumar Mangalam BITla
Deepak Kumar Khandelwal
Namrata Goyal

Directors' interests

According to the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Companies
Act, Chapter 50 (the Act), no director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests
in shares, debentures, warrants or share options of the Company, or of related corporations, either
at the beginning of the financial year or at the end of the financial year.

Neither at the end of, nor at any lime during the financial year, was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the director of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.



Share options

During the financial year, there were:

(i) no options granted by the Company and its subsidiaries to any person to take up unissued
shares in Ihe Company and its subsidiaries; and

(ii) no shares issued by virtue of any exercise of option to take up unissued shares of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

As at the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company or its
subsidiaries under option.

Auditors

The auditors, Lau Chin Huat & Co, Chartered Accountants of Singapore, have indicated their
willingness to accept re-appointment.

51, ,y@ Kir@,, impes", rents Re, Ltd
a, ,d its s"bsidiaries

Directors' slate"lent

year e, Ided 31 MareJ, 2021

On behalf of the Board of Directors

' I^VIM'*,^^11"'
Manish Kumar Tibrewal

Direc!or

Deepak Kumar Khandelwal
Direc!or

I^^
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Independent auditors ' report

Members of the Company
Surya Kiran investments Pte, Ltd.

^! ^^. ^ ^.. ^-r ^ ^ .^- I^t
" ^n ;^: 4^' ' ' ' '

LAIT CHIN HITAT & co
Chartered Accountants of Singapore

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Surya Kimn investInGrits Pte. Ltd. ('the Company')
and its subsidiaries ('the Group'), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group and the statement of financial position of the Company as at 31 Marchi 2021 , the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and notes to tile
financial statements, including a sunnnary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages
FSl to FS81.

111 our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
statement of financial position of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the Act) and Financial Reporting Standards in
Singapore (F'RSs) so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2021 and of the consolidated
financial perfonnance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group
for the year ended on that date

Basisjbr Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ('SSAs'). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditors' responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional
Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities ('ACR, !\. Code') together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant'to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ACT^A Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Otherii!formation

Management is responsible for the other infonnation contained in the annual report. Other
infonnation is defined as all information in the annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditors' report thereon. .

We have obtained all other information prior to the date of this auditors' report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other infonnation and we do not
express any fomi of assurance conclusion thereon.

Lau Chin Huat & Co ( Unique Entity Number : S86PF0345L )
50 Havelock Road #02-767 Singapore ,60050 Tel : (65) 62223800 Fax : (65) 6222,855 Email : LCH@LCHNCO. coin. sg
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infonnation and, in doing so, consider whether the other infonnation is materialIy inconsistent
witli the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materialIy misstated. If, based on the work we have perfonned, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other inforrnation, we are required to report that fact, We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Re, $ponsibilzti^s of management and directorsjbr then"anciols!atomenis

Management is responsible for tlie preparation of financial statements that give a true and f^Iir
view in accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a
system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly
authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to pennit the preparation of true and fair
financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

impreparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing* as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors' responsibilities include overseeing the Group's financial reporting process

Auditors ' responsibilities for the audit of thennanci@! stalements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

^I^^.^-^.^^^^^
^ai ^n ^ 4^^ ^ ^ ^. r ^

LAD CHIN Hi. IAT & co
Chartered Accountants of Singapore

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism Into ughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and pertonn audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the overtide of internal controls.

. Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls.

Lau Chin Huat & Co ( Unique Entity Number : S86PF0345L )
50 Havelock Road #02-767 Singapore ,60050 Tel : (65) 62223BOO Fax : (65) 6222/855 Email : LCH@LCHNCO. coin. sg
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern

. Evaluate the overallpresentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infonnation of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and perfonnance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We coinmunicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including ally significant deficiencies in internal
controls that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

in our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company
and by those subsidiary corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are 111e auditors have
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

^I ^^. ^ ^,. ^-r ^ ^ ^ ^
^f ^n ;^: 4^' ^ ' " I'

LAIT CHIN HtIAT & co
Chartered Accountants of Singapore

I~".'

LAD CHm EUAT & co
Public Accountants and

Chartered Accountants

Singapore
1210T 2121

IC. ."'

Lau Chin Huat & Co ( Unique Entity Number : S86PF0345L )
50 Havelock Road #02-767 Singapore I 60050 Tel : (65) 62223800 Fax : (65) 6222,855 Email : LCH@LCHNCO. coin. sg

5



Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2021

(CMrre"cy. ^n UsDini"!b")

Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Trade and other receivables

Equity-accounted investees
Other financial assets

investment in subsidiaries
Other non-current assets

Deferred tax assets (neo
Non-current assets

invenlories
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Current tax assets
Other current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale

Current assets
Total assets

Equity
Equity share capital
Merger reserve
Other equity
Equity allributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest
Tnnal equily

Liabilities

Borrowings
Preference shares

Trade and other payables
Employee benefit obligations
Provisions
Other non-currentliabilities
Leaseliabilities

Deferred tax liabilities (neo
Non-currentliabililies

Borrowings
Preference shares

Trade and other payables
Employee benefit obligations
Provisions
Other currentliabilities
Lease liabilities
Current tax liabilities

Current nabimiies

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

S"ry" mm, , forest, ,, ants Re, Ltd.
and its $1, bsidi@F1e$

Fin",, etals, "terne", s

year errded 31 M@, of, 2021

The Group
2021 2020

3
3A

4
5
6
7

7A
7B

32

578.16
22.64

196.64
52.03
14.01

1,660.94
74059

12.42
1538

606.70
17.89

19447
91.49
1441

600.27
36669

15.06
8.54

The Company
2021 2020

9
6

7A

8
10

11

3,292.81

475.78
80/03
267.58

2.47
5318

37141

1,915.52

36341
718.88
484.47

11.50
58.32

282.39

1,971.45
16.11

191.16
502.52

1,987.56
5,280.37

1,918.97
12.70

693.68

68.47
502.52

100.50 100.50

(19907) (199.07)

1,931.67
3,847.19

931.32

364.31

570.9'

265.74 (1,072.17)
497.13

762.87

12
18
13
15

14

16
17
32

1.26

932.58

973.60

880.33

1,684.40
705.65

20.17
27.47

1.36
9.42

12.43
19.90

932.58

425.21

1,626.26

646.96)

0.87

881.20

100.50

(118.15)

1,679.15
729.00

33.44
40.37

1.15

11.30
1157
26.24

881.20

1,452.1,

(1765)

12
18
13
15

14

16
17

2,480.80

I00.50

(165.76)

17.65

1,073.33
29.00

81843
10.66
6.60

65.08
7.87

25.73

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

(65.26)

433.28
700.00

2,53222

(65.26)

1,311.61

556.15
8.71
4.37

47.67
3.68

29.74

380.08
729.00

2,036.70
4,517.50

1,133.28

5,280.37

47941
2900
2.03

1,961.93
4,494.15

1,109.08

3,847.19

40761

0.73

0.19
510.63

1,64391

1,626.26

003

408.37

1,517.45

1,452.1,

FSl



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: in UsD million)

Revenue from operations
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiary (Net)
Impainnent loss on financial assets
Impairment of non-financial assets
Total operating expenses

Results from operating activities

S"ry@ Kirint J, ,uusi, ,, e, ,is Pie. rid.
amd its 3,165idi@rtes

Fin",, cm! statements

Ye@r e, ,ded 31 M@rd, 2021

Share of profit/(loss) from equity-accounted investees
Other income

Finance income

Finance cost

Profit before taxes

Income tax expenses
Net profit/(loss) after tax

Note

19

21

The Group
20202021

6,069.33

(5,700.96)

22

23

39

24

25

368.37

6,886.69

(6,482.74)

(177.60)
(13.95)

0.30

( 15.50)
(4.98)

403.95

(174.50)
(15.50)

(211.73)

7

20

26

26

156.64

(12.94)
(5.69)

(208.63)

I 12.77

17.53

36.05

(89.02)

32

195.32

(72.32)
12.37

40.53

(143.02)
233.97

(33.70)
200.27

32.88

(6165)
(2877)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2021

(City, 'ei?cy. ' in UsD million)

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Items that are or may be redassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation differences - foreign
operations

Share of other comprehensive income of equity- accounted
investees

hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Defined benefit plans reineasurements - net of tax
Gains/(Losses) on fair valuation of invesinients
Total other comprehensive income

SMFy@ Xi'rin, huesl, ,, erais Pre. Ltd
a"d its s"bsidr"ties

Financial statements

year errded 3J March 2021

Total comprehensive income

Profit attributahle tm

Owners of the Group
Non"controlling interests

Note

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Group
Non-controlling interests

The Group
2021 2020

7

68.27

874.62

8.59

299.74

(96.19)

1,251.22

(344.22)

1,451.49

(8.07)
(473.29)

(921.77)

128.20

72.07

(950.54)

200.27

1,337,82
113.67

(102.72)
73.95

1.45 I, 49

08.77)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

(966.19)
15.65

(950.54)

FS3



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 March 2021

(Curre, icy, : in UsD intwin")

The Group

Balance as at I April2019, as previously stated
Prior year adjuslmenLs
Balance as at I April2019, as restated

Net (loss) after tax
01her comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Transaction with owners of the Group
Cash dividend

Acquisition of non-controlling interest
Contribution by non-controlling interest
Conversion of preference shares rights
Total contribution and distributions

Total transactions willI omiers of the Group

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Redeemable
non.

cumulative

Equity preference Currency
shares translation Othershare

capital reserves reserve reserves

100.50

100.50

3.38

3.38

(2906)
0.48

(2858)

Retained

earnings

Sin, y@ Kim" I"vest, ,, e, ,CS Pie, Ltd
amd ifs subsidiaries

Fin""tintst@, e, ,, e, ,!s

year ended 3J Mard, 2021

99.02

(3953)

99.02

(3953)

Fair value

reserve

100.50

(338)

130.09
102.72

3.38)

232.81

0.36

(338)

(102.72)
(347.92)

Merger

(296.34)

(450.64)

reserve

0.36

18.05

(296.34)

Tile accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

0.36

(6775)

18.05

(199.07)

(476.02)

(3273)

Total

(476.02)

18.05

(199.07)

Non-

controlling
interest

I 17.07

(3273)

(191.48)
103.20

(3273)

(88.28)

(250.56)

(102.72)
(863.47)

Total

equity

517.07

(966.19)

517.07

(772.36)

73.95

(5830)

325.59
103.20

(1432)

(338)

428.79

15.65

(199.07) (1,072.17)

(28.77)
(921.77)

(17.70)

(11.43)
(95.80)
(028)

(950.54)

(1770)

(107.51)

(11.43)
(110.12)

(028)
(3.38)

(107.51)

(125.2j)

425.21

(125.21)

(646.96)

FS4



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2021

(Curre"c, ,: in UsD million)

The Group

Balance as at I April2020

Net profit after tax
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Transaction with owners of the Group
Cash dividend

Deconsolidation of a subsidiary (Note 39)
Financial liability under option arrangemeni (Noie 29)
Tclal contribution and distributions

Change in ownership interest
Acquisition of non-controlling interests without
change in control
Transaction cost reversal on purchase of additional
slake in previous year
Total change in o1mersl"p interests

Total transactions with owners of the Group

Balance as at 31 March 2021

Redeemable
non-

cumulative

Equity preference Currency
share shares translation Other

capital reserve reservesreserves

100.50 (6775)

Retained

earrings

S", y@ Xir@" f, ,"est, ,, e, ,ts Pre. Ltd
mad its s"bsidi@, jus

Financial stole, ,, e, ,13

year eraded 31 Mard, 202r

17.97

11707

17.97

Fair value
reserve

(250.56)

(026)

12820
891.62

(0.26)

1,019.82

100.50

Merger
reserve

(772.36)

(011)

The accompanying notes fonn an integral part of these financial statements.

300.03

(0. I I )

300.03

( 1.42)

(199.07) (1,072.17)

( 1.42)

Total

(037)

Non-

controlling
interest

(5015)

1.80

0.08

128.20

1,209.62

117.07

1.88

1,337.82

Total

equity

42521

0.46

769.72

72.07
41.60

(646.96)

(0.26)

113.67

(1.42
(1.68)

200.27

1,251.22

(472.33)

(26.84)
(485)

1,451.49

1.69

0.08

3.13

(34.82)

(199.07)

(2684)
(5.1 I)

1.77

(700)

0.07

(455)
(3650)

0.09

265.74

(6.93)

(531)

0.15

(41.75)

49713

(5.16)

(41.66)

762.87
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Consolidated Statement or Changes in Equity (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2021

(Curre"cy. ^it UsD million)

A Share capital

Surya Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. 11as 100,500,001 ordinary share capital. All issued shares
are fully paid up, with 110 par value. Holders of these shares are entitled to dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the
Company.

Merger reserve

111 applying book value accounting in case of common control transaction, any difference
between the consideration paid and the capital of the acquiree is reflected in equity as merger

lB

C

reserve,

Suryc Kirin, hivestme, ,ts Pie. rid.
and its swimidi@ries

Nature and purpose of reserves

i Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings/(losses) at each
statement of financial position date of the Group, prepared in accordance with the basis
of preparation section.

it Currency translation reserve
Currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations included in these
financial statements.

Fin@"ci@1st@terne"Is

year ended 3Z March 2021

...

111 Other reserves

Other reserves mainly include legal reserve which represents amounts set aside for
subsidiaries in Korea and Egypt in compliance with local laws of those countries.

iv Fair value reserve

Fair value reserve represents the net fair value gain noss on equity instruments held by
the Company and its subsidiaries accumulated under other comprehensive income
which will not be reclassified to profit and loss,

Other comprehensive income accumulated in retained earnings, net of tax amounts to UsD
8.59 minion (2020: UsD 8.07 minion).

IV

D

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency. ' in UsD mill^^n)

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit/(loss) after tax
Adjustments to reconcile net profitr(loss) to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance income

Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiary (Net)
Share of (profityloss of equity-accounted investees
Loss on fair valuation of equity investtnents measured at FVTPL
Gain on sale of properly, plant and equipment
Finance cost

Tax expense
Impairment of non-financial assets
Impainnent loss on trade receivables
Dividend income

Other investment income

Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign currency translation
Interest income related to sales

Net measurement of derivative instruments

Sury@ Kim" I, ,verlme, ,is Pre. Ltd.
""d its s"bsitli@nor

Fin@,, cmlst@foments

year eraded 3J March 2021

Changes inn
(IncreaseyDecrease ill trade and otlier receivables
Decrease in other assets

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities
Increase in provisions

2021
The Group

2020

200.27

117.1 I

(3605)
(0.30)

(112.77)
4.61

(0.03)
69.05

33.70

4.98

18.05

(1683)
(0.10)
17.27

5.54

(2.45)

Net cash generated from operating activities before income
tax

Income taxes paid
Net cash generated by operating activities

(28.77)

Cash now from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and

intangibles
Investment in associate

Acquisition of subsidiary
Investment in compulsory convertible debenture
Purchase of investment securities

Investment in convertible proihissory note
Interest received

119.56

(3809)

72.32

(0.13 )
143.02

61.65

5.69

5.13

302.05

(0.04)
(1137)

15.46

7.77

(85.99)
3.82

(108.42)
259.35

14.98

1.60

352.20

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

67.97

31.78

90.57

( 187.22)
(6.63)
7.43

85.34

387.39

(43.30)
344.09

3.90

(41.08)

356.10

(73.95)

1.05

(54.62)

282.15

(102.57)
(5.98)
(2.50)
32.43

(102.64)

0.98

(177.87)
(397.81)

(566.86)

23.45
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency. ' in UsD million)

Dividend received

Purchase of intercorporate deposits
Proceeds on maturity of inter corporate deposits
Bank and other short tenn deposits redemptions; net of

placements
Sale of mutual funds and other invesiments (net of purchase)
Effect of deconsolidatioii of subsidiary (note 39)
Net cash generated front (used in) investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings
Advance from related party
Proceeds from borrowings
Interest paid
Interest paid on lease liabilities
Redemption of preference shares
Issue of preference shares
Proceeds from settlement of derivatives

Deferred loan fees paid
Dividend to non-controlling interests
Acquisition of shares from non-controlling interests
Payment of lease liabilities
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities

S"ryq Kirin, investme, ,ts Pie, Lrd.
and its s"hitdr"rtes

Financial statements

year e, ,ded 3Z Marc1,2021

The Group
2021 2020

17.63

(7014)
133.13

Net change ill cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
Effect of movement in eXchange rate on cash and cash

equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end (Note 10)

105.80

94.82

co. I5)

0.86

(268.49)
86.83

107.82

(1,078.63)
71.80

762.10

(87.24)
(1.41)

(883)
11.73

(1,398.65)

(1,327,73)
539.45

2,264,70
(101.27)

(1.05)
(25.00)
20.00

0.80

(22.91)
(11.43)

(110.12)
(6.01)

5.65

0.79

(0.29)
(26.82)
(515)
(603)

(365.23)

86.68

282.39

The accompanying notes forrn an integral part of these financial statements.

1,219.43

2.34

371.41

102.93

183.88

(4.42)
282.39
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Notes to the financial statements

These notes fomi an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 October 2021,

Reporting entity

Surya Kiran Investments Pre. Ltd. (the "Company") is a company incorporated in Singapore, The
registered office of the Company is located at 65 Chulia Street #48 - 05/08 0CBC Centre
Singapore 0495/3. The principal activity of the Company is that of an investment holding
company. There has been no significant change in the nature of the activity during the financial
year. The financial statements of the Group comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the "Group") and the Group's interest in equity-accounted investees.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards ("ERS"), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments (including derivative instruments), assets held for sale and
defined benefit plan assets which have been measured at fair values. Accounting policies have
been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements,
except where disclosed otherwise.

I

2

2.1

Suey" mina, naves!,,, era!s Pre. titt
rind its s"bsidi"ties

Fin@,, etcls, @terne, ,ts

year e"ded 3f Marelt 2021

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the entities within the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the respective entity operates
("the functional currency'*). These consolidated financial statements are presented in United
States Dollar 'UsD', which is the Company's functional currency. All financial information
presented in United States Dollar has been rounded to the nearest million* unless otherwisestated.
The functional currency of subsidiaries within the Group include the United States Dollar (UsD),
Thai Baht (THB), indian Rupees (INR), Korean Won, Hungarian Formt, Renminbi, Brazilian
Real, Canadian Dollar, Great Britain Pound and the Euro. An accounts have been rounded to the
nearest UsD million, unless otherwise indicated.

2.3 Use of judgment and estimates

in preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has madejudgments, estimates,
and assumptions that affect the application of Group accounting policies and reported amount of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Management believes that the estimates made in
preparation of the financial statements are reasonable. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed o11 an ongoing basis. Revision to
estimates are recognised prospectiveIy.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect to tlie carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are in duded in the following notes:
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a. Measurement of defined benefit obhgations - Note 30
b. Measurement of ECL allowance for trade receivables - Note 35

c. Measurement of net realisable value of Inventory and obsolete inventory - Note 9
d. Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies - Note 33
e. impairment of goodwill- key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections - Note 4

Changes in accounting policies2.4

New standards and amendments

The Group has applied the following ERSs, amendments to and interpretations of FRSs for the
first time for the annual period beginning on I April2020:

Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in ERS Standards
Definition of a Business (Amendments to ERS 103)
Definition of Matchal (funendments to ERS I and ERS 8)
interest Rate Benchmark Refonn (amendments to ERS 109, ERS 39 and ERS 107)

The application of these amendments to standards and interpretations does not have a material
effect on the financial statements.

2.5

(i)

S"ry" Kir@,, Invest", arts Pre. Ud
and its s"bsidi", tes

Find, ,eta! state, "e", s

Yeqr e"ded 31 March 202Z

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group, The Group controls an entity when it is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its control over the entity.

When deleimining voting Tights for the purpose of establishing the Group's degree of control over
a company and the appropriate consolidation method, potential voting rights are taken into
account where they can be freely exercised or converted at the time the assessment is determined.
Potential voting rights are instruments such as call options on ordinary shares outstanding on the
market or rights to convert bonds into ordinary shares.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries have been consolidated using the uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances as mentioned in the
policies.

Refer the note 40 with respect to the list of the entities which are consolidated as subsidiaries in
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Potential voting rights were considered in determining the Company' s control over one of its
subsidiaries, Bina Carbon (Thailand) Public Company Limited ("BCT"), which accrue through
call options exercisable at the discretion of Ski Carbon Black Mauritius Lintted (step down
subsidiary) within 3 years at prices based on fair value principle,

Non-controlling interests ("NCl")

NCl are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets at
the date of acquisition.

(ii)
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on)

Changes in the Group'sinterestin a subsidiary Inat do not resultin aloss of controlare accounted
for as equity transactions.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCl and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit orloss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value
when control is lost,

(iv) Investments in associates andjoint ventures (equity-accounted investees)

The Group's interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates.

Associates are tliose entities in which 111e Group has significantinfluence, but not control orjoint
control over the financial and operating policies.

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at
cost, whichincludes transaction costs, Subsequent tomitialrecognition, the consolidated financial
statements include the Group's share of the profit orloss and OCT of equity-accounted investees,
until the date on which significant influence ceases.

Refer to note 7 with respect 10 the list of entities which are equity-accounted as associates in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Sury" fir"" IP, "us, merits He. Ud
and 113 s"hinti@rtes

Find"Gin! state, "e"ts

yenr ended 31M"Fell 2021

(v) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

intra-group balances and transactions, and ally unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated, Unrealised gains arising from transactions witli equity-
accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in
the investGo. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of business is recognised when
the Group satisfies a performance obligation (PO) by transferring control of a promised good or
service to the customer. The amount of revenue recognised is the amount of tile transaction price
allocated to the satisfied PO.

2.6

The transaction price is allocated to each PO in the contract on the basis of the relative stand-
alone selling prices of the promised goods or services. The individual standalone selling price of
a good or service that has not previously been sold on a stand-alone basis, or has a highly variable
selling price, is deterTrimed based on the residual portion of the transaction price after allocating
the transaction price to goods and/or services with observable stand-alone selling prices. A
discount or variable consideration is allocated to one or more, but not all, of the PO if it relates
specifically to those POS.
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The transaction price is the amount of consideration in the contract to whicli the Group expects
to be entitled in eXchange for transferting the promised goods or services. The transaction price
may be fixed or variable and is adjusted for time value of money if the contract includes a
significant financing component. Consideration payable to a customer is deducted from the
transaction price if the Group does not receive a separate identifiable benefit from the customer.
When consideration is variable, 111e estimated amount is included in the transaction price to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal of the cumulative revenue will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved.

Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/arrangements witli the
customers as the service is pertonmed in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction
at the reporting date and the amount of revenue can be measured Tenably, net of indirect taxes, as
applicable.

2.7

Refe^ to note 19 for further information on accounting policies for revenue,

Finance income and finance cost

The Group's finance income and finance costs include:
. interest income;
' interest expense;
. dividend income;
. the net gain or loss on the disposal of debt investments valued at FVOCl; and
. the net gain or loss of financial assets at FVTPL,

S"tva Kir",, I, ,vestments Pre. Ud.
and its s"bstdt"ties

Find, ,cm! state, "e, ,!s

year ended 31 March 2021

Interest inconie or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. Dividend income is
recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Group' s right to receive payment is established.

Tile 'effective interest rate' is 111e Tale that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments orreceipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:
. the gross carrying amount of tlie financial asset; or
. the am onised cost of the financial liability.

in calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest Tale is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amonised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest incomeis calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the
gross basis.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, Subsequent costs are
included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future econoiulc benefits associated with the item will flow 10 the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and mainienance are charged to profit or loss
during the period in whicli they are incurred.

it significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment nave different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of assets carried at cost are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Depreciation is calculated on the cost of items of properly, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values using the straight-line method over inchr estimaied useful lives, and is generally
recognised in profit or loss. Leasehold properties are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative periods are
as follows:

20 - 60 years
5 - 25 years
3 - 12 years
3 - 10 years
4 - 8 years
16 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed ateach reporting date and adjusted
prospectiveIy if appropriate.

Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use are disclosed as "Construction work-in-
progress".

Bunding and improvenienis
Plant, machinery and equipment
Furniture

Office equipment
Vehicles

Shipping vessels

S"ry@ Xir",, investments Pie. Ltd.
and its s"bsidi@lies

ring, ,etclsl@!e, me, ,ts

year e"ofed 31 Morel, 202Z

2.9 Assets retirement obligation/decommissioning liability

The cost of property, plant and equipnient includes, where applicable, costs of its dismantlement,
removal or restoration, and any obligation which an entity incurs as a consequence of installing
the item. TITe cost of dismantlement, removal or restoration is depreciated based on the respective
life of asset. The Group estimates incremental cost for removal and disposal and any special
handling of materials that give rise to conditional asset retirement obligations ("ARO") and which
are then discounted back to the current year using a credit adjusted discount Tale.

The estimation of ARO is subject to a number of inherent uncertainties tliat include (a) the tiniing
of when any ARO may be incurred, (b) the ability to accurately identify and reasonably estimate
the costs of special handling or treatmeni, (c) the ability to access the relative probability of
different scenarios that could give rise to an ARO, and (d) other factors outside the Group' s
control, including change in regulation, costs, and interest rate.

2.10

(a)

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Goodwill@cq, ,tredi, , business cointbi, ,@nom

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
impainnent losses.

Rese@roll a"of development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Development
expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process
is technicalIy and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Group
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intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell tile asset,
Otherwise, it is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairingni losses.

01herinto, ,8thIe assets

Other intangible assets, including customer relationships, patents and trademarks, that are
acquired by the Group and have finite estimated useful lives are measured at costless accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The emission allowances received under the European Union ("EU") emissions trading system
("ETS") are considered as government grants in the nature of intangible assets. The intangible
assets and government grants are valued at zero cost in the case of the Group and accordingly, are
not recorded on the statement of financial position. To the extent the Group has adequate emission
allowances to meet its emission obligations, no provision is made in the books; provisions are
made in respect of any shortfall in errxission allowances,

(b) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditures are capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to whicli it relates. All other expenditures, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Amortisation(c)

Sury" Mr@,, investments Re. Ud,
a, Id its rubsidi@n'es

Find"eta! sinte, Rents

year e, ,ofed 3f Mare1,202Z

funoriisation is calculated to write off 1110 cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives* and is generally recognised
in profit or loss. Goodwill is not amortised. Indefinite-life intangible assets are not amortised but
tested for impairment annually. The amortisation peltod and the amortisation method for finite-
life intangible assets are reviewed at eacli financial year end and adjusted prospectiveIy, if
appropriate.

Developed technology, customer relationships and others
Software Technology

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of
impainment, If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impainnent testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the casli inflows of other assets
or casli generating units ("CGUs"). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to
CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use ("VIU") and its fair
value less costs to sell. VIU is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU,

5 - 10 years
3 - 5 years
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An impaimnent loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Impainnent losses are recognised in profit or loss, They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the CGU on a PTO rata basis.

An impaimient loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in the subsequent period. For other
assets* an impairrnent loss is reversed only to the extent that 111e asset' s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impainnent loss had been recognised.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly antibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
noressatily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes eXchange differences to the extent regarded
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.12

2.13

S", y" Kim" investments Pre. Ltd.
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Lease

The Group's lease assets classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Buildings and Plant &
Equipment. The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract.
A contractis, or contains, aleaseif the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in eXchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:
(i) Ihe contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset Ihrougli the
period of the lease and
(in) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease* the Group recognises a right-of-use asset ("ROU")
and a corresponding lease liability for an lease arrangements in whicli it is a lessee, except for
leases with a toun of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and leases of low value assets. For
these short-term and leases of low value assets, tlie Group recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the tenn of the lease. The right-of-use assets are
initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives.

They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impainnent losses, if
any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the cornmencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in 111e lease or* if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease liability is subsequently Tomeasured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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A lease liability is reineasured upon the occurrence of certain events sricli as a change in the lease
term or a change in an index or rate used to delerrinne lease payments. The reineasurement
nonnally also adjusts the leased assets,

Lease liability and ROD asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

2.14 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinuing operation

The Group classifies lion-current assets and disposal groups as "held for sale" if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Non~current assets held for sale/distribution to owners and disposal groups are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to selVdisttibute.

2.15

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/distrtbution to
owners are not depteciated or amonised.

co

Financial assets and financial liabilities

Sury" Kir", J, ,"artme, ars Pie. Ltd,
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Initial recognition and measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a parry to the contractual
provision of the instrument.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) or financial liability at its fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly aimbutable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
asset or liability. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Management determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial
recognition of the instrument or at the time of reclassification.

Fin""etal CSSe!s at am oatsed cost

A financial asset is measured at am ortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

. It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to correct contractual cash
flows; and

. Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt impertinents at FVOCf

A debt investrnent is classified as subsequently measured at FVOCl if both the following
conditions are met and the debt invesiment is not designated at FVTPL:
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. It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

. Its contractual ternis give rise on specified dates to can11 flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest ("Sppl") on the principal amount outstanding.

Eq"to, investme", s at FVOCl

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held-for-trading, the Group may
itrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCl. This
election is made on an investnient-by-investment basis.

Financial"ssets at FVTPL

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless it is nieasured at am ortised cost or at FVOCl on

initial recognition. The transaction costs directly antibutable to the acquisition of financial assets
and liabilities at FVTPL are innnediately recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

Derivative financial instruments are measured at FVTPL.

Non-derivative financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

S"ry" Kirinz I, ,vestments Pre. Ud.
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Firm, ,ci@Jussets at FVTFL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest
or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

rim",, cml assets at am or, ised cost

Tilese assets are subsequently measured at am o1tised cost using the effective interest method. The
am orrised cost is reduced by impaimient losses. Interest income, foreign eXchange gains and
losses and impainnent are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss,

Debl invest, "e"ts at FVOCl

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, foreign eXchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit orloss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCl are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity invest, "e"ts at FVOCt

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as incomein profit
or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost except for derivative
liabilities which are measured at F\/TPL.
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tin) Derecognitio, I

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, orit transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in WITicli substantially all of the risks and rewai'ds of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

(iv)

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the amounts and it intends to either settle them on a net basis or realise the asset and liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of nom-derivative financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses ("ECU') on financial instruments
measured at am orrised cost.

(v)

Sury" fir@" investments Pre. Lrd.
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TITe Group recognises lifetime expected losses for all trade receivables and contract assets. For
all other financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL or at an
amount equal to the life time ECL if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Wlien determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers historical experience, credit
assessments and forward looking infomiation,

it there has been a significant increase in credit risk the Group will measure the loss allowance
based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

The Group's trade receivables relate mainly to receivables arising from the sale of products. The Group
maintains a system of credit reviews starting with an initial internal review for new customers and
thereafter periodic reviews to assess credit-worthiness. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased sionificantly if it is more than 30 days past due except in case of trade
receivables wherein it considers amounts more than 180 days past due to have significantly increased
credit risk since based on the Group' s past experience and considering the nature of industry it operates
in and the customers it serves, it has generally collected amounts past due 30 days and less than 180
days.

At each reporting date, the Group calculates the ECL based on a 24 month review of pastimpairments,
future expectations based on information available at the balance sheet date and uses an industry
recognised report to assess the future of the Group' s customer base based on worldwide auto and tire
production,

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
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. The debtor is unlikely to pay its obligations in full* without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or

. The financial asset is more than 90 days past due (in case of trade receivables 180 days past due).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCl are credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data :

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

. a breacli of contract such as a default;

. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on tenns that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

. it is probable that the borrower wnl enter banki. upicy or other financial reorganisation; or

. The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group makes
an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery from amounts
written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities based on the procedures determined by the Group for recovery of amounts due.

S"ry" kira" furyestme, ,is Re. Lid
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(vi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and casli equivalents include cash on nand, tenn deposits witli banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments. To be classified as cash and cash equivalents, the financial asset must
be readily convertible into cash and have an insignificant risk of changes in value,

(vii) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services rendered in 111e
normal course of business. Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently,
these assets are lield at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

(vim) Trade payables

(ix)

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value, Subsequently these liabilities are held at
amorrised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial liability under option arrangement

Put options held by non-controlling interests in the Group's subsidiaries entitle the non-
controlling interest to sell their interest in the subsidiary to tlie Group, in such cases the Group
recognises the fair value of the non-controlling interest's put option as a financial liability, being
the present value of the estimated future purchase price, as a financial liability in the statement of
financial position. in raising this liability, the non-controlling interest is derecognised and any
excess or shortfall is charged or realised directly in retained earnings in the statement of changes
in equity.

The financial liability is fair valued at the end of each financial year and any changes in the value
of the liability as a result of changes in assumptions used to estimate the future purchase price are
recorded directly in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity.
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(x) Income on financial assets

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

2.16 Fair value measurements

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Tile Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair
values measurements* including Level3 fair values, and reports directly to the management.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
it third party infonnation, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values,
then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements ofFRS, including tlielevelin the fair value
hierarcliy in which the valuations should be classified.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair values are measured or disclosed in the financial statements

are categorised within the following fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level I - quoted prices (uriadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

. Level2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for tlie asset
or liability, either directly (i. e. as prices) or indirectly (i. e. derived from prices).

2.17

. Level3 - inputs for the asset or liability tliat are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is computed on a
weighted average basis. Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress include all costs of
purchases, conversion costs, and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. 111 case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost include an
appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal operating capacity. The net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the orents. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates
to an asset, it is recognised as income over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of
the benefit of the underlying asset.

2.18
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When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, tlie asset and the grant are recorded at
fair value amounts.

When loans or slimlar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is
regarded as a government grant.

2.19 Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, which will likely result in an outflow of resources, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are deteimined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. it there are a number of similar obligations,
the probability that there will be an outflow of economic benefits is detennined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole.

Amortisation of the discount is recognised as a finance cost

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
tlie existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that
arises from past events whereit is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
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2.20 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-tenn employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and 111e
obligation can be estimated Tenthly.

Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans represent a fixed contribution into a fund under which the Group has
no legal or constructive obligations to make future payments if the fund does not have sufficient
assets to pay all of the employee's entitlements to post-employment benefits. The obligations to
payment to sucli funds are recognised in profit orloss in the periods during which related services
are rendered by employees,

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are retirement plans under which amounts to be paid as retirement benefits
are deterTwined by reference to a formula usually based on employees' earnings and/or years of
service.

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan,
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The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method i. e. by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value
of any plan assets. To calculate the present value of econontic benefits, consideration is given to
any applicable minimum funding requirements.

The defined benefit plan surplus or deficit on the statement of financial position comprises the
total fair value of plan assets less 1110 present value of the defined benefit liabilities (using a
discount rate by reference to market yidds on government bonds at the end of the reporting
period).

Recognition of deft, ,ed bel, qjit cost

All the current service cost determined is charged to the profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the settlement occurs.
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The amount of net interest expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset is charged or credited to profit or loss.

Reineasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any* excluding
interest), are recognised ininlediately in OCT.

Assr, ,"prions

WillI the objective of presenting the assets and liabilities of the pensions and other post-
employment benefit plans at their fair value on the statement of financial position, assumptions
under PRS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date. The actuarial
assumptions used to calculate the benefit liabilities vary according to the country in which the
plan is situated.

2.21 Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Group, The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally nieasured at
fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Ally goodwill that arises is tested annually
for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity
securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation
to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as
equity, then it is not reineasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other
contingent consideration is reineasured at fair value at eacli reporting date and subsequent changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.
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If share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are required to be exchanged for awards
held by the acquiree's employees (acquiree's awards), then all or a portion of the amount of the
acquirer's replacement awards is included in measuring the consideration transferred in the
business combination. This determination is based on the market-based measure of the

replacement awards compared with 1110 market-based measure of the acquiree's awards and the
extent to which the replacement awards relate to pre-combination service.

As part of transition to FRS, the Group elected not to restate those business combinations tliat
occurred before the date of transition to FRS, i. e. I April 2017. Goodwill arising from
acquisitions before I April2017 has been carried forward from the previous ERS framework as
at tlie date of transition.

2.22 Income taxes

income tax on the profits of the year comprises both current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity
or in OCl.

Current tax
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Current tax is the expected tax payable on profits or tax receivable on losses, calculated on enacted
or substantively enacted rates as at the reporting date and any adjustment 10 the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years,

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and intend to seine on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between tlie carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

I. temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit orloss;

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates to the extent that tile
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

11.

111 . taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred lax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used.

Future taxable profits ate determined based on business plans for individual subsidiaries in the
Group and the reversal of temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised, Such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits
Improve.
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Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax nabitities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax nabitities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of Group
companies at the eXchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

2.23

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the eXchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the
eXchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the eXchange rate at the dale of the
transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign operations

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into UsD at the
rate of eXchange prevailing at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations
are translated at eXchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons,
the group uses a monthly average rate to translate income and expense items. The eXchange
differences arising o11 translation for consolidation are recognised in OCl. When a foreign
operation is disposed of such that control or significant influence is lost, the cumulative amount
in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation while retaining control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative
amount is Teattributed to NCl. Wlien the Group disposes of only part of its investment in an
associate that includes a foreign operation while retainino significant influence, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.24
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3 Property, plant and equipment

(Currency. ^" UsD million)

The Group

Cost

AllApri12019
Acquisitions pursuant to business

combination (Note 38)
Acquisitions
Disposals
Write-o1/11mpainnent loss
Asset held for sale

Translation difference

At 31 March 2020

At I April2020
Acquisitions
Disposals
Deconsolidaiion of a subsidiary (Note 39)
Asset held for sale
Translation difference

At 31Mareh 2021

FurniturePlant,
Building machinery and

officeand and

Land improvements equipment equipment

34.93 150.92

5.13

8.92

(1.05)

(002)
(945)

(0.83)
(1.55)
32.55

923.56

0.83

94.55

03.44)

32.55

154.45

Vehides

(431)
1.38

17.11

1.60

2.84

(090)

154.45

5.85

00.14)

29.62

(5315)
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Shipping
vessels

942.35

942.35
45.11

(972)

2.79

0.96

1.05

(0.99)

7.12

167.28

(112)
1953

Total

(A)

19.53

0.88

(2.13)
(0.04)

0.43

1,004.89

27.15

Construction
work-in-

progress
us)

19.28

0.67

(0.26)
3.55

1,129.31

27.80

108.03

06.38)

(0.85)
(65.53)

3.55

0.16

(0.62)
(0.05)

0.01

18.67

19.95

Total

(A + E)

79.35

19.95

3.05

1,172.38

(7.49)
0.45)
(5.69)

(4.44)

1,208.66

27.80

100.54

08.83)
6.69)
co, 85)

(69.97)

1,172.38
52.00

(12.61)
(0.09)
(4.31)
36.09

19.95

59.28

59.28

(9.90)

(1538)

2.29

1,243.46

1,231.66

1,231.66
42.10

(12.61)
(15.47)

(4.31 )
38.38

36.29 1,279.75
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CMrre, icy, .^, I UsD million)

The Group

Accumulated depreciation
and innpaimient loss

A1 I April2019
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Translation difference
At 31 March 2020

A1 I April2020
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Deconsohdation of a subsidiary (Note 39)
Translation difference

A1 31 March 2021

Land

FurniturePlant,
Building machinery and

and officeand

improvements equipment equipment

Carrying amounts
AllApri12019
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2021

The Group has reclassified leasehold property and equipment taken on lease to land and plant, machinery and equipment respectively on transition to ERS116 on I April2019.

During the previous year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has decided 10 discontinue the construction of its Cogeneration plant in Canada. As a result of this decision, the Group
recorded UsD 5.69 million of non-financial impainnent loss and reclassified UsD 0.9 million of CER to assei available for sale. During the current year, the Group has wiltsn off
this asset held for sale balance in profit and loss.

56.35
7.49

(1.05)
(3.42

540.73

59.37

During the current year ended 31 March 2021. a plot of land having book value UsD 4.31 million has been identified as asset held for salein Egypt. The Group is in process of
negotiations with potential buyers for selling the assets held for sale
For contractual commitments with respect to property, plant and equipment, refer to none 28.

61.73

(2279)
(2957)

59.37

7.48

(014)

Vehicles

550.10

34.93

12.46

2.07

32.55

550.10

59.85

(894)

2.57

29.62

Shipping
vessels

69.28

(086)
(068)
12.99
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94.57

14.52

1.43

0.86

(0.84)

615.53

12.99

2.08

(212)
(002)

0.31

95.08

98.00

Total

(A)

0.15)

382.83

1.30

392.25

Construction
work. in.

progress

co)

1.30
0.26

(041)
(003)

0.04

389.36

13.24

1.20

1.20

610.97
73.35

4.65

6.54

1.20
1.18

1.16

(25.54)
(33.82)

5.43

Total

(A + un

624.96

1.36

624.96
70.85

(1161)
(005)
17.44

2.25

2.38

1.89

610.97
73.35

(2554)

18.75

701.59

17.57

33.82)
624.96

518.34

54742

624.96
70.85

(11.61)
(0.05)
1744

541.87

79.35

701.59

59.28

36.29

597.69

60670

578.16
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3A Right of IISe Assets

(Currency. ^n UsD mill^^it)

Tile Group

Cost

At I Apm 2019
Recognition of Tight of use asset on
initial application of ERS 116

Adjusted balance as I April2019
Acquisitions PUTSuanito business

combination (refer to note 38)
Acquisitions
Disposals
Translation difference

At 31 March 2020

A1 I Apti12020
Acquisitions
Disposals
Translation difference

At 31 March 2021

Land

Building
and

improvements

4.21

1.04

Plant,
machinery

and

equipment

5.25

0.37

0.06

co. 33)

1.42

Furniture

and

office

equipment

5.35
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1.42

5.35

1.69

4.45

1.73

0.59

0.27

(006)

1.47

7.31

3.68

5.92

3.68

4.53

(026)
0.05

Vehicles

9.87

(0.34)

001

8.00

15.45

0.01

15.45

4.58

(143)
0.31

Total

0.08

0.50

1891

0.09

0.50

0.09

8.66

0.08

(0.01)
(002)

0.01

4.44

010

0.55

13.10

0.55

0.10

co. 08)
0.04

2.10

10.68

(0.01)
(0.75)

0.61

25.12

25.12

10.90

(1.77)
0.68

34.93
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Currency: in UsD million)

The Group

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss

At I April2019
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
Translation difference

At 31 March 2020

At I Apti12020
Depreciation cliarge for the year
Disposals
Translation difference

A131 March 2021

Carrying amounts
At IAPri12019
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2021

Land

Building
and

improvements

Refer note 17 for further details relating to leases.

1.51

015

Plant,
machinery

and

equipment

(007)
1.59

1.59

0.15

Furniture

and

office

equipment

1.67

0.11

1.85

1.67
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1.67

1.92

(0.26)
0.03

0.19

3.32

3.74

3.76

5.46

3.36

3.51

Vehicles

3.51

4.22

(1.43)
0.12

1.42

0.03

2.01

464

6.42

0.03

Total

0.03

0.03

5.73

0.43

11.94

12.49

0.06

0.43

0.43

0.22

(007)
0.02

1.70

5.60

0.01

0.06

(0.07)

0.04

0.60

7.23

7.23

6.54

(176)
0.28

0.50

0.12

0.01

12.29

11.40

17.89

22.64
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4 Goodwill

For the purpose of impainnent testing, goodwill has been allocated to the Group's operating
regions. The aggregated carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to eacli CGU are as follows:

The Group
2021(Currency. ' in UsD million)

Europe
South America

Nortli America

Far East Asia

South Asia

in relation to the Group's international bulk commodity
trading business (SSOE)

Gross total

Reconci"atton of change in carrying value of goodwill

(Currency^.. in UsD million)

At I April2019
Effect of foreign currency translation (net)
Acquisition through business combination
At 31 Marcli2020

Sury" Kim, , Investments Pre. Ltd.
and its s"bs^diaries

Find, ,cmlst"terne"ts

Yeqr e, ,ded 3J Mare1,2021

At I April 2020
Effect of for'eign currency translation (net)
At 31 March 2021

Assumptions used in calculating the discounted cash flows

31 March 2021

South

America

20.29

7.12

19.91

18.97
0.17

2020

Weighted average cost of
capital

Long-term sustainable
growth rates

130.18

19.10

7.80

19.64
17.59

0.16

196.64

130.18

194.47

Weighted average cost of
capital

Long-terni sustainable
growth rates

SSOE

Carrying
amount

10.80%

Europe

2.50%

69.29

(5.00)
130.18

13.50%

194.47

SSOE

2.00%

194.47

2.17

10.70%

196.64

14.20%

North

America

2.00%

31 March 2020

South

AmericaEurope

2.90%

11.43%

12.1 0%

Far East

Asia

1.00%

2.00%

12.12%

North

America

12.50%

3.90%

2.00%

10.05%

Far East

Asia

1.80%

10.39%

2.70%
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The change in goodwill from I April2020 to 31 March 2021 in relation to tlie Group's carbon
black business is entirely due to currency translation. The goodwill in relation to the Group's
international bulk commodity trading business amounting to UsD 130.18 million has arisen
PUTSuant to the business acquisition of Swiss Singapore Overseas Enterprises Pte Ltd ('SSOE')
during previous year ended 31 March 2020. Refer to note 38 or further details relating to the
acquisition.

The recoverable amount for' each CGU was based on value in use estimated by using discounted
casli flows,

The discount rate was a pre-tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average
weighted-average cost of capital, with a possible debt leveraging of 30% to 40% at marketinterest
rates.

The casli flow projections for all CGUs included specific estimates for 5 years and a terminal
growth rate thereafter. Tile tomiinal growthi Tale was deleimined based on management's estimate
of the long-term compounded annual EBITDA growth rate.

Financial forecasts for all CGUs were prepared taking into account past experience, forecasts of
volume growth and movement in oil prices.

Sz, rya Kir@,, f, ,vest", mis Pre. Ltd
and its s"bsidiaries

Film, ,cm! statements

re@r ended 31 M"reh 202Z

in relation to the carbon black business and international commodity trading business, based on
sensitivity analyses performed around the base assumptions, there are no reasonably possible
changes in a key assumption that would cause tile carrying amount to exceed recoverable amount.
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5 Other intangible assets

(CMrrency: In UsD ,ini"torii

The Gro"p

Cost

At I April2019
Acquisitions arising on business

combination (refer to note 38)

Acquisitions
Translation difference

At 31 March 2020

At I April2020
Acquisitions
Translation difference

At 31 March 2021

Developed Customer

technology relationships

Accumulated depreciation
At I April2019
Amortisation charge for the year
Translation difference

At 31 March 2020

164.60

At I April2020
Amortisation charge for The year
Translation difference

A1 31 March 2021

Trade

nam"s

164.60

49.06

76.00

Carrying amounts
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2021

164.60

Software

teen"o10gy

(124)

164.60

123.82

The amortisation of other intangible assets is included in 'cost of sales', 'sening, general and adjntnistrative expenses' and 'research and development
expenses .

18.00

123.82

0.95

128.12

1646

Other

intangible
asset

124.77

18.00

144.58

18.08

0.64

0.16

( 1.76)

18.00

144.58
16.46

37.86

20.02

( I. 02)

S", y" Kir@" invesb, ,e, ,t, Pie. Ltd.
madits s"hairi", tar

Fin@"etc!starte, ,, e"is

year ended 31 M"rel, 2021

Patents and

Know-How

18.00

16/04

17.12

56.86

0.42

0.16

0.04

(024)

17.12

0.12

0.05

56.86

20.01

0.83

14.01

1.80

Licenses &

Certificates

20.02

3.56

17.29

7770

0.38

15.81

0.90

0.38

0.10

15.81
1.80

14.13

2.27

(140)

Non. compete
fees

66.96

(0.07)

47.07

0.48

17.61

0.83

15.00

0.15

0.83

0.02

Total

intangible
assets

15.00
1.40

0.07

0.31

0.06

(019)

2.19

(001)

0.39

0.85

16.47

0.14

0.18

0.14

0.90

(007)

0.18
0.05
0.06

2.12

0.82

251.21

76.80

0.20

(332)

0.14

0.29

0.83

0.15

(0.0 I )

0.83

0.02

0.20

0.19

324.89

0.85

0.14

324.89

0.12

1.12

014

326.13

0.14

195.48

4061

(269)
233.40

233.40

39.72

0.98

274.10

9149

52.03
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6 Trade and other receivables

(Currency. ^, I UsDINillio, I)

Non-current

Security deposits
Other receivables

Current

Trade receivables*

impairment loss on trade receivables
Contract receivables
Other receivables

* Details of trade receivables from related parties is included in note 31.

7

The Group and Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, losses for trade and other receivables
are included in note 35.

SI, ry" Kirin, huestnte, its Pte. Ltd.
a, ,d its subsidiaries

Film, ,cmlst"re, "e, ,is

Ye@r ended 31 M"roll 2021

Equity-accounted investses

(Cunt?ncy. . in UsD million)

2021

Investments in associates

Name of entity

The Group
2020

P. T Indo Liberty Textiles, (engaged in
textile manufacturing)

12.89
1.12

Adjtya Birla Chemicals (Thailand)
Limited, (engaged in chenitcal
manufacturing)

14.01

826.42

(41.64)
1.96

14.29

Essel Mining and Industties Limited,
(engaged in mining and metals)

Total

12.61
1.80

Principal place
or business I

Country of
incorporation

14.41

801.03

736.15

(2581)
1.06
7.48

(Currency^: in UsD million)

Ownership interest
Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Currentliabilities

Net assets (100%)

Less: Non-controlling interests

Indonesia

Measurement

metliod

718.88

Thailand

Equity method

P. T in do Liberty
Textiles

2021 2020

The Group

India

Group*s share of net assets

2021

Equity method

40.00% 40.00%

68.23 72.59

25.30 26.45

(3862) (39.87)
(35.06) (3489)

Equity method

Adjtya Birla Chemicals
orhailand) Limited

20202021

2020

7.94

19.85

140.43

29.99% 29.99%
473.24 459.99

216.31 191.87

(4030) (72.38)
(181.00) (147.3s)

19.85

9.71

1,512.57

24.28

7.94

1,660.94

24.28

129.60

BSsel Mining and
industries Limited

20202021

9.71

468.25

460.96
600.27

468.25

49.00%

3,244.79
479.99

(227.92)
(379.45)

140.43

432.13

432.13

12960

49.00%

1,335.08
253.21

(187.23)
(434.78)

3,117.41
(30.55)

3,086.86

1,512.57

966.28

(25.46)
940.82

460.96

FS32
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(a, ryency. ^n UsD ininton)

Ownershipinterest

Revenue

Net (loss) I profit
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Group's share of iotal
comprehensive income

P. T Indo Liberty
Textiles

2021

Reconciliation of investments in associates

40.00%

2020

87.46

(Cityrenc}^: hi UsD million)

Adjtya Birla Cliemicals Essel Mining and Industries
(Thailand) Limited Limited

2021 2020 2021

(4.53)
(0.42)

40.00%

Opening balance as at I April2019
Addition

Dividend income

Share of profit/(loss)
Share of other comprehensive income
Translation adjusttnents
Closing balance as at 31 March 2020

Sury" Kim, , I, ,vesime"is Pre. Ud.
and its subsidi@ties

Find, ,etcls!"tel"e"ts

year e"ded 31 Mare1,2021

105.27

(4.95)

(164)
0.42

(1.98)

29.99%

518.16

(1.22)

(0.49)

19.90

0.43

29.99%

Opening balance as at I April2020
Addition

Dividend income

Share of protiti(loss)
Share of other comprehensive income
Translation adjusttnenis
Closing balance as at 31 Mareli 2021

488.16

20.33

25.78

(025)

6.10

P. T in do

Liberty
Textiles

49.00%

741.77

25.53

2020

221.66

1,785,01

7.66

Adjtya Birla
Chemicals

(Thailand)
Limited

49.00%

2,006,67

10.52

699.43

(006)
(0.65)
0.17

(0.27)

983.27

(162.04)
(702.67)
(864.71)

EsselMining
and Industries

Limited

125.84

9.71

(423.71)

(078)
7.73

co. 08)
(3.11)

971

706.78

177.87

(001)
(7940)

(344.31)
0.03

(1.81)
co. 17)

0.21

129.60

Total

129.60

7.94

843.14

17787

(085)
(7232)

(344.22)
(335)

(084)
5.97

0.13

5.57

460.96

460.96

54.62

140.43

600.27

108.61

874.66

13.72

600.27

54.62

(084)
112.77

874.62

19.50

1,512.57 1,660.94
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7A

I

Other financial assets

Other financial assets - non-current

(CMrrency: 112 UsD million)

Loan to subsidiary - (measured at amonised
cost) *,

Investment in unq"ored equity shares at
FVTFL

Thai Acrylic Fiber Co. , Ltd.
Investment in mutual funds

Convertible promissory note #

investment in unq, ,ored equity shares/CCPSA
at FVOCl

Abha investments Pie. Ltd, Singapore
Big Banyan Investments Pte. Ltd, Singapore
Blue Bucks Investments PIG. Ltd. , Singapore
Calyx Investments Pte. Ltd, , Singapore
In dogenious Holdings Pie. Ltd. , Singapore
Applause Entertainment Private Limited, India

Investment in quoted equity shares at
FVOCl/CCDAA

Vodafone Idea Limited, india
Adjtya Birla Capital Limited, India
Thai Rayon Public Company Lintted, niailand
Essel Mining and Industries Limited - CCD

Investment in quoted equity shares at FVTPL
Global Depository Receipts
Total non-current financial assets

S"ry" Kir",, I, ,yeslme, ,is Pre. Ud.
@"d t's $11bsidt", ies

Financial state Mein, s

year ended 31 Mare1,2021

The Group
2021 2020

2.59

2.50

The Company
2021 2020

6.80
32.76

# During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group and CHASM Advanced Materials entered into ajoint development
agreement to develop nanotube enhanced carbon hybrids of carbon nanotubes with existing substrates Leads to new,
scalable nanomaterials for a wide variety of end markets. The Group hasinvested an amount of UsD 2.50 Million into
convertible promissory note.

Refer note 34 for details of classification and measurement basis of the above financial assets as per ERS 109 as at 31
Marcli2021 and 31 March 2020.

+ The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no fixed term of repayment.
* Refer to note 31 for details of loan to related party.
' Denotes non-cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares.
AA DenoLes compulsory convertible debentures.

84.55

30.98
30.92

19.40
31.45
22.87

46.21

26.86
26.82

26.72
27.35
27.35

46.21

11

391.25
36.98

23.27
I02.02

Other financial assets - current

(C"Hency: lit UsD million)

Financial assets measured at fair value:

Investments in debt-oriented mutual fund units

Derivative financial assets - current

123.56
12.57

9.64

46.21

0.15

740.59

46.21

36.98

23.27

0.05

366.69

12.57

9.64

0.15

191.16

0.05

68.47

The Group
20202021

8.81

8.81

The Company
2021 2020

41.56

9.14

50.70

FS34

TipradaP
Highlight



Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loan to subsidiaries*

Inter corporate deposits
Deposits with banks naving maturity more

than 3 months
investmeni in fixed income securities

7B

* Refer to note 31 for delalls of loan to subsidiary.

Investment in subsidiaries

(Currency. In UsD million)

At I April2019, at cost
Addition

At 31 March 2020, I April2020, and 31 March 2021, at cost

Refer to note 40 for details of subsidiaries.

8

Suey" Xir", a r, ,vestment$ Pre. rid.
and its subsidiaries

Find, ,etcls, "leane, ,ts

year ended 3J Mare1,202J

256.73

2.04

Other assets

(Currency: in UsD million)

Non-current

Prepaid expenses
Net defined benefit plan assets
Other advances

311.35

101.91
20.51

258.77

267.58

931.32

433.77

484.47

880.33

Current

B alances with government authorities (net of provision
of UsD 4.03 million 01 March 2020: Nil))
Interest receivables

Prepaid expenses
Advances to vendors (net of provision for doubtful
advances of UsD 1.17 nitllion (31 March 2020: UsD
1.20 minion))
Net defined benefit plan assets
Other advances

931.32

93 I. 32

880.33

880.33

9

The Company

0.99
501.53

Inventories

(Cm'yency. ^n UsD million)

Raw materials

Finished goods
Stores, spares and packing material
Trading stock
Total

.-.

502.52

2021
The Group

0.51

0.76

11.15

2020

12.42

0.57

14.49

22.65

2.87

6.24

15.06

19.31

0.36

1.75

31.70

11.36

53.18

2021

123.37

75.08

38.58

238.75

1209

3.17

The Group

58.32

2020

62.49

74.63

38.19

188.10

475.78 363.41
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The wrtte-down of inventories to net realizable value as at 31 Mareli2021 amounted to UsD 2.21

million (UsD 14.40 million as of 31 March 2020). Reversal of wrtte-down of inventories during
the year amounted to UsD 12.19 million (UsD 13.47 million write down of inventories during
the year ended 31 March 2020). The write-down of inventories and reversal is included in cost of
sales.

Inventories consumed during the year amounted to UsD 4,930.40 million 01 March 2020: UsD
5,742.82 million).

10 Cash and cash equivalents

(Currency: in UsD million)

Casli balance

Bank balance

Investment and deposits with original
maturity of less than three months
Total

11

Sury" Kimn mussi, "", 15 Pie. Ud.
and its s"bsidi"Firs

Fin@,, etclsl"tel"e, ,rs

Ye@r ended 31 Mare1,202Z

Assets held for sale

(Currency. ^n UsD million)

Property, plant and equipment held for sale*

* During the current year, UsD 4.31 Imjinon (PY UsD 0.83 lulllion) of plot of land 11as been
identified as asset held for sale in Egypt. Last year, the Group also had decided to sell certain
building premises located in Singapore which are classified as assets held for sale amounting
to UsD 10.97 million. The Group ism process of negotiations with potential buyers for SGIhng
the assets held for sale. During the previous year, the Group 11as decided to discontinue the
construction of its Cogeneration plant in Canada. As a result of this decision, the Group
reclassified UsD 0.90 million of construction in progi'ess (Cm) to asset available for sale.
During tlie current year, the Group has written off Cm in profit and loss.

The Group
20202021

0.16

190.92

12

180.33

371.41

0.36

147.69

The Company
20202021

Borrowings

(Currency. ^it UsD million)

Non-current

Secured bank loan

Vessel loans (secured)
Loan taken from subsidiary (non-interest

bearing)
Loan taken from subsidiary (interest

bearing)

134.34

282.39

1.26

1.26

0.87

The Group
2021 2020

0.87

16.11

Note The Group
20202021

12.70

(a)
(b)

(i)

O)

1,684.40 1,676.92
2.23

The Company
20202021

1,684.40 1,679.15

433.28

433.28

7.36

372.72

380.08
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Current

Current portion of secured long-term
borrowings including revolver balance (a)

Short ten, , borrowi"gs
Revolver facility loans (a)
Trust receipt loan (secured) (c)
Short Ienn loan for investments (secured) (d)
Bills discounted (secured) (e)
Other snort tenn borrowings (O
Loan taken from shareholders (non-

interest bearing) (g)
Loan taken from shareholders (interest

bearing) (h)

Total

Note (a)
(i) The secured bank loan includes three Iranches of the senior credit facility having different
maturity tenures ranging from 3 - 7 years, and interest linked to UsD LIBOR plus a margin
ranging from 1.65% to 2.27%.

The loan is secured by pledge of shares lield by the Company in various subsidiaries excluding
Bina Carbon Egypt S. A, E. The facility is also guaranteed by some of the oilier subsidiaries in the
Group and current assets of some subsidiaries have also been pledged.

The Group is not required to meet the quarterly covenant thresholds until the quarter ending
September 30,2021 due to Covid - 19.

(ii) Bina Carbon China (lining) Co. Ltd. a subsidiary in the group borrowed a total of UsD 80.00
million from the International Finance Corporation (IFC) loan facihiy related to the construction
of the plant. TITe balance of the loan at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, net of transaction cost,
was UsD 59.31 million and UsD 59.19 million, respectively. The facility is priced at LIBOR +
3.40% and matures ill December 2027 witli annual payment of UsD 10 million. 111 view of the
Covid - 19, the loan matutity has been extended from December 2025 to December 2027 with no
repayments required to be done in 2020 and 2021. The Loan is secured against land, building,
machinery and equipment of Bina Carbon China (Jining) Co. Ltd.

(in) Birla Carbon India Private Limited, the Indian subsidiary availed term loan of UsD 21.77
million at Repo rate + I%. TITe facility is secured by first charge on plant and machinery of
Gummidipoondi plant and matures in three years by repayment in equal quarterly instalments.

S"ry" Kit", a J, ,vestments Pie. rid.
rind its s"bsidi", jus

ring, ,etc! slate, "e"!s

year e, ,ded 3Z Mare1,2021

115.65

55.00

66.05

95.75

165.69

47.60

48.12

225.79168.27

530.4i

204.00

1,073.33

2,757.73

533.41

129.20

1,311.61
2,990.76

275.41

204.00

479.41

912.69

278.41

(iv) Surya Abha Investnients Pte. Ltd. a step down subsidiary in the Group borrowed a total of
UsD 250.00 Tmllion secured by charge on book debts and floating charge on the undertaking or
property of the Company excluding certain assets. The Company and SKI hivestinents Pte. Ltd.
(step down subsidiary) agreed to act as guarantors for the loan. The balance of the loan at 31
March 2021 was UsD 212.50 million (2020: UsD 237.50 million). The bankloan bears interest
at rates ranging from 2.37% to 3.96% per annum, The bankloan is repayable in instalments falling
due every six montlis over a period of 3 years with final niaturity in April2022.

129.20

407.61

787.69
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(v) Blame Investments Pte. Ltd and On aria Investments Pte. Ltd. , subsidiaries ill the Group,
entered into a UsD 60.00 nitllioii term loan facility agreement with a bank for general corporate
purposes including repayment of inter-company loans. The tenn loan is secured by a floating
cliarge on the undertakings and the properties of the subsidiaries excluding certain assets/shares.
Tlie term loan bears interest rate ranging from 3.88% to 4.38% per comum which is repayable
every 3 months. The principal amount of UsD 60.00 minion is to be repaid in full on 28 June
2022,

(vi) Surya Abha Investments Pie, Ltd. a step down subsidiary in the Group borrowed UsD 85
million secured by a charge on the book debts of the Company and a floating charge on the
undertaking or property of the Company excluding certain assets. The Company and Ski
Investments Pre. Ltd. (step down subsidiary) agreed to act as guarantors for the loan. The balance
of the loan at 31 March 2021 was UsD 85 lulllion. The bank loan bears interest at approximately
2.78%. The bank loan is repayable in instalments falling due eveiy six montlis over a period of 3
years with final maturity in January 2024.

Note (b)
Tlie vessels mortgage loan is secured by the following:

. First legal mortgage over the vessels, assignment of charter party contract and vessels earnings,
assignment of vessels insurance, charge on operational account, memorandum of deposits and
guarantee by the relevant subsidiary company.

. The vessels mortgage loan coriumenced from 24 November 2015 and bears interest at LIBOR
+1.40% per annum.

. The loan is repayable in quarterly instalments and Ihe last instalment is due in Man'ch 2022,

S", y" Ktr",, harvestmerits Pre. Ltd.
and its s"bsidinrtes

Financial stoleme"ts

year ended 3J March 202J

Note (c)
Trust receipt loan bear interest at rates ranging from 0.5% to 1.5% per annum above the Bank's
effective cost of funds prevailing LIBOR or SinoR. The tenure of such loans is short term in
nature ranging from I day to 43 days. These are secured against trade receivables.

Note (d)
Tlie short-term loan for investments bears interest at rates ranging from I % to 2% per annum
above banks effective cost of funds, SIBOR or LIBOR. This is secured against investment
securities.

Note (e)
Bills discounted bear interest at rates ranoing from 0.20% to 2.00% per annum above the Bank's
effective cost of funds at prevailing LIBOR or SIBOR and are secured.

Note co
Other short tenn borrowings are unsecured and consist of short term loan facilities. These short
term facilities are primarily drawn upon in the respective local currencies to fund working capital
and these facilities are generally uricommitted in nature,
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Note (g)
The amounts are unsecured* non-interest beanno and repayable on demand.

Note (h)
The amountis unsecured, bears interest ranging I% to 3% per annum and repayable on demand.

Note (i)
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and non-current in nature.

Note fj)
The Company entered into loan agreement on 2 April2018 with SKITnvestments Pte. Ltd. , step
down subsidiary for a term loan carrying fixed interest rate of 4.40% per annum compounded
quarterly. Principal interest is repayable on expiry of 30 months from the date of disbursement
i. e. during October 2020. The agreement was revised on 31st March 2020 and the revised date of
maturity of loan was fixed as 6 October 2025 willI o1her terms remaining the same,

On 29 September 2020 the Company entered into another loan agreement with SKI Investments
Pte. Ltd. for UsD 60 minion at an interest rate of 4.40% per annum compounded quarterly with
date of maturity being 6 October 2025.

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

LeaseLong-term Short-term
borrowings borrowings liabilities

SI, ry" firm, I, ,"errme, ,, s Pte. Lid.
a, ,d its s"bsidi@n'es

Firm, ,cmlst@terne, ,ts

year errded 31 M@run 202J

(Currency: in UsD mill^^n)

Balance at I April2019
Impact on initial application

of ERS 116

Adjusted balance at I April2019
Changes from financing cash flows
Long term loans taken during the

current year
Repayment of long term borrowings

Oncluding current maturilies)
Additional short tent borrowings

availed net off repayments
Repayment of lease obligations -

principal portion
interest paid on borrowings
Bank fees paid on origination of new

loans

Interest paid on lease liabilities

Other changes
Borrowings taken over pursuant to

business combination in April2019
Lease liabilities taken over PUTSuant to

business combination in April2019
New leases

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Interest expense on borrowings

979.43

979.43

304.22

1,985.34

(1,212.73)

304.22

4.36

3.39

Total

(115.00)

818.81

(5682)

(18.66)

7.75

1,288.01

3.39

(44.45)

(4.25)

1,291.40

1,985.34

(1,327.73)

818.81

(6.0 I )
001.27)

(22.91 )
(1.05)

8.30

(6.01)

229.42

52.44

(1.05)

44.45

2.10

10.68

1.05

237.72

2.10

10.68

1.05

96.89
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Amortisation of deferred loan charges
at effective interest method

Reclassification of from non-current to

current

Impact of accrued interest classified
under trade and other payables

Foreign currency revaluation
Balance at 31 March 2020

(currency, ,. in usD in I'llioi, )

Balance at I April2020
Changes from financing cash flows
Long term loans taken during the

current year
Short term loans taken during the

current year (Net)
Repayment of long tomi borrowings

(including current niaturities)
Repayment of lease obligations -

principal portion
Interest paid on borrowings
Interest paid on lease liabilities
Deferred loan fees paid

Other changes
New leases

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Interest expense on borrowings
Amortisation of deferred loan charges

at effective interest method

Reclassitication of from non-current to

current

Deconsolidaiion of a subsidiary
Impact of accrued interest classified

under trade and other payables
Foreign currency revaluation
Balance at 31 March 2021

3.37

(66.05)

4.53

Sury" Xir@" I, ,vestme, ,ts Pte. Ud
and its s"bsidi@n'es

Fin@"cmls, ate, "e", s

Ye@r ended 31 Morel, 2021

4.01

66.05

1,679.15

Long-term Short-term
borrowings borrowings

1,311.61

8.35

1,679.15

0.73

106.77

15.25

7.38

1,311.61

Lease

nab"ines

580.33

146.80

(1,078.63)

4.53

9.08

3,006.01

(5967)

15.25

Total

(27.57)

(0.29)

3,006.01

59.67

4.12

(105.49)

687.10

146.80

(1,078.63)

(6.03)
(87.24)
(1.41)
(0.29)

(603)

(1.41)

27.57

0.53

105.49

(0.23)

(0.15)

10.91

1.41

1,684.40 1,073.33

7.72

10.91

1.41

87.24

4.65

0.17

20.30

(0.23)

(0.15)
7.89

2,778.03
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13 Trade and other payables

(Currency, . in UsD million)

Non-Current

Derivative financial instrument

Financial liability under option arrangement
I measured at FVTOCl (equity) I

Current

Trade payables
Accrued interest payable
Capital creditors
Derivative financial instruments

Other payables*
Total current trade and o111er payables

* Other payables include acceptances amounting to UsD 5.36 willion (31 March 2020: UsD 20.28
million).

Details of trade payables by related parties is included in note 31

14

S"ry" Kir",, furyes!in", 15 Pte. Ltd
mrd its swimidi@ries

Fin@,, cmlsi@terne"ts

year ended 3J Mare1,2021

The Group
2021 2020

Provisions

(airre, icy. . in UsD million)

Non-current

Environmental accruals

Asset retirement obligation

15.62

4.55

20.17

33.44

The Company
2021 2020

Current

Environmental accruals
Claims

719.84

6.78

11.76

12.68

67.37

33.44

15

Total

Refer to note 33 for movement in the provisions.

Employee benefit obligations

476.92
5.92

11.75

12.27

49.29

818.43

(Currency, .. in UsD million)

Non-current

Retirement benefit obligations - non-current
Compensated absences
Total non-current provisions

Current

Retirement benefit obligations - current
Compensated absences
Total current provisions
Refer to note 30 for disclosure on employee benefits.

556.15

1.61

0.42

2.03

0.69

0.04

0.73

2021
The Group

2020

0.49

0.87

1.36

2.03

4.57

0.35

0.80

6.60

7.96

1.15

0.84

3.53

The Group
2021

4.37

5.52

24.75

2.72

2020

27.47

35.80

4.57

5.00

5.66

40.37

10.66

5.19

3.52

8.71
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16 Other liabilities

(CMrrency. . in UsD mill^^n)

Non-current

Other liabilities

Current

Statutory payables
Dividend payable to non-controlling interesis
Employee payables
Contract liabilities

Other liabilities

17 Leases liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of lease liabilities at the reporting date.
The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include estimated interest payments.

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities - Contractual undiscounted cash flow:

S"ry" Kim, , I, zvesimen, s Pie. Lid.
and its subsidiaries

Financial state, "e, ,ts

yetir e, ,ded 3J Moral, 202J

(Off relicy: in UsD million)

Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years
Total undiscounted lease liabilities

The Group
2021

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position

9.42

2020

(Currency, ^it UsD million)

15.68

0.62

19.30

29.46

0.02

Current

Non-Current

11.30

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

(CMrrenq, ,^n UsD million)

Leases under FRS 116

Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Income from subleasing right -of- use assets presented

in other income

Expenses relating to short-term leases
Expenses relating to leases of lowalue assets,

excluding short-term leases of low-value assets

11.33

0.59

14.63

21.11

0.01

65.08 47.67

2021
The Group

2020

9.03

10.30

5.49

24.82

4.41

10.27

5.29

2021

19.97

7.87

12.43

20.30

2020

2021

3.68

11.57

15.25

1.41

6.47

2020

0.31

2.89

1.05

5.56

0.29

0.24

5.65

0.58
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Amounts recognised in statement of casli flows

(Currency. ^n UsD million)

Total cash outflow for leases

18

The Group's leases mainly relate to office buildings, equipment, storage tanks and vehicles.

Preference shares

(Currency. . in UsD million)

Preference shares - non current

Redeemable cumulative non-convertible preference shares A
(Issued by a subsidiary in financial year ended 2021)

S"ry" Kirin, impes!menls Pre. Ltd.
and its s"bsidia, fes

Fin@,, dai slate, item's

year ended 3J Mare1,2021

Preference shares - non current
Redeemable non"cumulative non-convertible Preference Shares A

(issued in financial year ended 2007)
Redeemable non"cumulative non-convertible Preference Shares C

(issued in financial year ended 2011)
Redeemable cumulative non-convertible Preference Shares D

(issued in financial year ended 2018)
Redeemable non-cumulative non-convertible Preference Shares E

(Issued ill financial year ended 2018)
Redeemable cumulative non-convertible Preference Shares F

(Issued in financial year ended 2019)
Redeemable non-cumulative non-convertible Preference Shares G

(Issued in financial year ended 2019)
Redeemable cumulative non-convertible Preference Shares H

(Issued in financial year ended 2020)

2021

9.22

2020

13.29

The Group
20202021

(airrency. . in UsD million)

Preference shares - current
Redeemable non-cumulative lion-convertible Preference Shares C

(Issued in financial year ended 2011)

5.65

The Group and The
Company

2021 2020

15.00

130.00

15.00

250.00

29.00

185.00

130.00

100.00

250.00

20.00

185.00

700.00

705.65

100.00

The Group and The
Company

2021 2020

20.00

729.00

729.00

29.00
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Redeemable cumulative lion~convertible reference shares "A

TITe RCPSs represent 5,650,000 Preference Shares "A" issued by a subsidiary during the financial
year ended 31 Mardi 2021.

The RCPSs are redeemable after 5 years from the date of allotment and are not convertible to
ordinary shares in the capital of the subsidiary.

The RCPSs rank in priority over ordinary shares, and rank equally with other class of preference
shares in the capital of the subsidiary, in the event of liquidation, and carry no voting rights.
Dividends on the RCPSs are payable at 3% of its face value per annum.

Redeemable non-cumulative convertible reference shares "A

The RCPSs represent 15,000,000 Preference Shares "A" issued by the Company during the
financial year ended 31 December 2007.

The RCPSs are rodeeniable after 120 months from its issue date, and are convertible to ordinary
shares in the capital of the Company at the ratio of 300 RCPSs to I ordinary share, at the option
of the holder,

S"ry" Kit",, I, ,vestments Pie. Ud,
and its s"bsid^tines

Firm, ,etalstate, "e"is

Yeqr e"ded 31 March 2021

The RCPSs rank in prtotity over ordinary shares, and rank equally with otlier class of preference
shares in the capital of the Company, in the event of liquidation, and carry no voting rights.
Dividends on tlie RCPSs are payable at 5% of its face value per aimum.

On 5 April2017, the Company extended the marutiiy dale of Preference Shares A by 60 months
to I I April 2022.

On 20 November 2019, the terms of the preference shares were changed fronl convertible to non-
conveitible and maturity date extended to 20th November 2029.

RCPS"s

Redeemable non-cumulative non-convertible reference shares "C

The RPSs represent 29,000,000 Preference Shares "C" issued by the Company during the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 for Us029,000,000.

The RPSs are redeemable after 60 months from its issue dale at the option of the holder, and are
not convertible to ordinary shares in the capital of the Company.

The RPSs rank in priority ova' ordinary shares, and rank equally with other class of preference
shares in the capital of the Company, in the event of liquidation, and snail nave the same rights
as the holders of ordinary shares at meetings of the Company and carry I voting right for every
RPS. Dividends on the RPS are payable at 3% of its face value per armum.

On 27 June 2016, the Company extended the maturity date of Preference Shares C by 60 months
to 30 June 2021.

RCPS"s

Redeemable cumulative non-convertible reference shares "D

The RPSs represent 130,000,000 Preference Shares "D" issued by the Company during the
financial year ended 31 March 2018 for Us0130,000,000.

RPS"s

RPS"s
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I

The RPSs are redeemable on 8 Mardi 2028 at the option of the holder, and are not convertible to
ordinary shares in the capital of the Company.

The RPSs rank in priority over ordinary shares, and rank equaUy with other class of preference shares
in the capital of the Company, in the event of liquidation, and carry no voting rights. Dividends on the
RPS are payable at 3.5% of its face value per annum,

Redeemable non-cumulative non-convertible reference shares "E

The RPSs represent 250,000,000 Preference Shares "E" issued by the Company during the financial
year ended 31 March 2018 for Us0250,000,000.

The RPSs are redeemable on 8 March 2028 at the option of the holder, and are not convertible to
ordinary shares in the capital of the Company.

The RPSs rank in priorliy over ordinary snares, and rank equally with other class of preference shares
in the capital of the Company, in the event of liquidation, and carry no voting rights. Dividends on the
RPS are payable at 3.75% of its face value per amium.

Redeemable cumulative non-convertible reference shares "F

Sury" Kir@,, havestme, ,ts Pre. Ltd.
mad i's subsidiaries

Fin",, doht"top"e"ts

year ended 31 Mare1,202J

On 29 June 2018, the Companyissued 185,000,000 Preference Shares "F" for Us0185,000,000,

The RPSs are redeemable on 29 June 2028 at the option of the 1101der, and are not convertible to
ordinary shares in the capital of the Conipany.

The RPSs rankin priority over ordinary shares, and rank equally with other class of preference shares
in the capital of the Company, in the event of liquidation, and carry no voting rights. Dividends on the
RPS are payable at 3.5% of its face value per annum.

Redeemable non-cumulative non"convertible reference shares "G

RPS"s

On 16 August 2018, tlie Company issued 100,000,000 Preference Shares "G" for
usDi00, o00,000.

The RPSs would be perpetual in nature and redeemable at the option of the issuer in accordance
with the applicable provisions of the law at par value subject to review after every 10 years from
the date of allotment,

The RPSs rank in priority over ordinary shares, and rank equally with other class of preference
shares in the capital of the Company, in the event of liquidation, and carry no voting rights.
Dividends on tlie RPS are payable at 3.75% of its face value per annum.

RPS"s

Redeemable cumulative non-convertible reference shares "H

On 28 August 2019, tile Companyissued 20,000,000 Preference Shares "H" for Us020,000,000.

The RPSs are redeemable after 10 years from the date of allotment, and are not convertible to
ordinary snares in the capital of the Company.

The RPSs rank in priority over ordinary shares, and rank equally with other class of preference
shares in the capital of the Company, in the event of liquidation, and carry no voting rights.
Dividends on the RPS are payable at 3.50% of its face value per annum,

RPS"s

RPS"s
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19 Revenue

The Group generates revenue primarily from the sale of carbon black for the rubber and specialty
markets and the sale of electticity/steam and tail gases for the generation of electricity.

in the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by manor product
lines and timing of revenue recognition. The table also indrides other revenue.

(CMrrency: in UsD million)

Product lines:

Carbon black rubber

Carbon black specialty
Electricity sales
Bulk commodity trading
Clearing and nandling income

Sury" Kir@,, 111"erring, ,!s Re, Lrd.
find its s"bsidi"n'es

Find, ,eta! state, "e, ,ts

year e"ded 3J Mare1,2021

Other operating revenue
Total revenue

Sale of traded bulk coriumodities includes the below categories of products:

(Currency. . in UsD In IntoIn

Oil and Petrochemicals

Metals and Minerals

Others

Total

The Group
Revenue from operations

2021 2020

Reconciliation or revenue as per contracts with customers to revenue as per the financial
statements:

(Currency: in UsD million)

Revenue as per contract with customers
Less: Trade discounts and rebates

Revenue as per financial statements

1,102.46
241.04

60.03

4,614.96
36.59

(Currency. ' in UsD million)

6,055.08
14.25

Timing or revenue recognition
Products transferred at a point in lime

1,440.62
253.76

85.86

5,057,40
37.30

6,069.33

6,874,94
11.75

2021

6,886.69

1,175.07
1,914.16
1,525.73
4,614.96

2020

2,088.00
1,894.00
1,075.40

2021

6,120.17
(50.84)

5,057.40

6,069.33

2021

2020

6,954.05
(67.36)

6,069.33

6,886.69

2020

6,886.69
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Performance obligations

Revenue from contracts with customers is based on the consideration specified in the contract or
purchase order, The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of goods to a customer
and conection is probable.

Product line

Carbon black rubber

and specialty

Nature and timing of satisfying
performance obligations, including
si nthcant a merit terms

Customer obtains control of goods when Revenue is recognized when
the goods are delivered to the customer's the goods are delivered at the
premise or other agreed upon delivery agreed poini of delivery.
point where the customer takes control of
the goods. The credit period offered to
customers generally ranged from 30 days
10 90 days. Some contracts provide rebates.
The Group provides the systematic accrual
for these contracts on a monthly basis,
based on the contractualIy agreed terms
and the past experience of the Company.
The Group generally does not have returns
related to carbon black and is only obliged
to provide a replacement if the carbon
black properties do not meet agreed
qualifications. Sale returns are accounted
as and when customers' inform their

definitive intend to return the goods.

Sury" KIT@" naves!", ants Pre. Ud.
mad its s"bsidr@lies

Fi, ,",, etalst@fume", s

re@r e, ,ded 3J March 2021

Electricity sales

Revenue recognition under
reRS 115

Sale of traded bulk

commodities

Customers obtain control of the Revenue front electriciiy sales
electricity/tail gases at the agreed point of is recognised at the time of
supply supply of electricity/ tail gases,

at the contractualIy agreed
rates.

Clearing and
handling income

Customer obtains control of goods when Revenue is recognised when
the goods are delivered to the customer's the goods are delivered at the
prerulse or otlier agreed upon delivery agreed point of delivery.
point where 111e customer takes control of
the goods. The credit period offered to
customers generally 7 to 90 days.

Customer recognises the benefits of the Revenue is recognised when
services received or other agreed upon the related performance
service milestones, The credit period oblioation has been satisfied.
offered to customers generally 7 to 90 days.
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20 Other income

(Currency. ^it UsD million)

Pair valuation loss on equity investment measured at FVTPL
Dividend income

Export incentives
Others

Total

21 Cost of sales

(Currency, ' in UsD million)

Raw material and packing material consumed
Purchase of traded goods
Changes ill inventories of finished/traded goods (including

inventories received PUTSuant to business combination)
Salaries, wages and bonus
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Repair and maintenance
Consumption of stores and spares
Transportation and handling charges in relation to bulk

commodities traded

Professional and miscellaneous services
Others

Total

S"ry" Kim" harvestmants Pre. Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

Fin@"cml state, " e"ts

year e"ded 31 March 2021

2021
The Group

22

(461)
16.83

1.93

3.38

Selling, general and administrative expenses

2020

(Currency: in UsD million)

17.53

Transportation and handling charges
Salaries, wages and bonus
Restructuring expenses
Others

Total

2021

2.88

9.49

The Group
2020

23

709.96

4,273.95

12.37

Research and development expenses

(5396)
98.23

95.50

31.86

22.51

(Currency. ^n UsD million)

1,053.82
4,660.39

Salaries, wages and bonus
Others

Total

404.21

27.09

91.61

63.17

I 10.40

98.16

34.59

23.81

5,700,96

313.40

28.63

96.37

2021
The Group

6,482,74

53.18

57.21

8.58

58.63

2020

177.60

50.72

51.00

1.09

71.69

2021
The Group

2020

174.50

10.70

3.25

13.95

10.71

4.79

15.50
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24 Impairment loss of financial assets

(Currency. ^" UsD million)

Fair value (gain)noss on interest rate swaps
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Fair value (gain)/loss on Global Depository Receipts
Total

25 Impairment of lion-financial assets

(Currency. ^it UsD million)

Impainnent of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of other non-financial asset receivables
Total

26
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Finance costs (neo

(Currency: In UsD million)

Finance income

Interest income

Foreign excliange gain, net

2021
The Group

2020

(2.45)
18.05

(0. I 0)

Finance expenses
Interest expense excluding lease liability
Interest related 10 lease liability
Foreign eXchange loss, net

15.50

7.77

5.13

0.04

Finance cost (neo, recognised in profit or loss

2021
The Group

2020

12.94

1.00

3.98

4.98

2021

5.69

The Group

5.69

36.05

2020

36.05

(67.64)
(1.41)

(19.97)

38.09

2.44

(89.02)

40.53

(52.97)

(141.97)
(I. 05)

(143.02)

(102.49)
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27 Contingentliabilities

(Currency, ^n UsD million)

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts

Tlie above claims represent ongoing tax litigations, in respect of tlie deductibility of goodwill
amortisation, property taxes and utilisation of lax credit related to freight and maintenance at the
Group's South America facilities andin respect of certain ongoing indirect tax litigationstillndia.

Guarantors to UsD 250 inilhon borrowing facility agreement

The Company and SKI investments Pte. Ltd, (step down subsidiary) agreed to act as guarantors
for a secured bank borrowing by Surya Abha Investtnents Pte, Ltd. (step down subsidiary), an
entity incorporated in Singapore, for UsD 250 million. The agreement was signed on 17 April
2019.

Guarantors to UsD 85 million borrowing facility agreement

The Company and Ski investments PIG. Ltd, (step down subsidiary) agreed to act as guarantors
for a secured bank borrowing by a related party, Surya Abha Investments Pre. Ltd. , an entity
incorporated in Singapore, of UsD 85 nitllion. The agreement was signed on 5 January 2021.

Guarantors to UsD 125 ininnon borrowing facility agreement

SKITnvestments Pie. Ltd and Surya Abha Invesiments Pts. Ltd. an reed to act as guarantors for a
secured bank borrowing by, Big Banyan investments PIG. Ltd, , and Blue Bucks Investinents PIG,
Ltd, entities incorporated in Singapore, of UsD 125 lulllion. The agreement was signed on 26''
March 2021,

Sury" Kir@,, hawsime"is Pre. Ud.
cmd its substdi@rtes

Financial slate, "e", s

Ye@r ended 31 M"Fell 2021

The Group
20202021

Otller Contingencies-Environmental Matters

35.01

The Group is subject to extensive federal, state, local, and foreign laws and regulations relating
to safety, health, and environmental matters. The impact of future changes in sucli laws and
regulations on the Group cannot be predicted.

it is often difficult to estimate the future impact of environmental matters, including potential
liabilities. The Group has established accruals to cover environmental liabilities where they are
probable and reasonably estimable. Although the Group believes that these accruals are adequate
to cover known environmental liabilities, there can be no assurance that the actual amount of
environmental liabilities will not exceed the amount of accruals for such matters or will not have

a material adverse effect on the Group's consolidated financial position, results of operations, or
cash flows.

38.46
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28 Commitments

(Currency: in UsD nullio")

Commitments to purchase/procure:
Procurement of materials

Capital coriumitments

Commitments to sell:

Energy and by"products

A subsidiary in the Group had received inquiries in the earlier years from the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) about its compliance willI EPA's New Source Review regulations
pursuant to a section I 14 of the Clean Air Act in 11.0 United States of America. Tliese regulations
generally cover equipment and related environmental permitting, maintenance, and treatment of
substances used in or emitted by the Group' s U. S . production plants, The entity had filed its
response and denied liability. in December 2017* the Entity entered into a consent decree with
the EPA and the separate states of Louisiana and Kansas settling all outstanding matters (Consent
Decree). The EPA had posted the Consent Decree for public cornments. The Consent Decree
was finalized on I June 2018.

S"ry" Kir@,, r, ,vestments He. Ud.
and its s"bsidi@rtes

Financial statements

year ended 3f March 2021

The entity expects over the next two years to complete installation of certain additional pollution
abatement equipment at each of its facilities at an estimated total expenditure of UsD 156.50
minion. The aforesaid expenditure and costs to the extent of UsD 104.90 million approximately,
are covered by an in dentinty from previous owners for potential financial liabilities in this matter

29

The Group
2021 2020

Non-controlling interests

236.19
48.48

The Group treats transactions with NCl that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and NCl to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustrnent to NCl and any consideration paid or
received is recognised within equity.

The changes in equity antibutable to the owners of the group from transactions with NCl is as
follow:

284.67

2.65

65.51

99.29

164.80

(Currency. ^n UsD mill^^n)

6.92

Consideration paid to NCl
Less: Equity of NCl acquired including share capital
A decrease/(increase) in equity attobutable to owners of the Group

2021

2.78

(447)

(1.69)

2020

57.81

(4349)
14.32
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The following table summarises the information relating to each of the Group's subsidiaries that has material NCl, before any intra-group eliminations.

(CUFFe, icy: in UsD un^!jou

NCl percentage
Non-current assets **

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Currentliabilities

Net assets **

Net assets antibutable to NCl (before adjustments)

Less: Financial Liability under Option armngement ##
Less: Deconsolidation of lining Cinenyang CON Chemical Co. , Ltd.
Net assets attributable to NCl

Revenue

Net profit
01her comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Front allocated to Na

OCl allocated to NCl

Birla Carbon rosypt S. A. in.
(formerly known as Alexandria

Carbon Black Company)**
2021 2020

Dividend paid to NCl

# NCl includes 24.98% held by an entity which is a related party.

** includes the proportionate share of equity of indigold Carbon (Mauritius) Limited. ("ICML') which is an associate of Bina Carbon Egypt S. A. E. ("BCE*) and Bina Carbon Thailand Public
Co. Ltd ("BCP'). BCE and BCTeach hold a 20.59% stakeinlCML.

\ Put option held by a Non-controlling shareholder in a subsidiary entity, entitles the minority shareholder to sell its stake to the Group for a value that would be deterwined as per the
coniruciually stipulated terms of the option agreement. The Group has accounted for the put option liability at its fair value estimated at UsD 4.55 minion as at 31 March 2021. The
corresponding NClbalancein books of UsD 3.13 million has been derecognised and the excess of fair value over the carrying value ofNClamounting to UsD 1.42 willion has been recorded
under retained earnings.

54.31%

366.47

44.42

(8866)
(4520)

Birla Carbon Thailand Public

Co, Ltd (fomierly kilouni as
Thai Carbon Black Pubmc

Co, Limited) #**
20202021

277.03

54.31%

35297

47.65

(88.71)
(5258)

150.45
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150.45

25933

80.33%

493.96

226.62

(323)
(51.64)

14084

10/05
12.02

6.03

140.84

18.05

665.71

6.53

81.04% 47.50%1073.22% 47.50% to 73.22%

468.04 400.36 647.46
19379 1711.62 1,764.21

(3.11) (1,394.91) (1,493.81)
(1,102.77)(42.87) (1,241.00)

12941
26.49

(1213)

534.75

3.27

14.36

53475

2021

14.39

615.85

(659)

182.94

31.30

3036

Others

499.08

61.66

499.08

25.14

2020

272.26

76.33

(2885)

(385,700

24.39

(180.10)

(7.27)

(313)
(485)

47.48

(188.08)

61.86

(2338)

5,785.34
82.85
27.25

(323.14)

(730)

(214.71)

110.10

40.40

(214.71)

13.94

6,485.02

(540)
(5751)

( 19.57)

(6291)
(230)

(2833)

(413)

FS52



30

(i)

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group adintnisters a number of defined contribution plans, the assets of whicli are held in
external funds. The Group makes contributions, deterlimed as a specified percentage of employee
salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards defined contribution benefits, The Group has
no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. TITe conttibutions are charged to
profit or loss as they accrue. The Company does not have employees hence no disclosure for. the
same.

(it)

The Group has recognised an expense for contribution to defined conttibution plans amounting
to UsD 1.73 million for the year ending 31 March 2021 (2020: UsD 1.54 million) under cost of
sales and selling, general and administrative expenses.

Defined benefit plan

The Group conitibutes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans.

D<fined benefitpe, ,sinn pin"s

TITe Group sponsors defined benefit pension plans in the United States, Germany, Brazil and
Canada. Benefits for these plans are based on years of service and depending on the plan, either
final average salary or a fixed amount for each year of service. Qualifying participants generally
vest in their benefits after a certain Iengtli of service.

POSire!treme"t healtl, care find life illsi, rance benefitpl",, s

The Group' s North and South America employees participate in postretirement medical and life
insurance benefit plans. These plans provide medical insurance benefits for' many employees
retiring from active service.

Life insurance benefits for. retirees are also available pursuant to the terms of certain collective
bargaining agreements.

Oilier d, :filled beingI^tpl",, s

in Thailand, the Group operates defined benefit plans based on the requirement of Thai Labor
Protection Act BE. 2541 (1998) to provide retirement benefits to employees based on pensionable
remuneration and length of service,

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per tile Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
The gratuity plan entitles allemployee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service,
to receive one-11alf month's salary for each year of completed service at the time of retirement.

The defined benefit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency
risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk

The majority of benefit payments are from trustee-administered funds; however, there are also
some unfunded plans where the Group meets the benefit payment obligation as it falls due. Plan
assets held in trusts are governed by local regulations and practicein each country, as is the nature
of the relationship between the Group and the trustees (or equivalent) and their composition.
Responsibility for governance of the plans - including investment decisions and contributions
schedules -liesjointly with the Group and the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees must be
composed of representatives of the Group and plan participants in accordance with the plan's
regulations.

S"ry" Mr"" fryerfiner, ts Pre. Ltd
rind its s"bsidi@ties
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A

The details of movement in net defined benefit obligations for defined benefit plans and related
actuarial assumptions are as below

Postretireinent healthcare and lire insurance benefit plans

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the
net defined benefit (asset)Aiability and its components.

Movements in present value of obligation

(CMrrency. ^it UsD million)

Opening balance
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost

Curtailment

interest cost

(i)

Included in OCl

Reineasurement loss/(gain):
Actuadal loss/(gain) arising from:

Experience adjustments
Effect of movements in eXchange rates

Sury@ Xir@,, musstme"ts Pte. Ltd.
and its s"bsidi"lies

Fin@,, tintsl@terne"ts

Ye@r e, Ided31M@rclz 2021

Other

Benefits paid
Closing balance

(ii) Actuarial assumptions

Tile following were the principal actualIal assumptions at the reporting date.

Discount rate
20202021

2021
The Group

2020

(in)

North America

South America

3.78

0.05

co. 12)
0.09

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting dale to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown
below.

0.02

3.27

0.05

(0.43)

(Currency, ^it UsD million)

Discount rate (I% movement)

0.13

(0.43)

0.18

(0.1 I)
3.26

0.53

co, 05)
0.48

(0.15 )

2.75% to 3.06% 2.50% to 3.69%

6.61% 6.19%

3.78

Increase

2021

(0.35)

Decrease

0.42

Increase

2020

co . 12)

Decrease

0.83
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B Employee pension plan

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for
the net defined benefit (assetyliability and its components:

Movements in present value of obligation and plan assets(i)

(Currency, . lit UsD million)

Opening balance
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost

Gain on settlement

Interest cost

Included in OCX

Reineasurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from:

Demographic assumptions
Financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

Return on plan assets excluding
interest income

Effect of movements in eXchange
rates

S", y@ Kira, I impesrme, its Pre. rid.
a"of its s"65idi@rtes

Financial sin!e, "e"ts

year ended 31 Mare1,2021

The Group
Defined benefit obligation Fair value or plan assets

2021 2021 20202020

76.44 46.69106.20 84.33

Other

Liabilities extinguished on
settlement

Contributions to plan assets
Benefits paid

Closing balance

Represented by
Net defined benefit asset

Net defined benefit liability

0.89

(067)
1.53

1.75

0.97

3.30

(0.04)
(4.81)
(0.19)

4.27

(0.19)
15.47

(0.73)

0.80

2.09

0.80

(2.95)

(15.64)

(4.63)

2.46

(2.60)

2.46

11.95

(2027)
54.97

(41.40)

(4.58)

5.57

1.85

7.42

(4598)
76.44

4.67

(1.69)

(15.64)
2.70

(4.49)
(1743)

2.98

37.48

(42.43)
3.19

(3.84)

0.76

18.25

(4308)
46.69

17.49

29.75

29.75
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(ii) Plan assets

The fair value of plan assets at the reporting date for the defined benefit plans for each category
are as follows:

(CMrreizcy. ' in UsD million)

Us Equities
Us Mutual Funds

Us Debt Secutities

Us Cash

Canada Mutual Funds

Germany Insurance Contracts

(in)

The Group expects to contrlbute approximately UsD 1.24 million to its defined benefit plans
during the year ended 31 Marcli 2022.

Actuarial assumptions

The following were Ihe principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date.

S"rya Kir@,, investments Pre. Ud.
a, ,of its s"bsidiartes

Firm, ,cmlsi@te, "e, ,, s

year ended 31 Mare1,2021

Norm America

Soutli AnTenca

Europe

The Group
2021

10.16

North America
South America

Europe

Sensitivity analysis(iv)

6.27

0.51

14.73

5.81

2020

37.48

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuadal assumptions,
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts snown below.

13.65

1.45

13.07

0.88

11.89

5.75

(Currency. ' lit UsD million)

Discount rate (I % movement)
Future salary growth

(I % movement)

46.69

2021

3.00% to 3.06%

7.54%

0.20% to 0.75%

Discount rate

Salary escalation rate
2021 2020

2020

2.50% to 3.69%

6.70%

0.25% to 1.70%

3.00%
5.32%

0.70% to 2.25%

Increase

2021

(562)

Decrease

3.00%
5.67%

O% to 3.2%

0.15

6.89

Increase

(0.15)

2020

(10.35)

Decrease

0.55

12.74

(052)
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C Gratuity and severance plans

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for
the net defined benefit (asset)/liability and its components:

Movements in present value of obhgation and plan assets

.

(i)

(Currency. ^n UsD rin!!ion)

Opening balance
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost

Interest cost

Included in OCl

Reineasurement loss/(gain):
Actuadal (gain)noss arising from:
- Demographic assumptions
- Financial assumptions
- Experience adjustinents
Return on plan assets excluding

interest income

Currency translation adjustment

Other

Liabilities extinguished on
settlements

Conttibutions to plan assets
Benefits paid

Closing balance

Represented by funded plans in
deficit

Net defined benefit asset

Net defined benefit nabnity

Sir, yc firm, investments Re. Ud.
and its s"bsid^^Firs

Find, ,cmlstcteme"ts

Ye@r ended 3Z Mare1,202Z

The Group
Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets

2020 20212021 2020

11.62 4.7912.25 4.50

1.40

0.43

1.83

1.12

0.33

0.46

(0.26)

1.45

(it) Plan assets

The fair value of plan assets at the statement of financial position date for the defined benefit
plans for each category are as follows:

(Currency. ^n UsD million)

Others

0.37

0.32

0.57

0.34

0.14

0.32

(0.17)
(130)

(0.41)

0.32

0.07

0.32

(1.47)
13.18

0.01

(090)

0.07

0.12

The Group expects to contribute approximately UsD 0.20 winion to its gratuity and severance
plans during the year ended 31 March 2021.

(0.04)

0.19

(0.89

0.36

8.24

12.25

0.01

(0.0 I )

7.88

0.15

(0.36)
(0.25)

7.46

5.30

7.46

0.22

0.22

4.79

2021

5.30

2020

4.79
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(in) Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as
weighted averages),

(iv)

Thailand

India

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuadal assumptions,
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below.

Discount rate

2021 2020

9.00%2.96%2.96%
6.80% to 6.95% 6.65% to 6.75% 8.00% to 8.50%

(Currency: in UsD million)

Discount rate (I% movement)
Future salary growth

(I % movement)

Suryc Kirin, I, ,vestments He. Ltd.
rimd i's s"bsidi"lies

Financial $1@tome"ts

year e, ,ded 31 March 2021

D Amount recognised in the statement of financial position

2021

Net

obligation

Salary escalation rate
20202021

9.00%
6.75% to 8.00%

(Currency. ^n UsD million)

Postretirement healthcai. e and life

insurance benefit plans
Employee pension plan
Gratuity and severance plans

Increase

2021

(079)

0.83

Decrease

0.78

Increase

(086)

2020

(034)

0.59

Decrease

Net plan
assets

3.26

18.25

8.24

29.75

0.54

(053)

2020

Net

obligation

0.76

0.36

1.12

Net plan
assets

3.78

29.75

7.46

40.99
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31 Related party relationships, transactions and balances

Tile following are the details of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for
the relevant financial year:

A Directly-held subsidiaries

Kiran Investments Pte. Ltd. , Singapore (KipL)
Surya Viniyog Pte. Ltd. , Singapore
Elaine Investments Pte. Ltd. * Singapore

B Key management personnel

The Group
John A Loudemiilk

Surendra Kumar Goyal
Ieffrey Hanson
Madugula Vonkata Naga Smitha
Nandita Agarwal
Manish Kumar Tibrewal

Namrata Goyal
Kumar Mangalam Bina
Deepak Kumar Kliandelwal

Suryc Kirin, navestme, ,, s Pre. rid.
rind its s"bsidiarie$

Find"cmlsi"terne, ,ts

Ye@r e, ,ded 3J M@relz 202f

C Other related parties and affiliates

Other than as disclosed elsewhere ill the financial statements, the other related parties and
affiliates of the Group are:

Name of the party
Abha investments F1e. Ltd.

Calyx Investments Pie. Ltd.
In dogenious Holdings PIe. Ltd,
Blue Bucks Investments Pre. Ltd.

Big Banyan investments Pie. Ltd.
PT. In do Bharat Rayon (^R)
Swiss Singapore Overseas Enterprises Pte Ltd. (SSOE)
Adjtya Bina Chenvicals (Than and) Ltd. (ABCT)
Alexandria Fiber Company Ltd (AFCO)

Nature of relationship
Shareholder

Shareholder

Shareholder

Shareliolder

Shareholder

Shareholder

Step down subsidiary
Associate

Common director and BCT holds

more than 10 % of tlie share

capital.
Common director and BCT holds

more than 10 % of the share

capital.
Associate

Associate

Major shareholder in a subsidiary
company, ABCT

Mrs. Ruchika Goyal (Spouse of Mr. Surendra Kumar Goyal) Close member of the faintly of
key nianagement personnel

The Company
Manish Kumar Tibrewal

Kuruar Mangalam Bina
Deepak Kumar Khandelwal
NamTata Goyal

Thai Acrylic Fiber Co, Ltd.

P T In do Liberty Textiles
BSsel Mintng and Industties Limited (EMU. ,)
Thai Rayon Public Co. Ltd.
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Transactions with related parties and affihates and outstanding balances

Details of transactions during the year

D

(Currency. ' in UsD million)

SKI In Yestrnents Fte. Ltd.

Interest expense
Loan taken

Repayment of loan
Interest paid

Subsidiaries (excluding SKI
Investments Pte. Ltd. )

Loan provided
Loan taken

Interest income

Dividend income

Investment in subsidiaries

Shareholders

Repayment of loan (including interest
to IBR)

Interest expense
Loan taken

Equity accounted investses
Additional investment (EMU. ,)
Additional investment (EMn. ,) - CCD

Other related parties and affiliates
Electricity and steam sales
Dividend income

Sales

Royalty expenses
Compensation to key management

personnel*

The Group
20202021

The Company
2021 2020

18.25

60.00

17.69

74.72

4.72

147.30

21.37

179.35

256.13

20.88

194.61

89.82

23.40

15.75

54.62

102.57

0.08

535.24

589.97

460.19

20.33

501.53

10.51

0.82

0.15

1.35

1.99

177.88

74.72

4.72

147.30

10.96

0.89

4.15

2.02

2.46

0.08

299.38
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Outstanding balances

(Currency. . lit UsD million)

SKI In yesiments Pte. Ltd.

Loan payable (including
accrued interest) **

Subsidiaries (excluding SKI
Investments Pts. Ltd. )

Loan payable
Loan receivable ***

Interest receivable***

Shareholders

Borrowings

*

The Group
2021 2020

S"rytz K, }or, furyes, men's Pre. Ltd.
a, ,d its s"bsidt@ries

Find, ,etalst", e, "e, ,is

re@r ended 31 Mare1,202J

Note: As the liabilities for defined benefit plans and compensated absences are provided
o11 actuarial basis for the respective companies as a whole, the amounts pertaining to key
management personnel are not included.

The Company entered into loan agreement o112 April2018 with its step down subsidiary,
SKITnvestments Pte, Ltd. , Singapore, for a term loan carrying fixed interest rate of 4.40%
per an rinm compounded quarterly. Principal interest is repayable on expiry of 30 months
from the date of disbursement i. e. during October 2020. The agreement was revised on 31st
March 2020 and the revised date of maturity of loan was fixed as 6 October 2025 with other
telms remaining the same.

On 29 September 2020 the Company entered into an oilier loan agreement willI SKI
investments Pte. Ltd. for UsD 60 million at an interest rate of 4.40% per annum

compounded quarterly with date of maturity being 6 October 2025.

A1nount due from subsidiaries are unsecured, bear interest at 2.55% - 3.00% per annunn
and repayment terms are subject to subordination deed.

**

The Company
20202021

***

734.41

433.28

Terms and conditions or transactions witli related parties

All related party transactions entered during the year were in the ordinary course of business. The
outstanding balances with related parties are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees
have been given or received except those disclosed in Note 27.

658.41

372.72

972.14

43.73

7.36

860.00

20.33

479.41 403.41
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32

(a)

Income taxes

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

(Currency, . lit UsD million)

Current tax expense
Current year tax
Changes in estimates related to prior years

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
Reduction in tax rate

(b)

Tax expense for the year

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income - Group

Suey" Kim, I impart, "e, lis Pre. Ud.
a"d its subsidiaries

Firm"cm! state, "e"ts

yenr e, ,ded 31 Morel, 202J

(CMr, 'errcy. . in UsD million)

income tax charger(credit)
Reineasurement loss/(gain) on

net defined benefit plans
Loss I(Gain) o11 fair valuation

of investments

Total

2021

(c)

The Group
2020

52.56

(335)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Before

tax

49.21

(Currency. ^it UsD milli^")

2021

Tax

benefit Net of tax

(13.15)

Profit before tax from continuing operations
Tax using the Singapore tax rate of 17% (2020: 17%)
Effect of lax Tales in foreignjurisdictions
(Decreaseylncrease in tax rates
Tax effect of;

Non-deductible lax expenses
Tax exenipt income
Tax credits (including credits pertaining to Us

transition tax liability)
Current-year losses for which no defeiTed tax asset is

recognised
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses
Share of profit of equity-accounted investees reported

net of tax

Others

(236)

70.19

(0.19)

10.91

(15.51)

299.74

70.00

33.70

310.65

(232)

(5.88)
(2.58)

0.11

Before

tax

(2.32)

(8.35)

8.59 (10.78)

2020

Tax

expense

61.65

299.74 (473.29)
308.33 (484.07)

Net of tax

2.71

2.71

(8.07)

2021

(473.29)

The Group

(481.36)

233.97

39.78

29.58

0.08

2020

9.60

(4808)

32.88

5.59

64.57

(0.1 I)

(2.53)

8.50

(1.78)

8.95

(14.27)

(066)
(0.79)

(1638)

33.70

14.46

(4.44)

(3.69)
6.97

61.65
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(d) Movement in the deferred tax during the year ended 31 March 2021

The Group

(Currency. . fit UsD million)

Deferred tax aiabilities)/assetsin relation to:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Leases

Employee benefits
Other items

Net lax aiabilities)/ assets

Movement in the deferred tax during the year ended 31 March 2020

The Group

As at

I April
2020

(Currency. ' in UsDint!lion)

Recognised pursuant
to business

combination

(note 38)

Deferred tax aiabilities)/assetsin relation to:
Property, plant and equipment
intangible assets
Leases

Employee benefits
Other items

Net tax orabilities)/ assets

(26.01)
(9.92)
0.09

8.50

9.64

(17.70)

Recognised in Foreign
other Net as at Deferredcurrency

Recognised in comprehensive translation 31 March Deferred tax

impactprofit or loss 2021 lax assets liabilitiesIncome

S", y" Xir",, I, ,"gsm, e"ts Pre. rid.
@,, d its subsidi"Firs

Fi, ,@"cm! staler, ,eats

year e, Ided 31 Mare1,202J

As at

l April
2019

Recognised pursuamt
to business

combination

(note 38)

12.57

7.08
0.07

(065)
0.56)

.

(34.61)
(1177)
(0.20)
6.24

14.97

15.51

(2537)

Recognised in Foreign
other Deferredcurrency Net as at

Recognised in comprehensive translation 31March Deferred tax

profit or loss 2020 tax assets liabilitiesimpact

(237)

(0.54)
(0.02)

(237)

(418)

(0.13)
0.73

(13.98)
(286)
0.16

5.35

6.81
0.04

0.46

(372)

7.73

6.00
0.29

(0.03)
(564)

4.68

(018)
0.04

4.51

6.33

Income

(4.52)

(18.60
(268)
0.12

0.84

0.48

8.35

15.38

2.55

(1990)

0.87

0.03

2.55

(0.26)
(0.15)

(26.01)
(992)
0.09

8.50
9.64

0.49

0.21

(002)

(17.70)

1.81

6.54

(2622)
(9.90)
0.09
6.69

3.10

8.54 (26.24)
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(e) Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can use the benefits
therefrom.

The Group

(CUI'relicy, ^n UsD million)

Tax losses

(t) Tax losses carried forward

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised expire as follows:

The Group

(CMrre, icy. ' in UsD million)

Expires
Never expire

2021

Gross aimount Tax effect

S"ry" Kim" investments Pre. Ud.
mad its subridi@, fes

Find, ,Ginl st"reine"Is

year e, Ided 31 Mare1,2021

33 Provisions movement

484.01

(Cuntncy. ' lit UsD in!'!!ion)

At I April2020
Provision recognised during the year
Provision utilised during the year
Translation difference

At 31 March 2021

2020

Gross amount Tax effect

96.97

2021

372.26

111.76

455.13

Expiry date

2022-2038

At I April2019

Provision utilised during the year
Translation difference

At 31 March 2020

Tlie Group
Asset

retirement Environmental

Restructuring obhgations provisions

Provision recognised dullng the year

89.57

2020

Restructuring

Provisions are related to manpower restructuring in the North America, South America, Europe
and Asia region and this restructuring was completed in 2020.

318.93

136.19

Expiry date

2021-2037

8.58

(8.58)

0.80

0.03

1.09

(1.09)

0.05

0.88

1.19

1.45

(022)
0.10

Claims

0.81

0.07

(0.07)
(0.01)

2.52

3.53

1.06

0.80

1.03

0.35

(015)
co. 04)

(0.02)
4.57

1.19

0.83

2.70

3.53
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Asset Retirement Obligation ("ARO") provision

ARO consists mainly of asbestos removal and restoring leased facilities back to their original
status.

Environmental provisions

The Group is subject to extensive federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations relating to
safety, health and environmental matters in USA, The impact of future clianges in such laws and
regulations on the Group camot be predicted. The provision 11as been made based on
management's estimate of the environmental costs that the Group is obligated to incur.

Claims

34

The provision for claims against the Group is recorded based on best estimates made by the
management,

(a)

Financials instruments

Accounting classification of financial instruments

The following tables summarise the accounting classification and carrying amounts of financial
instruments:

The Group The Company
Carrying value Carrying value

2021 2021

S"ry" rural, h, vestm", is F1e. Ltd.
""d its substdi@rtes

Find, ,cm! stareme", s

year ended 31 Morel, 2021

(Cur, ,errc)^.. in UsD Jiltllion)

Financial assets

Carried at am ortised cost:

Cash and casli equivalents (current)
Trade and other receivables (non-ctm. Grit and current)
Loan to subsidiaries (current)
Loan 10 subsidiaries (non-cument)
Inter corporate deposits (current)
Deposits with banks (current)

Carried at FVTPL:

Investment in unquoted equity shares (non-current)
Convertible prointssary note
Investment in quoted Global Depository Receipts (non-
current)
Derivatives (current)

Carried at FVOCl:

investment in quoted equity shares (non-current)
Compulsory convertible debentures
Invesiment in unquoted equity shares (non-current)

371.41

815.04

256.73

2.04

1.26

2.59

2.50

0.15

931.32

84.55

8.81

451.50

102.02

181.84

2,194,63

0.15

60.25

46.21

1,123,74
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(Currency. . In UsD million)

Financial liabilities

Carried at annortised cost:

Borrowings (current and non-current)
Trade and other payables (current - excluding derivatives)
Preference shares (current and non-current)

Carried at FVOCl:

Financial Liability under Option Agreement

Carried at FVTPL:

Derivatives (current and non-current)

S"ry@ mr@,, harvestme, ,is Pie, Ltd
and its s"bsidi", tar

Fin",, cadlsr@, e, "e, ,, s

year e, ated 3J Murala 2021

(Currency. ^it UsD million)

The Group
Carrying value

2021

Financial assets

Carried at annortised costs

Casli and cash equivalents (current)
Trade and other ^eceivables (non-current and current)
Loan to subsidiaries (current)
Inter corporate deposits (current)
Deposits with banks (current)
Investment in fixed income securities (current)

The Company
Carrying value

2021

2,757.73
805.75

734.65

Carried at FVTPL:

Investment in unquoted equity shares (non-current)
Investment in quoted equity shares (non-current)
Investments in debt-oriented mutual fund units (non-
current and current)
Derivatives (current)

4.55

912.69

2.03

729.00

Carried at FVOCl:

investment in quoted equity shares (non-current)
Investment in unquoted equity shares (non-current)

The Group
Carrying value

2020

28.30

4,330.99

The Company
Carrying value

2020

1,643.72

282.39

733.29

311.35

101.91

20.51

0.87

6.80

0.05

74.32

880.33

9.14

145.77

181.30

1,866.83

0.05

22.21

46.21

949.67

FS66



(Currency, ^n UsD Ininto")

Financial liabilities

Carried at annortised costs

Borrowings (current and non-current)
Trade and other payables (current - exduding derivatives)
Preference shin'OS (current and non-current)

Carried at FVTPL:

Derivatives (current and non-current)

The fair value of financial instruntents as referred to in note (a) above have been classified into
three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique.

The categories used are as follows:

. Level I - Quoted prices (uriadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or nabnities.

. Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i. e. as prices) or indirectly (i. e. derived from prices).

. Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

At 31 March 2021

Financial instruments at fair

value

(Currency. . in UsD million)

Financial assets at FVTPL:

Investment in unquoted equity
shares (non-current)

Investment in quoted equity
shares (non-current)

Derivatives

Suryc Kir@,, haresliner, is Pre. Ud.
amd i's 5,165idi@, tes

Fin@,, cadlsi"!eme"ts

Ye@r e, ,ded 31 Mare1,2021

The CompanyThe Group
Carrying value Carrying value

20202020

2,990.76
543.88

729.00

4,309.35
45.71

The CompanyThe Group

Level I Level 11 Level 111 Level I Level 11 Level 111

787.69

0.73

729.00

Financial assets carried at

FVOCl:

Investment in quoted equity
shares (non-current)

Investment in unquoted equity
shares/CCD (lion-current)

I, S 17.42

0.15

0.15

8.81

5.09

8.81

451.50

451.50

5.09

0.15

0.15

283.85

283.85

60.25

60.25

46.21

46.21

FS67



Financial liabilities at fair

value through OCl
(Equity)

Financial liability under put
option

Financial liabilities at

FVTPL:

Derivatives

At 31 March 2020

Financial instruments at fair

value

(Currency. ^it UsD million)

Financial assets at FVTPL:

Investments in debt-oriented

mutual fund units

Investment in unquoted equity
shares (non-current)

Investment in quoted equity
shares (non-current)

Derivatives

Suryd Kir@,, fitvestme, ,, s Pre. Ltd.
and its s"bsidrarte$

Find, ,etalstateme"ts

re@r e, ,ded 31 M@rel32021

The Group The Company

Level I Level 11 Level 111 Level I Level 11 Level 111

4.55

28.30

Financial assets carried at

FVOCl:

Investment in quoted equity
shares (non-current)

Investment in unquoted equity
shares (non"current)

Financial liabilities at

FVTPL:

Derivatives

74.32

0.05

74.37

Calculation of fair values

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at tlie measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent
with those used for Ihe year ended 31 March 2020.

Fair value of derivative instruments is detennined based on Mark to Market valuation statements

provided by the Group*s bankers who are the counterparty to such transactions.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current receivables, borrowings, trade and other
payables have fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts due to their short-term
nature,

9.14

6.80

9.14

145.77

145.77

6.80

0.05

0.05

181.30

45.71

181.30

22.21

22.21

46.21

46.21
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35 Financial risk management

The Group's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk,
market risks and credit risk. The Group's senior management 11as the overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.

Credit riskA

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty fails to meet its
contractual obligations.

Trade and other receivables

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Group's
customer base being large and diverse.

The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables from individual
customers, which comprise a very large number of small balances.

The following table provides information about tlie exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables as at 31 Marcli2021.

Sury" Kirin, f, ,vesi, "",, s Pre. Ltd.
and its s"bsidi"Firs

Financial state, "e"ts

year e"ded 3J Mare1,202J

2021

(Currency. . in UsD Million)

Current (Not past due)
Past due 1-30 days
Past due 31-60 days
Past due 61-90 days
Past due over 90 days

2020

Weighted
average loss

rate

Current (Not past due)
Past due 1-30 days
Past due 31-60 days

Past due 61-90 days
Past due over 90 days

0.05%

0.75%

0.67%

0.69%

95.54%

Gross

carrying
amount

TITe ECL calculation for trade receivables is based on a 24-month look at the reserve rates and

write offs related to trade receivables. On a forward-looking basis, the Group has decided to use
the Notcli Report and look at worldwide tire & vehicle production report. Rates are calculated
separately for exposures in different segments based on the following common credit risk
cliaracteristics- geographic regions, age of customer relationship.

The movement in the allowance for impainnent in respect of trade receivables during the year
was as follows.

716.16

57.21

5.77

4.57

42.71

Loss

allowance

0.07%

0.05%

0.65%

1.25%

70.14%

826.42

0.34

0.43

0.04

0.03

40.80

Credit

impaired

644.30

40.23

6.17

9.58

35.87

No

No

No

No

Yes

41.64

736.15

0.47

0.02

0.04

0.12

25.16

No

No

No

No

No

25.81
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(Currency: in UsD Million)

Balance at I April2020
Impairment loss recognised
Amounts written off

Translation differences

Balance as at 31 March 2021

(CLIrre, ?cy. . in UsD Million)

Balance at I April2019
Provision taken over pursuant to business combination
Impainnent loss recognised
Amounts written off
Translation differences

Balance as at 31 Marcli2020

SI, ry" Kir@" I, ,vestments Pie. Lid.
mad its s"bsidi@nor

Find"etc! state, "e"ts
Ye@r e"ded 31 March 2021

Impainnent loss recognised mainly relates to a receivable from a government entity related to tlie
sale of electicity. Tlie UsD 2.19 million 01 March 2020: UsD 0.92 million) amount written off
relates to trade receivables that were previously reserved for and were written off against the
reserve for trade receivables.

Other financial assets

The Group maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, investments in
mutual funds with financial institutions and derivative financial instruments. The Grou has
concentrated its main activities witli a limited number of counter parties which have secure credit
ratings, to reduce Ihis risk, Individual risk Iintits are set for each counter party based on financial
position, credit rating and past experience. Credit limits and concentration of exposures are
actively monitored by the Group's nlariagement.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March 2021 and 31 Marcli 2020 is the
carrying value of each class of financial assets except for derivative financial instruments.

Impairment

B

25.81

18.05

(2.19)
(0.03)

Market risk

41.64

Impairment

TITe Group's size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise
from its use of financial instruments:

a, interest rate risk;
b. currency risk; and
c. commodity risk

The above risks may affect the Group's income and expenses, or the value of its financial
instruments. TITe objective of the Group's management of niarket risk is to maintain tliis risk
within acceptable parameters, while optimismg returns. The Group's exposure to, and
management of, these risks is explained below.

5.04

17.40

3.98

(092)
0.31

25.81
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I. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in marketinterest rates. Tlie Group's exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The Group manages its interest rate lisk by using floating-10-1ixed interest rates
swaps in which it agrees to eXchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and
variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal
amount. The Group has a practice of hedging interest rate risk for external loans only; the Group
does not hedge related party loans,

The Group's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amorrised cost. They are therefore not subject to
interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor future cash flows will fluctuate because
of change in market interest rate

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows.

The Group The Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

Sury" Kir@,, I, ,vestments Pre. Ud.
in^d its s"bsidi@Firs

Firm, ,cmlst"to, "e"t$

year e, ,ared 31 Mcrc1,2021

(Currency. ^n UsD million)

Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets #

Financial liabilities S

Variable-rate instruments
Financial assets #

Financial liabilities $

Effect of interest rate swaps

Total

439.10

(204.00)

# includes intercomorate deposits, loan to related party and deposits with banks
$ includes current and non-current borrowings

235.10

315.19

(178.53)

(2,023.32)
(2,023,32)
1,375,00

136.66

(648.32)

251.90

(2,278.67)

972.14

(637.28)

(413.22)

(2,026.77)
1,368.00

334.86

(658.77)

860.00

(501.92)

(522.1 I )

358.08

334.86 358.08
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have
increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by 111e amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency eXchange rates, remain constant.

(Currency: in UsD million)

31 March 2021

Variable-rate instruments

Interest rate swaps
Cash now sensitivity (net)

31 March 2020

Variable-rate instruments

Interest rate swaps
Cash flow sensitivity (neo

11.

S"ry" mm, , I, ,veslme"ts Re. Ud.
or^d i's s"bsidi"lies

Film, ,cm! slate, "e", s

year errded 31 Mare1,2021

Currency risk

Following is the derivative financial instruments to hedge the foreign eXchange rate risk:

Category

Aggregate amount of outstanding forward contracts
Gain on outstanding forward contracts
Loss on outstanding forward contracts

Profit or loss

100 bp 100 bp
decrease

Exposure to currency risk

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020 as below:

Increase

(20.23)
13.75

The Group

(Currency. ' in UsD mill^^n)

(6.48)

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current investments

Long-term loans and advances
Trade and other receivables
Other non-current financial assets
Other current financial assets

(20.27)
13.68

(20.23)
13.75

(6.48)

(6.59)

20.27

(1368)

2021

6.59

232.97

1.12

2.56

2020

usD

260.03

7.92

1.08

31 March 2021

125.18

EURO

409.20

59.71

0.70

1.78

596.57

13.68

77.91

2.83

16.06

Others

0.03

110.51

1.43

3.14

1.52

6.48

5.00

0.32

17.89
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Financial liabilities

Long-tenn borrowings
Short-Tenri borrowings
Trade and other payables
Other current financial liabilities

(Currency. . in UsD million)

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current investments

Long-tenn loans and advances
Trade and other receivables
Other non-current financial assets
Other current financial assets

Financial liabilities

Long-tenn borrowings
Short-term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Other current financial liabilities

Sury@ mr@" I, westme, ,is Pre. Ltd.
and i's s"bsidi@neg

Find, ,dafui"te, "e, ,ts

year e, ,ded 3f Mare1,2021

100.25

11.06

317.49
23.97

452.77

Sensitivity analysis

A possible strengthening/(weakening) of the functional currencies of the respective entities within
the Group against for. eign currencies at March 31 would have affected the measurement of
financial instruments denominated in Us dollars and affected equity and profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases,

UsD

21.08

27.66

0.05

31 March 2020

EURO

48.79

10.02

310.43

67.10

0.95

4.17

Effect in UsD inithon

388.50

4.17

0.96

77.91

41.76

21.01

31 March 2021

UsD (5% movement)
EUR (5% movement)
Others (5% movement)

Others

103.26

26.03

287.83

0.99

31 March 2020

UsD (5% movement)
BUR (5% movement)
Others (5% movement)

0.03

141.67

0.27

3.14

1.52

6.69

5.16

0.46

418.11

39.10

23.26

6.17

3.46

17.24

71.99

2.99

2.99

Profit or loss

Strengthening Weakening

(7.1 9)
(3.09)
(0.69)

(10.97)

(1.48)
3.56

0.70

7.19

3.09

0.69

2.78

10.97

1.48

(3.56)
(0.70)
(2.78)
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111 Commodity risk

Commodity risk results from changes in market prices for raw materials, mainly feedstock and
energy sold as by-product. Factors of importance to the risk position are the availability and
prices. Costs for raw materials and energy have fluctuated significantly in past years and may
continue to fluctuate in the future. Pitting and procurement lisks are managed through structuring
the customer contracts to reduce or elirhinate the risk of volatility in prices; abilities to use a wide
variety of feedstock; and optiintsing procurement and inventory processes,

The commodity trading business of the Group also results in an exposure to commodity price risk.
The Group 11as put in place risk management strategies and me chantsms to manage this risk. As
part of its risk management practice, in some cases, the Group enters into commodity hedge
contracts to hedge the coriumodity price risk.

Management of liquidity riskC

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will face in meeting its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have
sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. in doing
this, management considers both nounal and stressed conditions. A material and sustained
shortfall in our cash flow could undermine the Group's credit rating, impair investor confidence
and also restrict the Group's ability to raise funds.

The Group maintained a cautious funding strategy, with a positive cash balance tliroughout the
year. This was tlie result of casli delivery from the business, coupled with the proceeds from
borrowings. This cash has been invested conservativeIy with low risk counter-parties at matutiiies
of less than six months, Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to service the
financing of financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Group seeks to manage its liquidity
requirements by maintaining access to global debt markets through short-term and long-term debt
program. in addition, the Group has committed credit facilities for general corporate use.

Sury" Kim, , havesime, ,, s Pie. Ud,
amd its s"bsidi"rtes

Financial state, "e", s

ranr e"ded 3J Mare1,2021

(Currency: in UsD winlion)

The Group

31 Marcli 2021

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Borrowings *
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Carrying
amount

Derivative financial
instruments

Forward eXchange contracts
used for liedging

Outflow

Total

2,757.73
810.31
20.30

I year
or less

3,588.34

2,962.18
822.43
24.82

I-5

years

3,809.43

28.30

1,122.93
810.20

9.03

More than

5 years

1,942.16

28.30

1,284.38
7.68

10.30

1,302.36

8.50

554.87
4.55
5.49

564.91

8.36 11.44
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31 March 2020

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Borrowings *
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Derivative financial
instr"merits

Forward eXchange contmcts
used for hedging

Outflow

2,990.76
543.88

15.25

* The carrying amount of borrowings is net of transaction costs including bank fees.

Carrying I year
amount or less

3,549.89

(Carre"cy. ^it UsD million)

The Company

3,256.31
569.73

19.97

S"ry" Kir@,, h, verl, ,, e, ,, 3 Pre, Ud.
@11d its subsidi@17'es

Fi, ,",, ci"! state, "e"is

year ended 3Z Mare1,2021

31 Match 2021

3,846.01

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Borrowings
Trade and other payables

9.28

1,369.42
558.64

4.41

1,932.47

31 March 2020

9.28

1,246.86
11.09

10.27

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Borrowings
Trade and other payables

1,268.22

36

Total

2.33

640.03

(a)

912.69
2.03

Subsequent events

Impact of the CoVID-19 pandemic and estimation uncertainty arising therefrom:

CoVID-19, declared as a global pandemic by the WHO, began spreading globalIy towards the
end of the financial year ended 31 Marcli 2020 and affected human life, business and economic
activities, and financial markets. The Group's operations were affected in several parts of the
world during March 2020 to June 2020 due to either closing the manufacturing facilities and
offices temporarily or operating at reduced rates, to ensure health and safety of employees,
coinl with reulato direct' , d 'comply with regulatory directions, or manage inventories and transportation and logistical
challenges in moving goods as well as some impact on commodity prices due to the pandemic.
Since then, operations have resumed at all manufacturing facilities in a safe manner,

5.29
645.32

914.72

6.95

1,008.77
2.58

I-5
Years

1,011.35

787.69
0.73

788.42

479.4i
2.58

More than

5 years

481.99

890.98
0.73

891.71

529.36

529.36

407.59
0.73

40832

7.36

7.36

47602

476.02
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The Group also assessed the impact of the pandemic on the recoverability of the carrying value
of its assets such as inventory, trade receivables, loan receivables, property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets etc. disclosed in the financial statements and currently believes that the
pandemic is not likely to have an adverse impact in this regard.

The Group is closely monitoring the developments and possible effects that may result from the
current pandemic on its financial condition, liquidity and operations and is actively working to
miniintze the impact of this unprecedented situation. However, in view of the estimation
uncertainty arising from the unprecedented and constantly evolving nature of the pandemic, the
eventual outcome may be different from that estimated on the date of approval of these financial
statements,

(b) On 21 June 2021, the Company allotted 115,000,000 2.25% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares "I" Series for UsD I each to existing share holder F1. Indo Bharat
Rayon Indonesia. TITe preference shares are redeemable after 10 years from date of allotment and are
not convertible to ordinary shares in the capital of the Conipany.

Capital management

The Group's policy is to niaintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the
return on capital (total equity) as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

Senior management seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that linght be possible
with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages and secutity afforded by a sound capital
position.
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38 Acquisitions

in FY 2019-20, a step down subsidiary of the Company, SKI Carbon Black (Mantitius) Liiwited
("SKD^I") purchased 100% equity ownership in Swiss Singapore Overseas Enterprises Pte. Ltd.
(SSOE) This acquisition is expected to facilitate the realisation of some synergies in feedstock
purchases, movement of goods and other transactions common to both entities.

While the subsidiary 11as entered into share purchase agreements with fomier shareholders on 16
and 17 April2019, the date of acquisition for purposes of accounting for the transaction is taken
as I Aprt12019 as a more convenient date considering the proximity to the start of the financial
year. The effects of this on profits for the year and goodwill arising on acquisition is not material.

The purchase price paid for acquiting 100% equity ownership of SSOE was UsD 450.00 thinion
which has been paid in cash. For the financial year ended 31 March 2020, SSOE conttibuted
revenue of UsD 5.09 billion and profit after tax of UsD 0.54 million to the Group's results.

Summary of net identifiable assets acquired and goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of SSOE is recognised as an asset, being the excess of the
cost of consideration over the interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired.

The following table summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities used at
the date of acquisition, including goodwill arising from the acquisition.
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(Currency. ^" UsD millions)

Total consideration transferred

Property, plant and equipment
Customer relationship intangibles
Other intangible asset
Investment securities

Trade and other receivables

Inventory
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current asset
Assets held for sale

Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Payables and advances
Retirement obligations
Deferred tax liability
Other current liabilities

Total identifiable net assets

S", JR firm, furyes, marts Pre, Ltd.
und its s"bsidi"rtes

Find"cmls!"tel"errts

year ended 31 March 2021

Goodwill

Goodwill of UsD 130.18 million relates mainly to the acquired entity's workforce and other
synergies. There are no local tax deductions available for goodwill.

The Group's acquisition-related costs have been included in adrntnistrative expenses.

39 Deconsolidation of a Subsidiary: lining Chenya"g CCJN Chemical
Co. , Ltd. (" CTjV") w, e. f. 31 March 2021

in respect of one of the Group's subsidiaries, lining Chenyang CCJN Chemical Co. , Ltd, which
is legally structured as ajoint venturein China andin which the Groupliolds 51% equity stake,
the Group has exercised a put option to sell its stake to the joint venture partner during the year
ended 31 Marcli2021. Consequently, the Group has deconsolidated the said subsidiary.

Below is a summary of tlie assets and liabilities of CTJV tliat have been derecognised from the
consolidated financial statements of the Group:

(Currency. . In UsD millions)

450.00

29.90

76.00

0.80

95.02

534.62

216.71

28.36

2.53

10.97

(237.72)
0.1 co

(426.18)
(3.23)
(4.18)
(1.68)

Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Other current asset and prepaids
Total Assets

319.82

130.18

15.42

0.02

0.15

1.73

17.32

FS77



Non-controlling interest
Long term borrowings
Short term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Provisions and other liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets (Total Assets . Total Liabilities) (A)
Fair value of Consideration to be received (B)
Gain on deconsolidation of Subsidiary (B - A)

Summary of gain recorded ill statement of profit or loss
Gain on deconsolidation as above
FCTR balance transferred to P&L on deconsolidation

Impainment of loans given to CTJV by the Group
Total Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiary

The Group has made an impairment provision on loans and other receivables provided to CTJV
amounting to UsD 2.61 Million. Net gain recognised in statement of profit or loss after
impairment of receivables is UsD 0.30 Million.

40

SMFy" Kit@,, J, JPes, me, ,is Re. Ltd.
@,, d its $11bsidr"rtes

Fin",, etals, "terne"ts

year ended 31 Mare1,202Z

4.85

4.63

0.23

2.46

0.10

List of subsidiaries

Name of Subsidiaries

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Surya Abha Investments F1e. Ltd Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Ski Carbon Black (Mauritius) Step down
Limited subsidiary

indigold Carbon omanritius) Step down
Limiied subsidiary

Bina Carbon India Private Liihited Step down
subsidiary

Slop down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Elaine Investments Pie. Lid.

Surya Viniyog Pre Ltd.

Kiran investments Pie. Ltd.

On aria Investments Pre. Ltd.

Relation

12.27

Ski investments Pte. Ltd

5.05

Country of
incorporation

7.70

2.65

2.65

0.26

(2.61 )

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Singapore

Ownershipinlerest
held by Group

2021 2020
% %

100.00 100.00

100.00 I00.00

52.50 52.50

I00.00 100.00

0.30

Bina Carbon Thailand Public Co.
Lid.

Billa Carbon Egypt S. A. E.

Singapore

Ownershipinteresi
held by NCl

2021 2020
% %

Singapore

Mauritius

100.00

Mauritius

52.50

47.50

10000

52.50

india

52.50

47.50

Thailand

52.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

Egypt

52.50

47.50

19.67

47.50

52.50

47.50

45.69

4750

18.96

47.50

47.50

45.69

80.33

47.50

54.31

81.04

54.31
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Name or Subsidiaries

Indigold (Netherlands) B. V. @# Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Columbian Cheintcals Acquisition Step down
LLC subsidiary

Bina Carbon U. S. A. , Inc. Step down
subsidiary

Columbianlntemational Chemicals Step down
Corporation subsidiary

Columbian Holding Company Step down
subsidiary

Columbian Teclmology Company SIep down
subsidiary

Bina Carbon Trading Inc. Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

CC Holdco (Deutschland) GinbH Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Indigold Carbon (Netherlands)
B. V. #

indigold Carbon USA, Inc.

Relation
Country of

incorporation

Suryti Kim, a J, ipest, ,tents Pie. Ud.
and its s"bsidi@Fief

Fin""Girl state, "e", s

year e"ded 31 Mare1,2021

Ownership interest Ownership interest
held by Group held by NCl

2021 20212020 2020
% %% %

Netherlands

Netherlands

52.50

USA

Bina Carbon Canada Ltd.

USA

0.00

52.50

Bina Carbon Brasil Ltda.

USA

52.50

52.50

47.50

USA

52.50

52.50

Bina Carbon Europe GinbH

USA

52.50

47.50

52.50

4750

Birla Carbon Korea Co. , Ltd. Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Step down Spain
subsidiary
Step down Luxembourg
subsidiary

Step down Luxembourg
subsidiary

Indigold Carbon (Hungry) Korlatolt Step down Hungary
Felelossegu Tarsasag subsidiary

USA

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

Bina Carbon Italy S. R. L.

USA

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

Canada

Bina Carbon Spain, S. L. U.

Columbian Cherntcals (Weifang)
Holdings S. arJ.

CC Holdco (Luxembourg) S. r. l.

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

Brazil

52.50

4750

52.50

Gennany

47.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

Gennany

47.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

Korea

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

Italy

52.50

47.50

47.50

44.63

52.50

47.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

44.63

4750

52.50

52.50

52.50

55.37

47.50

52.50

52.50

52.50

47.50

55.37

52.50

47.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

47.50

47.50

47.50

47.50

47.50
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Name of Subsidiaries

Bina Carbon Hungary Ltd Step down
subsidiary

Bina Carbon China (Jining) Co. Step down
Ltd. subsidiary

Bina Carbon China oreifang) Co. SIep down
Ltd. subsidiary

Bina Carbon Japan K. K Step down
subsidiary

lining Chemyang CCJN Cheintcal Step down
Co. , Ltd. $ subsidiary

Billa Carbon Mexico S. A. de CV. * Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Swiss Singapore Overseas Step down
Enterprises Pre. Ltd subsidiary

Swiss Singapore Shipping Pre Ltd Step down
subsidiary

Safe Ocean Bulk Carriers Pte. Ltd. Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Clean Ship Bulk Carriers Pte Ltd Step down
subsidiary

Relation
Country of

incorporation

S"tv@ Kim, I investme"is Pte. Ltd
mad its s"bsidi"rtes

Fi, ,@,, etalst@tome"ts

Ye@r e, ,ded 31 March 202J

Ownershipinterest Ownership interest
held by Group held by NCl

2021 20212020 2020
% % %%

52.50 52.50 47.50 47.50

Sevalcoltd.

Hungary

China

China

42.00

Japan

SSOE Investmenis PIe Ltd

52.50

China

42.00

Mexico

52.50

52.50

Swiss Singapore (Australia) Ply Step down
Ltd. (ERA: Farmers World Ply subsidiary
Ltd)

Swiss Singapore (Shanghai)
Trading Co. Ltd

Swiss Vietnam International
Company Limited

SSOE PhD Tho Tea Limited
Company

PT Swiss Niaga Internasional

58.00

26.78

UK

52.50

47.50

Singapore

Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Myanmar Swiss Singapore Step down
Company Lintted subsidiary

Swiss Singapore (Bangladesh) Lad Step down
subsidiary

52.50

58.00

26.78

47.50

Singapore

52.50

47.50

52.50

73.22

Singapore

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

Singapore

52.50

73.22

52.50

47.50

Singapore

52.50

47.50

52.50

.. .

47.50

Australia

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

4750

China

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

Vietnam

52.50

47.50

47.50

Vietnam

52.50

52.50

47.50

Indonesia

47.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

Myanmar

47.50

52.50

52.50

Bangladesh

47.50

47.50

52.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

4750

52.50

47.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

47.50

47.50

47.50

47.50
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Name of Subsidiaries

Swiss Singapore india Priva!e Step down
Limited subsidiary

Swiss Singapore Logistics Pvi Step down
Ltd. A subsidiary

Swiss Singapore Middle East FZE Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

Step down
subsidiary

SSOE (Kenya) Ltd

Relation

Agricorp Ltd

Country of
incorporation

S"ry" Kir@,, I, ryes!merits Pre, Ud.
rind its s"bsidicn'us

rim",, etcls, "re, "e, ,13

year ended 31 March 2021

Ownershipinterest Ownershipinterest
held by Group held by NCl

2021 20212020 2020
% %% %

52.50 52.50 47.50 47.50

Agri Inputs, LDA

Swiss Singapore (Nigeria)
Enterprises Ltd

Swiss Singapore Inc.
(Formerly known as
AmenBlend Inc. )

Swiss Singapore America Inc.

india

India

Step down
subsidiary

Swiss Singapore Canada Pie Lid Step down
subsidiary

Step down Myanmar
subsidiary

As at 31 March 2021,58.82% of the share capital of Indigold Carbon Black (Mauritius) Limited is owned by
SKI Carbon Black onauntius) Limited, 20.59% is owned by Bina Carbon Egypt S. A. E. and 2059% by Bina
Carbon Thailand Public Co. Ltd.

@ earlier known as Indigold Carbon Coopemtief U. A.

# merged with indigold 0.1etherlands) B. V. we. f. 27th March, 2021

$ Deconsolidaied w. e, f. 31st March 2021

*Entity in liquidation process, Non-operating entity under liquidation.

A Subsidiary of Swiss Singapore india Private Limited

During the previous year ended 31 March 2020, SKD, I acquired 100% of equity in Swiss Singapore Overseas
Enterprises Pie Ltd.

UAE

52.50

Kenya

Swiss DA international Company
Limited

Zambia

52.50

52.50

Mozambique

52.50

52.50

47.50

Nigeria

52.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

USA

47.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

USA

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

Canada

52.50

47.50

47.50

52.50

52.50

47.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

52.50

47.50

26.78

52.50

47.50

47.50

26.78

47.50

47.50

73.22

47.50

73.22
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